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Who We Are

Kennedy Wilson (NYSE: KW) is a global real estate investment company. 
We own, operate and invest in real estate on our own and through our 
investment management platform. We focus on multifamily and commercial 
properties located in the Western U.S., U.K., Ireland, Spain, Italy and Japan. To 
complement our investment business, the company also provides real estate 
services primarily to financial services clients. Founded in 1977, we have 27 
offices throughout the U.S., U.K., Ireland, Jersey, Spain and Japan.

Our investment portfolio is diversified across key markets and product types 
and includes 25,943 multifamily units, 18.1 million commercial rentable 
square feet, 975 hotel rooms, 582 residential units/lots, 4,155 acres of land, 
and 25 loans. (Following figures as of December 31, 2016)

$2.4b

$703m

$5.4b

$350m

3.2%

$17b

Market Cap 

Revenue

Enterprise Value

Adjusted EBITDA

Dividend Yield*

AUM

Diversi�cation by 
Geography

Geography by product

Diversi�cation by 
Geography

Geography by product

Geography
(By Investment Account)

• Western U.S. 67%

• Ireland 16%

• U.K. 14%

• Spain 2%

• Italy 1%

Diversified Portfolio

Product Type
(By Investment Account)

• Commercial 40%

• Multifamily 36%

• Residential & Other 13%

• Hotels 10%

• Loans 1%

67%
Portfolio located in the  

Western U.S.

76%
Multifamily and  

Commercial

*Based on Q1-2017 Quarterly Dividend and the closing price of NYSE: KW on April 26, 2017
See page 34 for certain definitions and reconciliations to the most directly comparable GAAP measures. 
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To our Fellow Shareholders,

increased substantially, driven by both a larger 
ownership interest in a growing real estate 
portfolio and continual improvements in the 
operating fundamentals of our properties.

Our multifamily and commercial portfolio 
achieved another year of strong same-property 
performance. This continues a trend we have seen 
for many years now. The multifamily portfolio 
had revenue growth of 10% and NOI growth of 
12% for 2016, which outperformed every public 
multifamily peer. Our garden-style suburban 
portfolio, which is predominantly located adjacent 
to high-growth cities, still offers an attractive 
product with rents 40%-60% below class-A CBD 
communities. In the state of Washington, where 
we have over 10,000 multifamily units, the 
underlying economy continues to thrive fueled by 
the growth of the many Fortune 500 companies 
that reside in the area, including Microsoft, 
Amazon, Starbucks, Boeing, Facebook, and 
Costco. These companies continue to hire tens of 
thousands of new employees with high salaries, 
which bodes well for our apartment communities. 
Our commercial portfolio had same-property 
revenue growth of 5% and NOI of 6%. During 
the year, we made significant progress on our 
leasing initiatives, stabilizing office properties in 
North Hollywood, Marina Del Rey, and Beverly 
Hills, which will result in some of the highest 
rents in our commercial portfolio and which will 
be another important component of sustained 
growth in cash flow. 

In Europe, where it has now been three years since 
the IPO of Kennedy Wilson Europe (LSE:KWE), 
2016 will be remembered for the surprise result of 
the United Kingdom referendum vote better known 
as Brexit. In the face of uncertainty, we kept our 
focus on operational execution. KWE’s portfolio 
of 223 properties, of which 87% are located in the 
U.K. and Ireland, ended 2016 with 95% occupancy 
and a weighted-average lease term of 7.1 years. 
Last year, KWE completed 140 commercial lease 
transactions across 1.1 million sq. ft., the majority 
of which was completed after Brexit. KWE grew 
its NOI by 23% to $200 million and also selectively 
acquired seven assets for $230 million. More 
importantly, KWE continued to reduce its portfolio 
of smaller non-core assets through disposing 89 
properties for $515 million, which resulted in a 
return on cost of 32%. KWE also delivered two 

William J. McMorrow
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Our Year in Review

Last year, Kennedy Wilson 
celebrated its seventh year since 
going public. Our global team of 
investment professionals works 
tirelessly each year to execute our 
core business plan while making 
progress on strategic initiatives 
to grow our business and return 
value to our shareholders. 2016 
was no different, and I would like 
to take a moment to reflect on our 
accomplishments in the past year.

2016 Highlights

Investment Transactions: Capital Return

Investment Transactions: Capital Return

$111m

$3.1b

Capital Return

Investment Transactions

•  Share repurchase 
$50m

•  Dividends 
$61m

•  Acquisitions 
$1.4b

•  Dispositions 
$1.7b
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2016 Growth

Recurring Property NOI  
to Kennedy Wilson

A Year of Execution
We entered 2016 with the best capital position 
in the company’s history. The year started off 
with fears of an economic slowdown and weaker 
global growth as seen through the volatility in the 
global financial markets, including the worst start 
to a new year by the S&P 500 index with an 8% 
decline in the first two weeks. In June, the surprise 
result of the Brexit vote in the U.K. brought about 
another round of uncertainty. As volatility persisted 
throughout the year, we maintained our focus on 
driving growth in our existing assets and improving 
our portfolio through selective capital recycling.

Growth in Recurring Income
In 2009, we had one wholly-owned property 
that generated $2 million of NOI. Since then, 
we have diligently completed over $18 billion 
of acquisitions and $6 billion of dispositions. At 
the end of 2016, we had an ownership-interest in 
over 400 properties that produced $240 million 
of NOI back to Kennedy Wilson, including 8,800 
apartment units, 1.8 million commercial square 
feet, and one hotel that are wholly-owned and 
generate $140 million of NOI annually. As a result, 
the recurring cash flow to Kennedy Wilson has 
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large developments in Dublin – Baggott Plaza and 
Block K, Vantage – which is expected to add an 
incremental $10 million of recurring NOI for KWE 
going forward. 

Growth in Value Creation Initiatives
Through almost three decades of investing in 
real estate, we have established a successful 
track record of creating long-term value through 
any market cycle. Across the company, we have 
over $1.7 billion in value creation initiatives 
in progress. We have good visibility on the 
completion of several key initiatives, which will 
create signifi cant asset value and additional 
income across our portfolio. These projects 
are located throughout our target markets, 
including Washington, California, Hawaii, and 
Dublin, Ireland and span across all of our key 
product types. When completed, these projects 
should result in an additional 1,849 multifamily 
units, 542,000 of commercial sq. ft., 400 homes 
and 125 hotel rooms that are expected to be 
delivered during the next few years. Much of 
this development is happening on land that we 
acquired with little or no basis adjacent to income-
producing assets, giving us the opportunity 
to achieve strong risk-adjusted returns for our 
shareholders and meaningful recurring income to 
the company.

Growth in Dividend + Record Capital Return
As a result of our increased recurring income, 
we were able to increase our dividend by 21% to 
$0.68 on an annual basis. This represents our sixth 
consecutive annual increase, during which our 
dividend has grown by 325%. During 2016, we also 
returned a record $111 million, or approximately 
$1.02 per common share, back to shareholders, 
including $61 million in dividends and $50 million 
through share repurchases. I am proud of our 
team’s ability to execute operationally in order to 
return value to our shareholders.

2017 and Beyond
Looking ahead, the global market environment 
continues to experience volatility driven largely by 
political change and monetary policy. In the U.S., 
real estate prices have recovered substantially, 
and we expect growth in our Western U.S. focused 
portfolio, especially in the state of Washington, 
to continue outpacing national averages due to a 
strong underlying economy and diverse employer 

base. In the U.K., while there is still uncertainty 
related to the ultimate outcome of Brexit, we 
believe in the long-term prospects of the select 
European markets we are invested in. We also 
remain thoughtful on how we allocate our capital. 
We are constantly looking for ways to grow our 
business – whether it’s growth through the various 
value enhancing initiatives we have underway, or 
through selective acquisitions and dispositions. 
We remain well positioned, with elevated levels 
of liquidity and no corporate debt maturities for 
another seven years, to take advantage of any 
opportunity that may arise and continue to focus 
on creating long term shareholder value as we 
have done since going public in 2009. 

Thank You
I want to thank all of our shareholders, board of 
directors, lenders, clients, and partners for their 
continued support of Kennedy Wilson. Our success 
is a direct result of the hard work of our employees. 
I believe we have the best team in the business, 
and I remain confi dent that our balance sheet 
strength, proprietary sourcing capabilities through 
our global network of relationships, and our unique 
experience investing through many real estate 
cycles in all asset types will continue to sustain 
growth for us for the years to come.

William J. McMorrow
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Our Year in Review“ We returned a record $111 
million, or approximately 
$1.02 per common share, 
back to shareholders, 
including $61 million in 
dividends and $50 million 
through share repurchases”
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Q&A
Interview with Bill McMorrow
Chairman and CEO,
Kennedy Wilson

Kennedy Wilson today doesn’t exist without 
our most important asset: our people. We have 
created an entrepreneurial culture here that fosters 
innovation and collaboration without corporate 
bureaucracy. Our culture has allowed us to develop 
our leadership team organically, resulting in an 
extremely talented senior management group that 
has now been working together on average for 
over a decade and is ready to execute. I cannot 
emphasize enough the importance this longevity 
has to the overall success of our organization. 
We’ve also selectively added extremely talented 
people who fit our culture from other highly-
respected organizations. And finally, we have 
developed an extensive recruiting and internship 
program, bringing in the brightest graduates from 
top universities, many of who will join us full-time 
and will help carry our organization and culture 
forward for the years to come.

What is Kennedy Wilson’s investment 
approach? 
Every investment we make has a story. We are 
disciplined and contrarian in our investment 
approach which starts by identifying supply 
constrained markets where we believe there will 
be strong fundamental growth. Many times, this 
has led us into markets that are out of favor. Once 
we identify a market we like, we establish a local 
team and look for attractive real estate investments 
where we can create value through a combination 
of asset management and asset repositioning. 
Over time, our investment teams have now 
become local experts in our target markets, 
which allows us to leverage our operational 
experience when we underwrite a new investment 
opportunity. Also, our real estate services division 
enhances our investment approach by providing 
our investment team with real-time market 
information. This allows us to make the decision 
on whether or not we should invest using the 
most current information possible, which has 
proven to be an extremely valuable advantage. 

How do you stay on top of your global real 
estate portfolio?
Real estate is a hands-on business. At the end 
of the day, the best way to stay on top of our 
portfolio is by visiting the properties themselves. I 
typically spend 50% of my time each year visiting 
both new and existing investments, covering a 
significant portion of our portfolio, along with 
many members of our senior management team. 

We find it extremely valuable not only to walk the 
property grounds, but also to get a feel for what 
else is happening in the surrounding area, to see 
the progress at our major value-add initiatives, 
and to talk with current tenants. For example, 
prior to acquiring a multifamily property in Seattle 
we toured Amazon’s development of over 12 
million sq. ft. in South Lake Union. We also spoke 
with the existing on-site team, which gave us a 
great sense of the who the tenants were. We were 
able to witness firsthand how the many Fortune 
500 companies headquartered in the state of 
Washington are changing the city’s footprint. I 
also visited our assets in Europe, spending a lot 
of time overseeing the progress of our major 
development projects in Dublin. Visiting the 
properties also allows us to stay connected with 
our asset management teams, who are located 
throughout our key regions and work hard to 
execute our business plan on each asset. With 
every trip, we always come back with new ideas 
on ways we can continue to improve our portfolio. 

What is next for Kennedy Wilson?
While I believe that we will continue to see 
elevated levels of global volatility, Kennedy Wilson 
is positioned extremely well to perform in all 
parts of the cycle. Our transactional experience 
spans across all real estate asset classes in many 
different geographies – we have truly seen it all. 
Our existing portfolio is diversified across product 
type and geography, in markets that we believe 
will continue to have strong long-term growth. 
Our balance sheet remains healthy, armed with 
$1.6 billion in liquidity between KW and KWE 
to take advantage of any opportunity in any 
market. We continue to make progress on our 
various value-add initiatives, which are expected 
to produce meaningful recurring income to the 
company over the next 2-3 years. And finally, our 
entrepreneurial and relationship-driven culture and 
our unique global footprint continues to generate 
significant off-market opportunities. Our people 
have built a company that is prepared for any 
market environment, and I am confident that we 
will continue our successful track record of creating 
long term value for our partners, employees, and 
ultimately our shareholders. All of this is what 
keeps me extremely excited about the future of 
Kennedy Wilson.

How has Kennedy Wilson changed in the last 
29 years?
We have been on an amazing journey of growth. 
When I acquired Kennedy Wilson back in 1988, 
we had only $57,000 in equity with 11 employees 
in a single office in Santa Monica, California. We 
started out focusing on building relationships 
through providing real estate services to 
financial institutions. Initially, it was auctioning 
real estate, which we later expanded to include 
property management, brokerage, leasing, and 
research. Through many real estate cycles, 
the relationships we created led to extremely 
attractive investment opportunities in the U.S., 
Japan, and Europe, which has driven the growth 
of our real estate portfolio. Almost 30 years later, 
we now have 27 global offices with 500 corporate 
employees, over 5,000 operating associates, 
and $17 billion of AUM*. Our $57,000 capital 
base has grown to a book value of $1.1 billion. 
Our real estate portfolio now includes over 400 
investments, and the recurring NOI from this 
portfolio has grown significantly to $240 million. 
Kennedy Wilson today combines a world class 
global real estate portfolio with a complementary 
investment management and real estate 
services arm. But, while we have grown, our 
core approach has remained the same: we build 
relationships which lead to attractive off-market 
investment opportunities. 

What makes Kennedy Wilson unique? 
Three things come to mind: our ability to invest 
globally, our relationship network, and our unique 
culture. 

We are not constrained by any geographic 
limitations, which means that we can be flexible 
as we evaluate opportunities around the world. 
Our strategy shifts with changes in economic 
fundamentals and global financial markets. As we 
look to invest our capital, we have a broad range of 
deals that we are constantly evaluating, helping us 
achieve our goal of acquiring the best real estate 
investments out there. 

Over the past 29 years, through the investment 
transactions we have completed and the real 
estate services we have provided, we have created 
relationships with banks, brokers, capital providers, 
and real estate investment firms around the world. 
Often, we end up dealing with the same institution 
on different occasions, and having a pre-existing 
relationship can be crucial for us to execute our 
plan. We have now successfully completed over 
$24 billion in real estate transactions in the U.S., 
Europe, and Japan and have worked with over 30 
global financial institutions. In many ways, real 
estate is about relationships and information, and 
we have created an extremely valuable network 
that continues to be a great source of real-
time market insight and an exclusive source of 
investment opportunities.* See page 34 for certain definitions and reconciliations to the most directly 

comparable GAAP measures. 
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*Owned by KWE
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Kennedy Wilson is focused on acquiring 
and enhancing undervalued multifamily, 
commercial, and residential assets in 
select markets. We seek to increase the 
value of the real estate we acquire through 
executing our value-add asset management 
program, which focuses on the renovation 
of tenant amenities, interior refurbishment, 
and development in order to increase 
property cash fl ow. Our institutional 
asset management team has the unique 
experience of successfully implementing 
our investment strategy across many 
different asset types and geographies, 
allowing us to maintain a fl exible 
investment approach.

A Value-Added 
Portfolio

Value Creation

Key value creation initiatives underway 
will result in an additional:

+ 542K 
Commercial sq. ft.

+ 1,849
Apartment units

+ 400
Residential homes

+ 125
Hotel rooms as part 

of iconic 81-acre 
resort restoration

KOHANAIKI 
KAILUA-KONA, HAWAII

67,000 sq. ft. clubhouse 
completed Q4-2016

MODERN UNIT INTERIORS / RADIUS APARTMENTS REHABBED LEASING CENTER / ESPRIT APARTMENTS UPGRADED CLUBHOUSE / WHITEWATER PARKRENOVATED OFFICE LOBBY / 111 BUCKINGHAM PALACE ROAD*
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Capital Dock 
In 2012, Kennedy Wilson and its equity partner acquired a loan secured by a 
Class A office building leased to State Street Bank and the adjacent three acre 
site at Sir Rogerson’s Quay in Dublin, Ireland. At acquisition, the undeveloped 
three acre site had minimal allocated cost basis. Kennedy Wilson and its equity 
partner took title to both the building and the adjacent land in 2013 with the 
site assembly finalized at the end of 2014 following the completion of a joint 
venture arrangement with NAMA. 

A New Vision
Spanning nearly five acres of prime waterfront space, Capital Dock is a one-
of-a-kind city campus in the heart of Dublin, Ireland. Built in a single phase, 
Capital Dock is expected to deliver 343,000 square feet of office space and 190 
high-quality residential units with signature amenities across three buildings, 
including a landmark 23-story tower marking the gateway to the city. 

Case Study: Value Creation

CAPITAL DOCK
DUBLIN, IRELAND

190

690,000

451,000

Q4-2017

Multifamily units

Total square feet

Gross commercial  
square feet

Delivery beginning from

Architectural rendering of  
completed development
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Clancy Quay
Clancy Quay is a high quality apartment community in Dublin, Ireland. 
Originally consisting of 423 multifamily units, Kennedy Wilson is currently 
developing an additional 176 units that are expected to be completed by 
the end of 2017, including the conservation and refurbishment of nine 
historic army barracks and the construction of four new blocks. A fi nal 
phase is currently in design which is expected to provide an additional 
240 units and 6,000 square feet of commercial space. 

176
Phase 2 units

2017
Phase 2 completion

240
Phase 3 units 

(in design) 

2019 
Phase 3 expected 

completion

Case Study: Value Creation CLANCY QUAY
DUBLIN, IRELAND

Acquired in 2013

Property type: Apartment

When completed in 2018, 
Clancy Quay is expected to 
provide 839 units making 
it one of Dublin’s largest 
apartment communities.



14 Kennedy Wilson Annual Report 2016  Kennedy Wilson Annual Report 2016 15

During our 29 year history, Kennedy Wilson has cultivated a powerful global 
network of relationships which creates an exclusive pipeline of investment 
opportunities. We have successfully transacted with and/or provided real estate 
services to numerous banks, agencies, insurance companies, and strategic 
capital partners, including:

Global Network of Relationships BAGGOT PLAZA
DUBLIN, IRELAND

Acquired in 2014 by KWE

Redevelopment completed 
in 2016

Fully leased to the Bank of 
Ireland on a 25-year lease

AVIVA / BANK OF AMERICA / BANK OF CHINA / BANK OF IRELAND /
BANK OF UTAH / BB&T / BBVA COMPASS / CAIXABANK / CALIFORNIA 
BANK & TRUST / CITIBANK / CITY NATIONAL BANK / DEUTSCHE BANK 
/ EAST WEST BANK / EVERBANK / FAIRFAX FINANCIAL HOLDINGS 
LIMITED / FANNIE MAE / FIFTH THIRD BANK / FIRST INTERSTATE BANK 
/ FREDDIE MAC / GREAT WESTERN INSURANCE / GUGGENHEIM LIFE / 
JPMORGAN CHASE / KEYBANK / LEFRAK ORGANIZATION / LINCOLN 
BENEFIT LIFE / MERIDIAN BANK / METLIFE / PACIFIC WESTERN BANK /
 PRUDENTIAL / ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND / TAKENAKA CORPORATION 
/ US BANK / WELLS FARGO
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Leveraging Our Local Presence

At the core of our business is making sound investment decisions. Our success 
is rooted in having local investment teams who have regional expertise and 
deep industry relationships in each investment market. We now have over 500 
people in fi ve different countries representing each part of the business. 

Our investment professionals, many of who have been transacting in real 
estate for decades, have long-standing relationships with local brokers, 
agents, capital providers, and other real estate investment fi rms. This often 
leads to off-market opportunities, where we can make quick investment 
decisions leveraging both our in-depth market knowledge and operational 
experience. Our global investment teams work hard to fi nd the best 
opportunities in each market, all working towards delivering attractive 
shareholder returns.

Regional Expertise 
Drives Investment Return

505
Employees 
create a 
diverse and 
experienced 
team

Our boots-on-the-ground teams, who have in-depth local 
knowledge in the regions in which they invest, are constantly 
performing diligence on a steady fl ow of real estate opportunities 
across many countries and real estate product types. 

Global Investment Teams 

Seattle, 
Washington

Los Angeles, California

Kona, 
Hawaii

Dublin, 
Ireland London, UK

Madrid, 
Spain Tokyo, 

Japan

San Francisco, 
California



18 Kennedy Wilson Annual Report 2016

Our Portfolio
Kennedy Wilson has established a deep footprint in the state of 
Washington, attracted by its diverse set of high growth companies and 
a thriving multifaceted economy. Our team has been transacting in 
Washington for almost a decade, allowing us to leverage local relationships 
and operational expertise in evaluating new potential opportunities.

Why Washington
Washington State and its largest metropolitan 
area, Seattle, consistently outperform the 
United States in all major economic and 
demographic indicators. As a whole, this metro 
area of the Pacifi c Northwest possesses stronger 
employment, income, and population growth than 
the U.S. average. The area’s high concentration 
of educated workers helps facilitate this growth 
and is a primary reason why wages in the area 
are already one-third higher than the U.S. median. 
The region is expected to continue to grow faster 
than the overall U.S. economy, buoyed by the 
major presence of high tech fi rms.

Top Employers*

Costco Wholesale Corporation

Amazon.com

Microsoft Corporation

Starbucks Corporation

PACCAR Inc.

Nordstrom

Weyerhaeuser Company

Expedia

Alaska Air Group

Boeing, Inc.

University of Washington

Group Health Cooperative

Our Footprint in Washington

Diversi�cation by 
Geography
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SEATTLE

Equinox

Harrington 
Square

Eastgate

Multifamily

Commercial

As of March 31, 2017

Washington 
Property Map
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Case Study: Regional Expertise

EQUINOX

146,000
Number of households 

Seattle is expected to 
add from 2017-2021*

10,430
Apartment Units

840,000
Commercial sq. ft.

2008
First acquisition 

in Washington

*Source: CoStar Portfolio Strategy
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THE SHELBOURNE HOTEL
DUBLIN, IRELAND

265 room fi ve-star 
hotel

Financial Report 
2016



Financial Report 
2016
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Company Overview

Kennedy Wilson is a global real estate investment company.  

We own, operate, and invest in real estate both on our own 

and through our investment management platform.  We 

focus on multifamily and commercial properties located in 

the Western United States, United Kingdom, Ireland and to 

a lesser extent Spain, Italy and Japan. To complement our 

investment business, the Company also provides real estate 

services primarily to financial services clients.

Our value is primarily derived from our ownership 

in income producing real estate assets. We have an 

ownership interest in approximately 39 million square feet 

of property globally, including 25,943 multifamily rental 

units. In addition to our core income producing real estate, 

we engage in development, redevelopment and value 

add initiatives through which we enhance cash flows or 

reposition asset to increase sale value. Additionally, our 

investment management and property services business 

(“IMRES”) manages approximately $17 billion of IMRES 

AUM, the majority of which we have an ownership interest 

in and the balance we manage for third parties.

We have over 500 employees in 25 offices throughout the 

United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Jersey, Spain, 

Italy and Japan and manage and work with approximately 

6,000 operating associates. 

The following is our business model:

• Identify countries and markets with an attractive 

investment landscape

• Establish operating platforms in our target markets

• Develop local intelligence and create long-lasting 

relationships, primarily with financial institutions

• Leverage relationships and local knowledge to drive 

proprietary investment opportunities with a focus on 

off-market transactions that we expect will result in 

above average cash flows and returns over the long 

term

• Acquire high quality assets, either on our own or with 

strategic partners, utilizing cash from our balance sheet 

(funded by cash flows from operations, refinancing of 

current investments, investments sales or the sale of 

equity or debt securities) and typically financing them 

on a long-term basis 

• Reposition assets to enhance cash flows post-

acquisition

• Explore development opportunities on underutilized 

portions of assets, primarily excess land with little or no 

basis that is adjacent to income producing properties

• Continuously evaluate and selectively harvest asset and 

entity value through strategic realizations utilizing both 

the public and private markets

• Utilize our services businesses to meet client needs, 

strengthen relationships with financial institutions, and 

position us as a valuable resource and partner to these 

institutions for any future real estate opportunities

Since going public on November 13, 2009 through 

December 31, 2016, the annualized total rate of return 

(including dividends) of our common stock (NYSE: KW) 

was 12.4%, compared to the return of the S&P 500 index 

of 12.9%. Past stock price performance is not necessarily 

indicative of future stock price performance. 
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Business (continued)

The table below highlights some of the Company’s performance metrics over the past five years:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Statements of operations data and dividends:

Revenue $ 703.4 $ 603.7 $ 398.6 $ 123.1 $ 66.9

Net income (loss) to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc. common shareholders 2.8 71.1 13.8 (14.5) (3.9)

Basic (loss) income per share 0.01 0.66 0.14 (0.21) (0.07)

Dividends declared per share of common stock 0.56 0.48 0.36 0.28 0.20

Adjusted EBITDA(1) 349.9 371.2 317.8 159.1 97.4

Adjusted EBITDA annual (decrease) increase (6)% 17% 100% 63%

Adjusted Fees(1) 108.9 158.2 121.0 72.4 55.7

Adjusted Fees annual increase (decrease) (31)% 31% 67% 30%

As of December 31,

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Balance sheet data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 885.7 $ 731.6 $ 937.7 $ 178.2 $ 120.9

Total assets 7,659.1 7,595.6 6,297.6 1,786.8 1,270.4

Investment debt 3,956.1 3,627.5 2,175.7 400.2 234.2

Unsecured corporate debt 936.6 688.8 813.1 438.6 438.4

Kennedy Wilson equity 1,048.0 1,133.8 901.1 768.3 509.7

Noncontrolling interests 1,295.1 1,731.3 2,142.8 50.6 9.1

Total equity 2,343.1 2,865.1 3,043.9 818.9 518.8

Common shares outstanding 115.7 114.5 96.1 82.6 63.8

(1)  See Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions-Non-GAAP measures” for a description of Adjusted EBITDA and adjusted fees and a reconciliation of these metrics to net income as reported 
under GAAP.

Business Segments

Our operations are defined by two core business units: KW 

Investments and KW Investment Management and Real 

Estate Services (IMRES).

• KW Investments invests our capital in real estate-related 

assets. 

• IMRES encompasses our fee-generating businesses and 

includes both our investment management platform 

as well as our third party services business. These 

businesses offer a comprehensive line of real estate 

services for the full lifecycle of real estate ownership 

to clients that include shareholders of KWE, financial 

institutions, institutional investors, insurance companies, 

developers, builders and government agencies. IMRES 

has five main lines of business: investment management, 

property services, research, brokerage, and auction and 

conventional sales. 

Our segments have a symbiotic relationship and work 

closely together. IMRES plays a critical role in supporting 

our investment strategy by providing local market 

intelligence and real-time data for evaluating investments, 

generating proprietary transaction flow and creating value 

through efficient implementation of asset management or 

repositioning strategies. KW Investments provides clients 

the ability to utilize the capabilities of IMRES.

KW Investments

We invest our capital in real estate assets and loans secured 

by real estate either on our own or through our investment 

management platform. When we have partners, we are 

typically the general partner in the arrangement with a 

promoted interest in the profits of our investments beyond 

our ownership percentage. The Company has an average 

ownership interest across all investments of approximately 

42% as of December 31, 2016. Our equity partners include 

public shareholders, financial institutions, foundations, 

endowments, high net worth individuals and other 

institutional investors.

The following are product types we invest in through the 

KW Investments segment:

Multifamily—We pursue multifamily acquisition 

opportunities where we believe we can unlock value 

through a myriad of strategies, including institutional 

management, asset rehabilitation, repositioning and 

creative recapitalization. We focus primarily on apartments 

in supply-constrained, infill markets. Additionally, through 

our Vintage Housing Holdings (“VHH”) partnership, we also 

utilize low-income housing tax credit (“LIHTC”) structures 

for income and age restricted properties. As of December 31, 

2016, we hold investments in 25,943 multifamily apartment 

units across 141 properties primarily located in the Western 

United States, Ireland, United Kingdom and Japan. 

Commercial—We source, acquire, and finance various types 

of commercial real estate which includes office, industrial, 

retail, and mixed-use assets. After acquisition, the properties 

are generally repositioned to enhance market value. Assets 

are either sold as part of property-specific investment 

strategies designed to deliver above-market returns to our 

clients and shareholders or held if producing above average 

cash flows. As of December 31, 2016, we hold investments 

in 258 commercial properties, totaling over 18.1 million 

square feet, located throughout the United States, United 

Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and Italy. 

Loan Originations/Discounted Loan Purchases—We 

acquire and/or originate loans secured by real estate. Our 

acquisitions and originations include individual notes 

on all real estate property types as well as portfolios of 

loans purchased from financial institutions, corporations 

and government agencies. We deliver value through loan 

resolutions, discounted payoffs, and sales. We also convert 

certain loans into a direct ownership in the underlying real 

estate collateral. Our discounted loan pool portfolio as of 

December 31, 2016 had a current unpaid principal balance 

(“UPB”) of $217.3 million. 

Our loan investment portfolio is principally related to 

loans acquired at a discount from their contractual balance 

due as a result of deteriorated credit quality of the borrower. 

Such loans are underwritten by us based on the value of 

the underlying real estate collateral. Due to the discounted 

purchase price, we seek and are generally able to accomplish 

near term realization of the loan in a cash settlement or by 

obtaining title to the property. Accordingly, the credit quality 

of the borrower is not of substantial importance to our 

evaluation of the risk of recovery from the investment.

Hotel—We acquire hotels in certain opportunistic situations 

in which we are able to purchase at a discount to replacement 

cost or can implement our value-add investment approach.

Residential and Other—In certain cases, we may pursue for 

sale housing acquisition opportunities, including land for 

entitlements, finished lots, urban infill housing sites and 

partially finished and finished housing projects. On certain 

income-producing acquisitions, there are adjacent land 

parcels to which we assign little or no basis and for which 

we may pursue entitlement activities or, in some cases, 

development or re-development opportunities.

Cash, marketable securities, and net hedge asset—This 

group includes our share of consolidated property level 

cash, marketable securities, and hedges on the Company’s 

investments and our share of hedges held by KWE on its 

euro denominated investments.

While our core investments have been in the specific 

markets and locations listed above, we will evaluate 

opportunities to earn above market returns across many 

other segments and geographic locations.

Investment account

The investment account represents the Company’s 

carrying value of equity invested before depreciation and 

amortization. In 2016, together with our equity partners, we 

acquired $1.4 billion (Kennedy Wilson’s share was $620.7 

million) of real estate and loans secured by real estate at 

purchase price. These acquisitions were comprised of 

the following: 56% multifamily, 43% commercial, and 1% 

residential and other. 

At December 31, 2016, we and our equity partners held a 

real estate and real estate related investment portfolio with 

assets at a book value of approximately $10.6 billion, with 

approximately 62% leverage to depreciated book value. The 

Company has an average ownership interest across all of its 

investments of approximately 42% as of December 31, 2016. 

Included in our Western U.S. portfolio are six residential 

investments including Kohanaiki, Kona Village Resort, and a 

loan investment in Hawaii. Our investment account balance 

for our Hawaiian investments is $173.4 million.

The Company’s investment account increased during the 

year primarily due to the Company’s increased ownership in 

KWE which led to a decrease in noncontrolling interest. The 

investment account also increased due to new joint venture 

investments and higher cash balances at consolidated 

properties. These increases were offset by resolutions of 

loans, increased leverage on properties and hedge losses 

on hedges at KWE. Noncontrolling interest decreased 

during the year due to $269.9 million in net distributions 

relating to the Company’s acquisition of KWE shares, the 

Company’s acquisition of noncontrolling interest from 

consolidated entities, distributions relating to property sales, 

and investing distributions from debt refinancings. Foreign 

currency translation and hedge losses also decreased 

noncontrolling interests by $237.2 million. 
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The following table depicts how our equity in the portfolio is derived from the financial statement captions in our audited 

consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016 and 2015:

(dollars in millions)

December 31, 
2016

December 31, 
2015

Real estate and acquired in-place lease values, gross of accumulated depreciation and amortization of  
 $374.2 and $248.5, respectively $ 6,188.5 $ 6,046.0

Loan purchases and originations 87.7 299.7

Investment debt (3,956.1) (3,627.5)

Cash held by consolidated investments 625.5 549.0

Unconsolidated investments(1), gross of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $52.3 and $55.8,  
 respectively

596.5 487.8

Net hedge (liability) asset (47.0) 15.2

Other(2) 51.0 19.9

Consolidated investment account 3,546.1 3,790.1

Less:

  Noncontrolling interests on investments, gross of depreciation and amortization of $168.3 and $116.5,  
 respectively (1,463.4) (1,847.8)

Investment account $ 2,082.7 $ 1,942.3

(1)  Excludes $15.9 million and $12.9 million related to our investment in a servicing platform in Spain, as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 
respectively.

(2) Includes marketable securities, which are part of other assets, as well as net other assets of consolidated investments.

The following table breaks down our investment account information derived from the audited consolidated balance sheet, 

by investment type and geographic location as of December 31, 2016:

(dollars in millions) Multifamily Commercial

Loans  
Secured by  
Real Estate

Residential  
and Other Hotel Total

Western U.S. $ 562.9 $ 310.7 $ 12.4 $ 247.8 $   92.3 $ 1,226.1

United Kingdom 5.7 66.1 — — — 71.8

Ireland 67.1 63.1 — — 79.6 209.8

Japan 6.1 — — — — 6.1

Cash, marketable securities, and net hedge asset 123.6

Total excluding KWE $ 641.8 $ 439.9 $ 12.4 $ 247.8 $ 171.9 $ 1,637.4

KWE:

United Kingdom 8.8 176.7 4.6 — 4.2 194.3

Ireland 15.0 64.9 2.1 — 3.7 85.7

Italy — 18.4 — — — 18.4

Spain — 28.6 — 1.1 — 29.7

Other(1) 117.2

Total KWE $   23.8 $ 288.6 $   6.7 $     1.1 $     7.9 $    445.3

Grand Total $ 665.6 $ 728.5 $ 19.1 $ 248.9 $ 179.8 $ 2,082.7

(1)  Consists of $133.0 million of KW’s share of cash and $(15.8) million of KW’s share of hedges. KW’s share of KWE’s unsecured debt has been allocated 
to unencumbered KWE investments. 

The following table breaks down our investment account information derived from the audited consolidated balance sheet, 

by investment type and geographic location as of December 31, 2015:

(dollars in millions) Multifamily Commercial

Loans 
Secured by 
Real Estate

Residential 
and Other Hotel Total

Western U.S. $ 515.4 $ 270.6 $   66.4 $ 269.9 $   34.7 $ 1,157.0

United Kingdom 11.2 83.8 0.6 1.8 — 97.4

Ireland 41.0 32.3 — 31.8 72.4 177.5

Japan 5.8 4.2 — 0.3 — 10.3

Cash and net hedge asset 68.2

Total excluding KWE $ 573.4 $ 390.9 $   67.0 $ 303.8 $ 107.1 $ 1,510.4

KWE:

United Kingdom 9.9 221.6 34.4 8.4 7.7 282.0

Ireland 9.8 52.4 3.5 6.0 4.4 76.1

Spain — 7.3 — 2.6 — 9.9

Italy — 8.7 — — — 8.7

Cash and net hedge asset 55.2

Total KWE $   19.7 $ 290.0 $   37.9 $   17.0 $   12.1 $ 431.9

Grand Total $ 593.1 $ 680.9 $ 104.9 $ 320.8 $ 119.2 $ 1,942.3

(1)  Consists of $55.3 million of KW’s share of cash and $(0.1) million of KW’s share of hedges. KW’s share of KWE’s unsecured debt has been allocated 
to unencumbered KWE investments. 

KW Investment Management and Real Estate Services 

(IMRES)

IMRES includes both our investment management platform 

as well as our third party services business and offers a 

comprehensive line of real estate services for the full lifecycle 

of real estate ownership to clients that include shareholders 

of KWE, financial institutions, institutional investors, 

insurance companies, developers, builders and government 

agencies. IMRES has five main lines of business: investment 

management, property services, research, brokerage, and 

auction and conventional sales. These five business lines 

generate revenue for us through fees and commissions.

We manage approximately 59 million square feet of 

properties for the Company and its investment partners 

(including KWE) in the United States, Europe, and Asia, 

which includes assets we have ownership interests in and 

third party owned assets. With 25 offices throughout the 

United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Jersey, Spain, 

Italy and Japan, we have the capabilities and resources 

to provide property services to real estate owners as well 

as the experience, as a real estate investor, to understand 

client concerns. The managers of IMRES have an extensive 

track record in their respective lines of business and in the 

real estate community as a whole. Their knowledge and 

relationships are an excellent driver of business through the 

services business as well as on the investment front.

Additionally, IMRES plays a critical role in supporting 

our investment strategy by providing local market 

intelligence and real-time data for evaluating investments, 

generating proprietary transaction flow and creating value 

through efficient implementation of asset management or 

repositioning strategies.

Investment Management—Our investment management 

platform utilizes a number of different investment vehicles 

for which we provide acquisition, asset management 

and financing, and other investment-related services, 

and typically includes a co-investment from us. We 

usually provide investment management services on our 

consolidated investment portfolio as well as investments 

with strategic partners many of whom have separate 

account agreements with us. Through our fund management 

business we have five closed end funds for which we seek to 

generate attractive, risk adjusted returns.

KWE

In 2014, we launched KWE, a closed end fund on the London 

Stock Exchange that specializes in investing in real estate 

and real estate related assets in Europe. We are the largest 

shareholder of KWE (23.6% as of December 31, 2016) and 

also externally manage it through one of our wholly-owned 

subsidiaries, whom we refer to as KWE Manager, pursuant 

to an investment management agreement whereby we are 

entitled to receive certain management and performance fees.

Commingled funds—We have five closed end funds 

that we manage and from which we receive investment 

Business (continued)
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management fees. Most recently, we completed fund-

raising for our fifth value-add fund, Kennedy Wilson Fund 

V, a $500 million private fund targeting the Western U.S. 

We are the largest investor in the fund with a 12% interest. 

As of December 31, 2016, Fund V had a portfolio of 15 

investments with an aggregate purchase price of $788.9 

million, with $175.0 million of undrawn commitments.

Separate accounts—We have a few strategic equity 

partners that have separate account agreements with us. 

As part of the agreement we act as the general partner and 

receive investment management fees including potential 

performance fees.

Property Services—Our property services division manages 

commercial real estate for third-party clients, fund investors, 

and investments held by Kennedy Wilson. In addition to 

earning property management fees, consulting fees, leasing 

commissions, construction management fees, disposition 

fees, and accounting fees, the property services division 

gives us insight into local markets and potential acquisitions. 

Leveraging over 39 years of real estate experience, we 

approach property management from the perspective of 

an owner and are active in identifying and implementing 

value creation strategies. The division has a proven track 

record of success in managing stabilized as well as value-

add investments. 

Research—Meyers Research (“Meyers”), a Kennedy Wilson 

company, is a premier consulting practice and provider 

of data for residential real estate development and new 

home construction industry. Meyers’ offers a national 

perspective as well as local expertise to homebuilders, 

multifamily developers, lenders and financial institutions. 

These relationships have led to investment opportunities 

with homebuilders in the Western U.S. region. We believe 

Zonda™, a Meyers innovation launched in October 2013, 

is the housing industry’s most comprehensive solution for 

smart business analysis, real-time market data reporting 

and economic and housing data in one place and on-the-go.

Brokerage—Our brokerage division represents tenants and 

landlords on every aspect of site selection, negotiation 

and occupancy. The division also specializes in innovative 

marketing programs tailored to client objectives for all types 

of investment grade and income producing real estate. The 

division’s property marketing programs combine proven 

techniques with its detailed market knowledge to create 

optimum results.

Auction and Conventional Sales—The auction and 

conventional sales division provides innovative marketing 

and sales strategies for all types of commercial and 

residential real estate, including single family homes, 

mixed-use developments, estate homes, multifamily 

dwellings, new home projects, and conversions. Generally, 

the division’s auction sales business is countercyclical 

to the traditional sales real estate market and has been a 

bellwether for us in forecasting market conditions.

Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Plc (LSE: KWE)

KWE closed its initial public offering in February 2014 and a 

follow-on offering in October 2014, raising an aggregate of 

approximately $2.2 billion in gross proceeds. KWE, whose 

ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange’s 

main market and who is a member of the FTSE 250 Index, 

acquires real estate and real estate-related assets in Europe. 

As of December 31, 2016, KWE had 223 real estate assets 

with approximately 11.6 million square feet and totaling 

$3.6 billion in portfolio value (primarily located in the U.K. 

and Ireland), which KWE currently expects to produce 

over $200 million of annualized net operating income (net 

rental income for property portfolios, EBITDA for hotels and 

interest income for loan portfolios). As of December 31, 

2016, Kennedy Wilson owned approximately 29.8 million 

ordinary shares of KWE or approximately 23.6% of the total 

issued share capital of KWE. 

KWE is externally managed by one of our wholly-owned 

subsidiaries whom we refer to as KWE Manager pursuant 

to an investment management agreement whereby we are 

entitled to receive certain management and performance 

fees. KWE Manager is entitled to an annual management 

fee (payable quarterly in arrears) equal to 1% of KWE’s 

adjusted net asset value (reported by KWE to be $1.9 billion 

at December 31, 2016) and certain performance fees. The 

management fee payable to KWE Manager is paid half in cash 

and half in shares of KWE. During the year ended December 

31, 2016, KWH earned $22.2 million in management fees.

We are also entitled to receive an annual performance fee 

equal to 20% of the lesser of (i) the excess of the shareholder 

return for the relevant year (defined as the change in KWE’s 

adjusted net asset value per ordinary share plus dividends 

paid) over a 10% annual return hurdle, and (ii) the excess of 

year-end adjusted net asset value per ordinary share over 

a “high water mark.” The performance fee is payable in 

shares of KWE that vest equally over a three-year period. 

The Company has not accrued an annual performance fee 

for the year ended December 31, 2016. During the first 

quarter of 2016, $41.2 million of performance fees relating 

to 2015 were paid to Kennedy Wilson in shares of KWE. 

The compensation committee of our board of directors 

approved and reserved up to thirty percent (30%) of any 

performance fees earned by us to be allocated to certain 

employees. As of December 31, 2016, awards representing 

approximately twenty-five percent (25%) of the performance 

fees have been allocated to certain employees through 

individual award letters. The award letters provide that 

the employee’s right to receive the RSUs is subject the 

employee’s continued employment with us through the 

applicable grant date, and that upon a termination of the 

employee’s employment for any reason, the employee will 

have no right to receive further RSU awards. Each award 

letter, and the employee’s right to receive future RSU 

awards, may be amended or terminated at any time by us in 

our discretion without the employee’s consent or approval, 

and we may, in our discretion, reduce or otherwise modify 

the employee’s award percentage (including a reduction to 

0%) at any time. We granted 30% of the performance fees 

that we received for our management of KWE in 2015 as 

equity-based compensation to certain of our employees 

in the form of restricted stock units that vest over a three-

year period. Until and unless the restricted stock units vest, 

we will continue to own the underlying KWE shares. As 

mentioned above, we have agreed, pursuant to individual 

award letters, to allocate 25% of any future performance fees 

similarly to such employees, subject to certain conditions 

but the compensation committee may grant the remaining 

5% to our employees in the future. 

Due to the terms of the investment management 

agreement and Kennedy Wilson’s equity ownership 

interest in KWE, pursuant to the guidance set forth in 

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 810 - 

Consolidation (“Subtopic 810”), the results and financial 

position of KWE are consolidated in our financial statements. 

As such, fees earned by KWE Manager are eliminated in the 

attached consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to 

the investment management agreement, subject to certain 

exceptions, KWE will be provided priority access to all real 

estate or real estate loan opportunities sourced by us in 

Europe that are within the parameters of KWE’s investment 

policy. Compensation and certain general and administrative 

expenses relating to KWE is borne by Kennedy Wilson as 

employees of the Company work on behalf of KWE Manager.

Business (continued)

The following condensed financial statements show KWE’s financial position and results of operations in the context of the 

Company’s consolidated financial statements as a whole:

As of December 31, 2016 (unaudited)

(dollars in millions) KWE Non-KWE(1)(4) Elimination Total KWH

Cash(2) $ 563.7 $     322.0 $        — $      885.7

Accounts receivable 25.3 46.0 — 71.3

Loan purchases and originations 75.3 12.4 — 87.7

Real estate and acquired in place lease values, net of accumulated  
 depreciation and amortization(3) 2,959.5 2,854.7 — 5,814.2

Investment in marketable securities — 404.4 (404.4) —

Unconsolidated investments — 560.1 — 560.1

Other assets 191.6 48.5 — 240.1

Total assets $ 3,815.4 $  4,248.1 $ (404.4) $   7,659.1

Accounts payable $ 4.4 $         6.8 $        — $        11.2

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 236.1 176.0 — 412.1

Investment debt 2,069.6 1,886.5 — 3,956.1

Senior notes payable — 936.6 — 936.6

Total liabilities $ 2,310.1 $  3,005.9 $        — $   5,316.0

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc. shareholders’ equity $ 450.0 $  1,231.4 $ (450.0) $   1,231.4

Accumulated other comprehensive income (45.6) (183.4) 45.6 (183.4)

Noncontrolling interests 1,100.9 194.2 — 1,295.1

Total equity $ 1,505.3 $  1,242.2 $ (404.4) $   2,343.1

Total liabilities and equity $ 3,815.4 $  4,248.1 $ (404.4) $   7,659.1

(1) Consists of investments that are consolidated in our financial statements and investments that are held through joint ventures.
(2) Includes cash and cash equivalents and cash held by consolidated investments.
(3) Includes $179.5 million and $194.8 million of accumulated depreciation and amortization for KWE and Non-KWE, respectively.
(4) Includes $834.4 million of total assets and $269.1 million of equity in European investments we made prior to KWE’s formation.
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Year Ended December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions) KWE Non-KWE
Fee  

Elimination(1) Total KWH

Revenue

Rental $   257.1 $  228.8 $        — $   485.9

Hotel 26.2 90.0 — 116.2

Sale of real estate 12.6 16.7 — 29.3

Investment management, property services and research fees — 81.6 (22.2) 59.4

Dividend income — 18.2 (18.2) —

Loan purchases, loan originations and other 11.4 1.2 — 12.6

  Total revenue 307.3 436.5 (40.4) 703.4

Operating expenses

Commission and marketing — 8.0 — 8.0

Rental operating 53.3 82.1 — 135.4

Hotel operating 24.3 72.0 — 96.3

Cost of real estate sold 9.0 13.1 — 22.1

Compensation and related 0.9 185.6 — 186.5

General and administrative 11.0 34.4 — 45.4

Depreciation and amortization 109.3 88.9 — 198.2

  Total operating expenses 207.8 484.1 — 691.9

Income from unconsolidated investments — 126.6 — 126.6

  Operating income 99.5 79.0 (40.4) 138.1

Non-operating income (expense) —

Gain on sale of real estate 86.5 44.2 — 130.7

Acquisition-related gains — 16.2 — 16.2

Acquisition-related expenses (6.6) (2.9) — (9.5)

Interest expense-investment (77.2) (60.2) — (137.4)

Interest expense-corporate — (54.2) — (54.2)

Management fee (22.2) — 22.2 —

Other income 1.1 5.5 — 6.6

  Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 81.1 27.6 (18.2) 90.5

Provision for income taxes (5.0) (9.0) — (14.0)

  Net income (loss) $     76.1 $    18.6 $   (18.2) $     76.5

(1)  Only relates to fee elimination associated with the Company’s investment in KWE. The Company has additional fees eliminated in consolidation 
associated with other equity partners.

Legacy European Investments

Prior to KWE’s formation and for investments that do not meet 

KWE’s investment guidelines, the Company directly invested 

in 17 properties and a servicing platform in Spain that have 

total assets of $834.4 million included in the Company’s 

consolidated balance sheet and $269.1 million of equity as of 

December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s 

weighted average ownership in these investments was 63%. 

Value Creation

Kennedy Wilson’s differentiated and unique approach to 

investing is the cornerstone of how we create value for our 

shareholders. Our investment philosophy is based on three 

core fundamentals:

• Leverage our global footprint and complementary 

investments and services businesses to identify 

attractive investment markets across the world.

• Selectively invest in opportunities across many real 

estate product types with a goal of maximizing cash 

flow and return on capital.

• Actively manage assets and finance them conservatively 

in a manner designed to generate stable, predictable 

and growing cash flows for shareholders and clients.

Kennedy Wilson is able to create value for its shareholders 

in the following ways:

• We are able to identify and acquire attractive real 

estate assets across many markets, in part due to 

the significant proprietary deal flow driven from an 

established global network of industry relationships, 

particularly with financial institutions. This can create 

value by allowing us to maintain and develop a large 

pipeline of attractive opportunities. 

• Our operating expertise allows us to focus on opportunistic 

investments where we believe we can increase the value 

of assets and cash flows, such as distressed real estate 

owners or lenders seeking liquidity, under-managed or 

under-leased assets, and repositioning opportunities. 

• Many times, these investments are acquired at a 

discount to replacement cost or recent comparative 

sales, thereby offering opportunities to achieve above 

average total returns. In many cases, this may lead 

to significant additional returns, such as a promoted 

interest, based on the performance of the assets.

• In many instances, our long-lasting and deep 

relationships with financial institutions allow us to 

refinance loans to reduce interest rates and/or increase 

borrowings due to property appreciation and thereby 

obtain cash flow to use for new investments. We 

generally implement this strategy after our value add 

initiatives have been executed, thus allowing us to 

maintain moderate levels of leverage. 

• KW Investment Management and Real Estate Services 

(IMRES) plays a critical role in supporting our investment 

strategy by providing local market intelligence and 

real-time data for evaluating investments, generating 

proprietary transaction flow and creating value through 

efficient implementation of asset management or 

repositioning strategies. 

• We understand that real estate is cyclical. Our management 

team employs a multi-cyclical approach that has resulted 

in our IMRES AUM being globally diversified across 

many sectors of real estate while maintaining a healthy 

liquidity position and adequate access to capital.

Competitive Strengths

We have a unique platform from which to execute our investment 

and services strategy. The combination of an investment platform 

and a service business provides several competitive strengths 

when compared to other real estate buyers operating stand-

alone or investment-focused firms and may allow us to generate 

superior risk-adjusted returns. Our investment strategy focuses 

on investments that offer significant appreciation potential 

through intensive property management, leasing, repositioning, 

redevelopment and the opportunistic use of capital. We 

differentiate ourselves from other firms in the industry with our full 

service, investment oriented structure. Whereas most other firms 

use an investment platform to obtain additional service business 

revenue, we use our service platform to enhance the investment 

process and ensure the alignment of interests with our investors.

Our competitive strengths include:

• Transaction experience: Our Executive Committee has 

more than 125 years of combined real estate experience 

and has been working and investing together on average 

for over 15 years. Members of the Executive Committee 

have collectively acquired, developed and managed in 

excess of $20 billion of real estate investments in the 

United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain, Italy 

and Japan throughout various economic cycles, both at 

our Company and throughout their careers.

• Extensive relationship and sourcing network: We 

leverage our services business in order to source off-

market deals. In addition, the Executive Committee and 

our acquisition team have transacted deals in nearly 

every major metropolitan market on the West Coast of 

the United States, as well as in the United Kingdom, 

Ireland, Spain, Italy and Japan. Their local presence 

and reputation in these markets have enabled them 

to cultivate key relationships with major holders of 

property inventory, in particularly financial institutions, 

throughout the real estate community.

• Structuring expertise and speed of execution: Prior 

acquisitions completed by us have taken a variety of forms, 

including direct property investments, joint ventures, 

exchanges involving stock or operating partnership 

units, participating loans and investments in performing 

and non-performing mortgages at various capital stack 

positions with the objective of long-term ownership. We 

believe we have developed a reputation of being able to 

quickly execute, as well as originate and creatively structure 

acquisitions, dispositions and financing transactions.

• Vertically integrated platform for operational 

enhancement: We have over 500 employees in both 

KW Investments and IMRES, with 25 regional offices 

throughout the United States, the United Kingdom, 

Ireland, Spain, Jersey and Japan and manage and 

oversee approximately 6,000 operating associates. We 

have a hands-on approach to real estate investing and 

possess the local expertise in property management, 

leasing, construction management, development and 

investment sales, which we believe enable us to invest 

successfully in selected submarkets.

• Risk protection and investment discipline: We underwrite 

our investments based upon a thorough examination 

of property economics and a critical understanding of 

market dynamics and risk management strategies. We 

conduct an in-depth sensitivity analysis on each of our 

acquisitions. This analysis applies various economic 

scenarios that include changes to rental rates, absorption 

periods, operating expenses, interest rates, exit values 

and holding periods. We use this analysis to develop our 

disciplined acquisition strategies.

• Management’s alignment with shareholders: As of 

December 31, 2016 our directors and executive officers 

and their respective affiliates owned an aggregate of 

approximately 17% of the outstanding shares of our 

common stock. Due to management team’s ownership 

interest in the Company its interests are in alignment 

with common shareholders of the Company.
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The real estate business is cyclical. Real estate cycles are 

generally impacted by many factors, including availability of 

equity and debt capital, borrowing cost, rent levels, and asset 

values. Our strategy has resulted in a strong track record 

of creating both asset and entity value for the benefit of our 

shareholders and partners over these various real estate cycles.

Industry Overview

United States

The real estate market had another strong year in 2016. Real 

estate prices remained supported by historically low interest 

rates, strong demand from foreign investors, and the wide 

availability of capital. The year ended with the election of 

the 45th U.S. president and the second increase in short 

term interest rates by the Federal Reserve in over a decade.

The outlook for 2017 contains uncertainty related to the 

new administration’s policies and their effect on the global 

economy. Certain proposals, such as increased infrastructure 

spending and a reduction in corporate taxes, have the potential 

to increase GDP. While there is a higher expectation of further 

rate increases by the Federal Reserve in 2017, we believe the 

long-term fundamentals of the U.S. real estate market are still 

favorable due to an improving U.S. economy, record levels of 

institutional dry powder, and continued strong demand from 

foreign investors seeking U.S. investment opportunities.

United Kingdom

Market values and transaction volumes for UK properties as a 

whole fell during the year driven by the UK’s referendum vote 

to leave the European Union. In addition to the referendum 

vote passing there was an increase in stamp duty transactions 

of 1% that made closing transactions more expensive. The 

increased uncertainty coupled with a weakening pound to 

the US dollar and the euro led to declines in UK based stocks 

especially those in the real estate sector.

Office and retail sectors were the most impacted by the UK 

referendum while industrial assets, well let prime areas and 

smaller lot sizes improved or held steady during the year. The 

industrial sector continues to benefit from increased leasing 

activity relating to structural shifts away from bricks and 

mortar retail to online shopping. The Central London office 

market continued to hold up despite initial uncertainty post 

the UK referendum vote. Leasing activity was in line with the 

10-year average, although below 2015 peak numbers.

Ireland

Dublin remains on track to benefit from potential job 

relocations from companies seeking to realign their 

geographic footprint after the UK referendum. A number of 

UK based financial services firms have already announced 

that they have either settled on Dublin as their new EU base, 

or are seriously considering it. Office vacancies especially 

in prime Dublin areas have continued to decrease with 

rental rates increasing as a result. Due to increasing rental 

rates and low vacancies the Dublin suburban office market 

has seen increased interest which has helped drive higher 

rents in the sector as well. The Irish economy continues to 

outperform, with unemployment down which has led to 

increased consumer spending and new entrants as well as 

expansions within the retail sector

Multifamily properties have seen increasing rental rates as 

higher demand from strong employment has outpaced new 

supply coming online. As a result of the continued rental 

increases, the Irish Government imposed a 4% rental cap 

on ‘rent pressure zones’ for a period of three years starting 

in December 2016. This relates to areas where rents have 

increased 7% or more in four of the last six quarters and in 

the first instance impacts the Dublin market.

The Finance Bill 2016 introduced a new 20% withholding tax in 

relation to Irish Real Estate Funds (“IREFs”) from January 1, 2017. 

The definition of an IREF would include our Qualifying Investor 

Alternative Investment Funds (“QIAIFs”). The withholding tax 

applies to distributions of profits from an IREF with the exception 

of gains on the sale of investment property held for at least five 

years. We anticipate that the market will digest these new rules 

over the course of the 2017 before being able to fully assess the 

impact. We remain long-term investors in Ireland and continue 

to have ambitions to grow the business in this market further.

Spain

Spain’s economy continues to improve with 12 consecutive 

quarters of growth. After almost a year without a government, 

the newly formed Partido Popular minority government has been 

in place since November 2016. Political uncertainty has started to 

wane and Spain is set to achieve one of the faster growth rates in 

the Eurozone this year, according to the Bank of Spain.

Investment volumes for 2016 have increased and have 

exceeding their 2007 peak. Yields remain at historic lows 

and for prime CBD offices and prime high street shops 

and are being pushed down further by continued levels of 

institutional demand.

Continued recovery in employment, low inflation and a 

record number of tourists have all positively contributed to 

this improvement have led to increased retail sales. This 

strong retail activity continues to fuel our retail portfolio. 

We are seeing positive signs that the high street retail 

occupational and investment market in central Madrid is 

picking up momentum. Against this backdrop, current rents 

continue to sit significantly below prior cycles, and we 

expect rental increases across the sector as a whole.

Italy

The Italian economy continues its steady, albeit moderate, 

growth. Following the outcome of the constitutional 

referendum and the resignation of the Prime Minister in 

December 2016, a caretaker government was formed with 

new elections likely in 2017, or 2018 at the latest. One of the 

new government’s first acts was to approve up to €20 billion 

in capital to support the troubled banking sector which 

should help banks clean up their balance sheets.

Despite the political instability, the investment market 

continued to improve with total transaction volume 

increasing over the prior year. While the investment market 

continues to be dominated by international investors, 

domestic investors have become significantly more active, 

bringing additional liquidity to the market.

Investor focus continues to be on the office market, 

particularly Milan, where absorption of vacant space has 

increased over 10-year average helping generate increases 

in prime office rents. The Rome market is also improving with 

increased lease activity over the prior year with prime rents 

in the CBD and EUR submarkets increasing over the prior 

year. The ongoing improvement in both the occupational 

and investment markets should positively affect our Rome 

and Milan office assets, which account for a combined 60% 

of our Italian portfolio, by value.

Competition

We compete with a range of global, national and local real 

estate firms, individual investors and other corporations, both 

private and public. Because of our unique mix of investments 

and services businesses, we compete with companies that 

invest in real estate and loans secured by real estate along 

with brokerage and property management companies. Our 

investment business competes with real estate investment 

partnerships, real estate investments trusts, private equity 

firms and other investment companies and regional investors 

and developers. We believe that our relationships with the 

sellers and our ability to close an investment transaction 

in a short time period at competitive pricing provide us a 

competitive advantage. The real estate services business is 

both highly fragmented and competitive. We compete with 

real estate brokerage and auction companies on the basis 

of our relationship with property owners, quality of service, 

and commissions charged. We compete with property 

management and leasing firms also on the basis of our 

relationship with clients, the range and quality of services 

provided, and fees and commissions charged.

Foreign Currency

Approximately 36% of our investment account is invested 

through our foreign platforms in their local currencies. 

Investment level debt is generally incurred in local currencies 

and we consider our equity investment as the appropriate 

exposure to evaluate for hedging purposes. Fluctuations in 

foreign exchanges rates may have a significant impact on 

the results of our operations. In order to manage the effect 

of these fluctuations, we generally hedge our book equity 

exposure to foreign currencies through currency forward 

contracts and options. We typically hedge 50%-100% of 

book equity exposure against these foreign currencies.

Transaction-based Results

A significant portion of our cash flow is tied to transaction 

activity which can affect an investor’s ability to compare 

our financial condition and results of operations on a 

quarter-by-quarter basis or to easily evaluate the breadth 

of our operation. Historically, this variability has caused 

our revenue, operating income, net income and cash flows 

to be tied to transaction activity, which is not necessarily 

concentrated in any one quarter. In addition, our operating 

results can be affected by non-cash acquisition-related 

gains, which often can cause concentrated gain recognition 

in particular periods. While acquisition related gains can 

have a material result on our net income, because it arises 

from the remeasurement of asset value, it does not affect 

operating income or cash flow.

Employees

As of December 31, 2016, we have over 500 employees in 25 

offices throughout the United States, the United Kingdom, 

Ireland, Spain, Jersey, Italy and Japan and manage and 

oversee approximately 6,000 operating associates. We 

believe that we have been able to attract and maintain 

high quality employees. There are no employees subject to 

collective bargaining agreements. In addition, we believe 

we have a good relationship with our employees. 

Available Information

Information about us is available on our website (http://www.

kennedywilson.com) (this website address is not intended 

to function as a hyperlink, and the information contained 

in, or accessible from, our website is not intended to be a 

part of this filing). We make available on our website, free of 

charge, copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly 

Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, Proxy 

Statements on Schedule 14A and amendments to those 

reports and other statements filed or furnished pursuant to 

Section 13(a), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after 

filing or submitting such material electronically or otherwise 

furnishing it to the SEC. In addition, we have previously filed 

registration statements and other documents with the SEC. 

Any document we file may be inspected, without charge, 

at the SEC’s public reference room at 100 F Street NE, 

Washington, D.C. 20549 or at the SEC’s internet address at 

http://www.sec.gov (this website address is not intended to 

function as a hyperlink, and the information contained in, 

or accessible from, the SEC’s website is not intended to be 
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a part of this filing). Information related to the operation of 

the SEC’s public reference room may be obtained by calling 

the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions

“KWH,” “KW,” “Kennedy Wilson,” the “Company,” “we,” 

“our,” or “us” refers to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and 

its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The consolidated financial 

statements of the Company include the results of the 

Company’s consolidated subsidiaries (including KWE).

“KWE” refers to Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate plc, 

a London Stock Exchange-listed company that we externally 

manage through a wholly-owned subsidiary. In our capacity 

as external manager of KWE, we are entitled to receive 

certain (i) management fees equal to 1% of KWE’s adjusted 

net asset value (EPRA NAV), half of which are paid in cash 

and the remainder of which is paid are KWE shares; and (ii) 

performance fees, all of which are paid in KWE shares. In 

accordance with U.S. GAAP, the financial position and results of 

KWE are consolidated in our financial statements. We own an 

approximately 23.6% equity interest in KWE as of December 31, 

2016, and throughout this release and supplemental financial 

information, we refer to our pro-rata ownership stake (based 

on our 23.6% equity interest or weighted-average ownership 

interest during the period, as applicable) in investments made 

and held directly by KWE and its subsidiaries. 

“Acquisition-related gains” consist of non-cash gains 

recognized by the Company or its consolidated subsidiaries 

upon a GAAP -required fair value measurement due to a 

business combination. These gains are typically recognized 

when a loan is converted into consolidated real estate owned 

and the fair value of the underlying real estate at the time of 

conversion exceeds the basis in the previously held loan. 

These gains also arise when there is a change of control of 

an investment. The gain amount is based upon the fair value 

of the Company’s or its consolidated subsidiaries’ equity 

in the investment in excess of the carrying amount of the 

equity immediately preceding the change of control.

 “Adjusted EBITDA” represents net income attributable 

to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc., shareholders adjusted for 

our share of: i) investment interest expense, ii) corporate 

interest expense, iii) depreciation and amortization, iv) 

income taxes, v) share-based compensation expense, and 

vi) preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance 

costs. Please also see the reconciliation to GAAP in the 

Company’s supplemental financial information included in 

this release and also available at www.kennedywilson.com. 

Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA to analyze our 

business because it adjusts Net Income for items we believe 

do not accurately reflect the nature of our business going 

forward or that relate to non-cash compensation expense or 

noncontrolling interests. Such items may vary for different 

companies for reasons unrelated to overall operating 

performance. Additionally, we believe Adjusted EBITDA is 

useful to investors to assist them in getting a more accurate 

picture of our results from operations. However, Adjusted 

EBITDA is not recognized measurements under GAAP and 

when analyzing our operating performance, readers should 

use Adjusted EBITDA in addition to, and not as an alternative 

for, net income as determined in accordance with GAAP. 

Because not all companies use identical calculations, our 

presentation of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to 

similarly titled measures of other companies. Furthermore, 

Adjusted EBITDA is not intended to be a measure of free cash 

flow for our management’s discretionary use, as it does not 

remove all non-cash items (such as acquisition-related gains) 

or consider certain cash requirements such as tax and debt 

service payments. The amount shown for Adjusted EBITDA 

also differs from the amount calculated under similarly titled 

definitions in our debt instruments, which are further adjusted 

to reflect certain other cash and non-cash charges and are 

used to determine compliance with financial covenants and 

our ability to engage in certain activities, such as incurring 

additional debt and making certain restricted payments.

“Adjusted fees’’ refers to Kennedy Wilson’s gross 

investment management, property services and research 

fees adjusted to include fees eliminated in consolidation 

and Kennedy Wilson’s share of fees in unconsolidated 

service businesses. Our management uses Adjusted fees 

to analyze our investment management and real estate 

services business because the measure removes required 

eliminations under GAAP for properties in which the Company 

provides services but also has an ownership interest. These 

eliminations understate the economic value of the investment 

management, property services and research fees and makes 

the Company comparable to other real estate companies that 

provide investment management and real estate services 

but do not have an ownership interest in the properties they 

manage. Our management believes that adjusting GAAP fees 

to reflect these amounts eliminated in consolidation presents 

a more holistic measure of the scope of our investment 

management and real estate services business.

“Adjusted Net Asset Value’’ is calculated by KWE as 

net asset value adjusted to include properties and other 

investment interests at fair value and to exclude certain items 

not expected to crystallize in a long-term investment property 

business model such as the fair value of financial derivatives 

and deferred taxes on property valuation surpluses.

“Adjusted Net Income” represents net income 

attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc., shareholders 

adjusted for our share of depreciation and amortization, 

share-based compensation expense, and preferred stock 

dividends and accretion of issuance costs. Please also see 

the reconciliation to GAAP in the Company’s supplemental 

financial information included in this release and also 

available at www.kennedywilson.com.

“Cap rate” represents the net operating income of 

an investment for the year preceding its acquisition or 

disposition, as applicable, divided by the purchase or sale 

price, as applicable. Cap rates set forth in this presentation 

only includes data from income-producing properties. We 

calculate cap rates based on information that is supplied to 

us during the acquisition diligence process. This information 

is often not audited or reviewed by independent accountants 

and may be presented in a manner that is different from 

similar information included in our financial statements 

prepared in accordance with GAAP. In addition, cap rates 

represent historical performance and are not a guarantee of 

future NOI. Properties for which a cap rate is provided may 

not continue to perform at that cap rate.

“Consolidated investment account” refers to the sum 

of Kennedy Wilson’s equity in: cash held by consolidated 

investments, consolidated real estate and acquired in-place 

leases gross of accumulated depreciation and amortization, 

net hedge asset or liability, unconsolidated investments, 

consolidated loans, and net other assets.

 “Equity multiple” is calculated by dividing the amount 

of total distributions received by KW from an investment 

(including any gains, return of equity invested by KW and 

promoted interests) by the amount of total contributions 

invested by KW in such investment. This metric does not 

take into account management fees, organizational fees, or 

other similar expenses, all of which in the aggregate may 

be substantial and lower the overall return to KW. Equity 

multiples represent historical performance and are not a 

guarantee of the future performance of investments.

“Equity partners” refers to non-wholly-owned subsidiaries 

that we consolidate in our financial statements under U.S. 

GAAP, including KWE, and third-party equity providers.

“Investment account” refers to the consolidated investment 

account presented after noncontrolling interest on invested 

assets gross of accumulated depreciation and amortization.

“Investment Management and Real Estate Services 

Assets under Management” (“IMRES AUM”) generally 

refers to the properties and other assets with respect to 

which we provide (or participate in) oversight, investment 

management services and other advice, and which generally 

consist of real estate properties or loans, and investments in 

joint ventures. Our IMRES AUM is principally intended to 

reflect the extent of our presence in the real estate market, 

not the basis for determining our management fees. Our 

IMRES AUM consists of the total estimated fair value of the 

real estate properties and other real estate related assets 

either owned by third parties, wholly owned by us or held 

by joint ventures and other entities in which our sponsored 

funds or investment vehicles and client accounts have 

invested. Committed (but unfunded) capital from investors 

in our sponsored funds is not included in our IMRES AUM. 

The estimated value of development properties is included 

at estimated completion cost.

“KW Cap Rate” represents the Cap rate (as defined above) 

weighted by the Company’s ownership interest in the 

underlying investments. Cap rates set forth in this presentation 

only includes data from income-producing properties. We 

calculate cap rates based on information that is supplied to us 

during the acquisition diligence process. This information is 

often not audited or reviewed by independent accountants and 

may be presented in a manner that is different from similar 

information included in our financial statements prepared 

in accordance with GAAP. In addition, cap rates represent 

historical performance and are not a guarantee of future NOI. 

Properties for which a cap rate is provided may not continue to 

perform at that cap rate.

“Net operating income” or “ NOI” is a non-GAAP measure 

representing the income produced by a property calculated 

by deducting operating expenses from operating revenues. 

Our management uses net operating income to assess and 

compare the performance of our properties and to estimate 

their fair value. Net operating income does not include the 

effects of depreciation or amortization or gains or losses 

from the sale of properties because the effects of those items 

do not necessarily represent the actual change in the value 

of our properties resulting from our value-add initiatives or 

changing market conditions. Our management believes that 

net operating income reflects the core revenues and costs 

of operating our properties and is better suited to evaluate 

trends in occupancy and lease rates.

“Noncontrolling interests” represents the portion of equity 

ownership in a consolidated subsidiary not attributable to 

Kennedy Wilson.

“Pro-Rata” represents Kennedy Wilson’s share calculated 

by using our proportionate economic ownership of each 

asset in our portfolio, including our 23.6% ownership in 

KWE as of December 31, 2016. Please also refer to the pro-

rata financial data in our supplemental financial information. 

“Property net operating income” is a non-GAAP measure 

calculated by deducting the Company’s Pro-Rata share of 

rental and hotel operating expenses from the Company’s 

Pro-Rata rental and hotel revenues.

“Same property” refers to properties in which Kennedy 

Wilson has an ownership interest during the entire span 

of both periods being compared. The same property 

information presented throughout this report is shown 

on a cash basis and excludes non-recurring expenses. 

This analysis excludes properties that are either under 

development or undergoing lease up as part of our asset 

management strategy.
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The following tables summarize our selected historical consolidated financial information. This information was derived 

from our audited financial statements for each of the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012. This 

information is only a summary. You should read this information together in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion 

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the financial statements and related notes included 

elsewhere in this document.

(in millions, except per share amounts) Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Statements of operations data and dividends:

Revenue $   703.4 $   603.7 $   398.6 $   123.1 $     66.9

Net income (loss) to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc. common  
 shareholders 2.8 71.1 13.8 (14.5) (3.9)

Basic (loss) income per share 0.01 0.66 0.14 (0.21) (0.07)

Dividends declared per share of common stock 0.56 0.48 0.36 0.28 0.20

Adjusted EBITDA(1) 349.9 371.2 317.8 159.1 97.4

Adjusted EBITDA annual (decrease) increase (6)% 17% 100% 63%

Adjusted Fees(1) 108.9 158.2 121.0 72.4 55.7

Adjusted Fees annual increase (decrease) (31)% 31% 67% 30%

As of December 31,

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Balance sheet data:

Cash and cash equivalents $   885.7 $   731.6 $   937.7 $   178.2 $   120.9

Total assets 7,659.1 7,595.6 6,297.6 1,786.8 1,270.4

Investment debt 3,956.1 3,627.5 2,175.7 400.2 234.2

Unsecured corporate debt 936.6 688.8 813.1 438.6 438.4

Kennedy Wilson equity 1,048.0 1,133.8 901.1 768.3 509.7

Noncontrolling interests 1,295.1 1,731.3 2,142.8 50.6 9.1

Total equity 2,343.1 2,865.1 3,043.9 818.9 518.8

Common shares outstanding 115.7 114.5 96.1 82.6 63.8

(1)  See Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Non-
GAAP measures” for a description of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted fees and a reconciliation of these metrics to net income as reported under GAAP.

Due to our significant acquisition activity, the periods presented above may not be comparable. See Note 4 in our Notes 

to the Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of the business combinations that occurred during the years ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The following table shows our investment account by region as of December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2016 % 2015 % 2014 % 2013 % 2012 %

Western U.S. $  1,226.1 60% $ 1,157.0 59% $    898.8 53% $    793.2 67% $ 529.7 63%

United Kingdom 266.1 13% 379.4 20% 252.7 15% 135.7 11% 120.4 15%

Ireland 295.5 14% 253.6 13% 295.7 18% 161.8 14% 76.2 9%

Japan 6.1 —% 10.3 1% 84.9 5% 96.3 8% 111.3 13%

Spain 29.7 1% 9.9 1% — —% — —% — —%

Italy 18.4 1% 8.7 —% — —% — —% — —%

KW Share cash, marketable securities,  
 and net hedge asset 240.8 11% 123.4 6% 152.2 9% — —% — —%

Total $  2,082.7 100% $ 1,942.3 100% $ 1,684.3 100% $ 1,187.0 100% $ 837.6 100%

Investment Management and Real Estate Services Assets under Management (IMRES AUM)

IMRES AUM generally refers to the properties and other assets with respect to which we provide (or participate in) oversight, 

investment management services and other advice, and which generally consist of real estate properties or loans and 

investments in joint ventures. Our IMRES AUM is principally intended to reflect the extent of our presence in the real estate 

market, not the basis for determining our management fees. Our IMRES AUM consists of the total estimated fair value of 

the real estate properties and other real estate related assets either owned by third parties, wholly owned by us or held by 

joint ventures and other entities in which our sponsored funds or investment vehicles and client accounts have invested. 

Committed (but unfunded) capital from investors in our sponsored funds is not included in our IMRES AUM. The estimated 

value of development properties is included at estimated completion cost.

The table below details the changes in the Company’s IMRES AUM for the twelve months ended December 31, 2016:

(in millions) December 31, 2015 Increases Decreases December 31, 2016

IMRES AUM(1) $ 18,050.7 $ 2,071.4 $ (2,950.8) $ 17,171.3

(1)  For IMRES AUM purposes amounts are based off of LSE:KWE share value. Investments made by KWE reflected in GAAP consolidated results are 
excluded from Investment - KWH section above.

IMRES AUM was approximately $17 billion as of December 31, 2016 as compared to approximately $18 billion at December 

31, 2015. The increases are due to new acquisitions, KWE’s additional bond issuance, and appreciation in the value of its 

investments. This is offset by decreases due to dispositions of commercial and multifamily assets, loan pool resolutions, 

the decrease in the share price of KWE, and foreign currency losses on assets in the Company’s investments and services 

segments. 

Foreign currency and currency derivative instruments

Please refer to Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation for a discussion 

regarding foreign currency and currency derivative instruments.

Selected Financial Data
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in 

conjunction with the financial statements and related notes 

and the other financial information appearing elsewhere in 

this report. This discussion and analysis contains forward-

looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and 

assumptions. See the section title “Forward-Looking 

Statements” for more information. Actual results could differ 

materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking 

statements as a result of many factors, including those 

discussed in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this report.

Unless specifically noted otherwise, as used throughout 

this Management’s Discussion and Analysis section, “we,” 

“our,” “us,” “the Company” or “Kennedy Wilson” refers 

to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and its wholly-owned 

subsidiaries. “KWE” refers to Kennedy Wilson Europe Real 

Estate plc, a London Stock Exchange listed company that 

we externally manage through a wholly-owned subsidiary. 

“Equity partners” refers to the subsidiaries that we consolidate 

in our financial statements under U.S. GAAP (other than 

wholly-owned subsidiaries), including KWE, and third-party 

equity providers. “KW Group” refers to the Company and its 

subsidiaries that are consolidated in its financial statements 

under U.S. GAAP (including KWE). Please refer to “Non-

GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions of 

certain terms used throughout this report.

Overview

Kennedy Wilson is a global real estate investment company. 

We own, operate, and invest in real estate both on our 

own and through our investment management platform. 

We currently focus on multifamily, office, retail and hotels 

located in the Western U.S., UK, Ireland and to a lesser extent 

Spain, Italy and Japan. To complement our investment 

business, the Company also provides real estate services 

primarily to financial services clients.

Our value is primarily derived from our ownership in 

income producing real estate assets. We have an ownership 

stake in approximately 39 million square feet of property 

globally, including 25,943 multifamily rental units. In addition 

to our core income producing real estate, we engage in 

redevelopment and value add initiatives through which we 

enhance cashflows or reposition asset to increase disposal 

value. Additionally, our investment management and property 

services business manages approximately $17 billion of 

IMRES AUM the majority of which we have an ownership 

stake in and the balance we manage for third parties.

We have over 500 employees in 25 offices throughout the 

United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Jersey, Spain, 

Italy and Japan and manage and work with approximately 

6,000 operating associates. 

Our operations are defined by two core business segments, 

KW Investments and KW Investment Management and Real 

Estate Services (IMRES), which work closely together to 

identify attractive investment markets and opportunities 

around the world:

KW Investments

We invest our capital in real estate assets and loans secured 

by real estate either on our own or with strategic partners 

through publicly traded companies, joint ventures, separate 

accounts, or funds. When we have partners, we are typically 

the general partner in the arrangement with a promoted 

interest in the profits of our investments beyond our ownership 

percentage. The Company has an average ownership interest 

across all investments of approximately 42% as of December 

31, 2016. Our equity partners include public shareholders, 

financial institutions, foundations, endowments, high net 

worth individuals and other institutional investors.

The following are product types we invest in through the 

KW Investments segment:

Multifamily

We pursue multifamily acquisition opportunities where 

we believe we can unlock value through a myriad of 

strategies, including institutional management, asset 

rehabilitation, repositioning and creative recapitalization. 

We focus primarily on apartments in supply-constrained, 

infill markets. Through our Vintage Housing Holdings 

(“VHH”) partnership, we also utilize low-income housing 

tax credit structures for income and age restricted 

properties. As of December 31, 2016, we hold investments 

in 25,943 multifamily apartment units across 141 properties 

primarily located in the Western United States, Ireland, 

United Kingdom and Japan. 

Commercial

We source, acquire, and finance various types of 

commercial real estate which includes office, industrial, 

retail, and mixed-use assets. After acquisition, the 

properties are generally repositioned to enhance market 

value. Assets are either sold as part of property-specific 

investment strategies designed to deliver above-market 

returns to our clients and shareholders or held if producing 

above average cash flows. As of December 31, 2016, we 

hold investments in 258 commercial properties, totaling 

over 18.1 million square feet, located throughout the United 

States, United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain, Italy and Japan. 

Loan Originations/Discounted Loan Purchases

We acquire and/or originate loans secured by real estate. 

Our acquisitions and originations include individual notes 

on all real estate property types as well as portfolios of 

loans purchased from financial institutions, corporations 

and government agencies. We deliver value through loan 

resolutions, discounted payoffs, and sales. We also convert 

certain loans into a direct ownership in the underlying real 

estate collateral. Our discounted loan pool portfolio as of 

December 31, 2016 had current unpaid principal balance 

(“UPB”) of $217.3 million. 

Our loan investment portfolio is principally related to loans 

acquired at a discount from their contractual balance due 

as a result of deteriorated credit quality of the borrower. 

Such loans are underwritten by us based on the value of 

the underlying real estate collateral. Due to the discounted 

purchase price, we seek and are generally able to accomplish 

near term realization of the loan in a cash settlement or 

by obtaining title to the property. Accordingly, the credit 

quality of the borrower is not of substantial importance to 

our evaluation of the risk of recovery from the investment.

Hotel

We acquire hotels in certain opportunistic situations in 

which we are able to purchase at a significant discount 

to replacement cost or can implement our value-add 

investment approach.

Residential and Other

In certain cases, we may pursue for sale housing 

acquisition opportunities, including land for entitlements, 

finished lots, urban infill housing sites and partially 

finished and finished housing projects. On certain 

income-producing acquisitions, there are adjacent land 

parcels that we assign little or no basis and for which 

we may pursue entitlement activities or, in some cases, 

development or re-development opportunities.

Cash, marketable securities, and net hedge asset

This group includes our share of consolidated property 

level cash, marketable securities, and hedges on the 

Company’s investments and our share of hedges held by 

KWE on its euro denominated investments.

While our core investments have been in the specific 

markets and locations listed above, we will evaluate 

opportunities to earn above market returns across many 

other segments and geographic locations.

KW Investment Management and Real Estate Services 

(IMRES)

IMRES includes our investment management platform 

along with our property services, research, brokerage and 

auction and conventional sales divisions. These businesses 

generate revenue for us through fees and commissions.

We manage approximately 59 million square feet of 

properties for the Company and its investment partners 

(including KWE) in the United States, Europe, and Asia, 

which includes assets we have ownership interests in and 

third party owned assets. With 25 offices throughout the 

United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Jersey, Spain, 

Italy and Japan, we have the capabilities and resources 

to provide property services to real estate owners as well 

as the experience, as a real estate investor, to understand 

client concerns. The managers of IMRES have an extensive 

track record in their respective lines of business and in the 

real estate community as a whole. Their knowledge and 

relationships are an excellent driver of businesses through 

the services business as well as on the investment front.

Additionally, IMRES plays a critical role in supporting 

our investment strategy by providing local market 

intelligence and real-time data for evaluating investments, 

generating proprietary transaction flow and creating value 

through efficient implementation of asset management or 

repositioning strategies.

Investment Management

Our investment management division, provides acquisition, 

asset management and disposition services to our equity 

partners as well as to third parties. Currently, we have five 

closed end funds for which we serve as general partner and 

manager and separate accounts with strategic partners. In 

addition, we serve as the manager of KWE and are entitled 

to receive management fees (50% of which are paid in 

KWE shares) equal to 1% of KWE’s adjusted net asset value 

(reported by KWE to be $1.9 billion at December 31, 2016) 

and certain performance fees. Under US GAAP, we are 

required to consolidate the results of KWE and as such fees 

earned from KWE are eliminated in consolidation. 

Property Services

Our property services division manages commercial real estate 

for third-party clients, fund investors, and investments held by 

Kennedy Wilson. In addition to earning property management 

fees, consulting fees, leasing commissions, construction 

management fees, disposition fees, and accounting fees, 

the property services division gives Kennedy Wilson insight 

into local markets and potential acquisitions. Leveraging over 

39 years of real estate experience, we approach property 

management from the perspective of an owner and are active 

in identifying and implementing value creation strategies. The 

division has a proven track record of success in managing 

stabilized as well as value-add investments. 

Research

Meyers, a Kennedy Wilson company, is a premier 

consulting practice and provider of data for residential real 

estate development and new home construction industry. 

Meyers’ offers a national perspective as well as local 

expertise to homebuilders, multifamily developers, lenders 

and financial institutions. These relationships have led to 

investment opportunities with homebuilders in the Western 

U.S. region. We believe Zonda™, a Meyers innovation 

launched in October 2013, is the housing industry’s most 
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comprehensive solution for smart business analysis, real-

time market data reporting and economic and housing data 

in one place and on-the-go.

Brokerage

Our brokerage division represents tenants and landlords 

on every aspect of site selection, negotiation and 

occupancy. The division also specializes in innovative 

marketing programs tailored to client objectives for all 

types of investment grade and income producing real 

estate. The division’s property marketing programs 

combine proven techniques with its detailed market 

knowledge to create optimum results.

Auction and Conventional Sales

The auction and conventional sales division provides 

innovative marketing and sales strategies for all types 

of commercial and residential real estate, including 

single family homes, mixed-use developments, estate 

homes, multifamily dwellings, new home projects, 

and conversions. Generally, the division’s auction 

sales business is countercyclical to the traditional sales 

real estate market and has been a bellwether for us in 

forecasting market conditions.

Financial Measures and Descriptions

Our key financial measures and indicators are discussed 

below. Please refer to the critical accounting policies in 

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 

additional detail regarding the GAAP recognition policies 

associated with the captions described below.

Revenues

Rental income—rental income is comprised of rental 

revenue earned by our consolidated real estate investments.

Hotel income—hotel income is comprised of hotel revenue 

earned by our consolidated hotels.

Sale of real estate—sales of real estate consists of gross 

sales proceeds received on the sale of consolidated real 

estate that is not defined as a business by generally 

accepted accounting principles. This typically includes the 

sale of condominium units or undeveloped land.

Investment Management, Property Services and Research 

Fees—Investment management, property services, and 

research fees are primarily comprised of base asset 

management fees, performance based fees, and acquisition 

fees generated by our investment management division, 

property management fees generated by our property 

services division, leasing fees and sales commissions 

generated by our brokerage and auction divisions, and 

consulting fees generated by Meyers. Fees earned from 

consolidated investments, for example KWE, are eliminated 

in consolidation with the amount relating to our equity 

partners being recognized through income attributable to 

noncontrolling interests.

Loans and other income—Loans and other income is 

primarily composed of interest income earned on the 

Company’s loan originations and investments in discounted 

loan purchases.

Expenses

Rental operating expenses—rental operating expenses 

consists of the operating expenses of our consolidated real 

estate investments, including items such as property taxes, 

insurance, maintenance and repairs, utilities, supplies, 

salaries and management fees.

Hotel operating expenses—hotel operating expenses 

consists of operating expenses of our consolidated hotel 

investments, including items such as property taxes, 

insurance, maintenance and repairs, utilities, supplies, 

salaries and management fees.

Commission and marketing expenses—commission and 

marketing expenses includes fees paid to third party sales 

and leasing agents as well as business development costs 

necessary to generate revenues.

Compensation and related expenses—compensation and 

related expenses include: (a) employee compensation, 

comprising of salary, bonus, employer payroll taxes and benefits 

paid on behalf of employees and (b) share-based compensation 

associated with the grants of share-based awards.

General and administrative—general and administrative 

expenses represent administrative costs necessary to 

run KW Group’s businesses and include things such as 

occupancy and equipment expenses, professional fees, 

public company costs, travel and related expenses, and 

communications and information services.

Depreciation and amortization—depreciation and 

amortization is comprised of depreciation expense which 

is recognized ratably over the useful life of an asset and 

amortization expense which primarily consist of the 

amortization of assets allocated to the value of in-place 

leases upon acquisition of a consolidated real estate asset.

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Income from unconsolidated investments—Income from 

unconsolidated investments consists of (a) the Company’s 

share of income or loss earned on investments in which the 

Company can exercise significant influence but does not 

have control, and (b) interest income from unconsolidated 

loan pool participations. Additionally, interest income from 

loan pool participations are recognized on a level yield basis, 

where a level yield model is utilized to determine a yield rate 

which, based upon projected future cash flows, accretes 

interest income over the estimated holding period. See the 

unconsolidated investments footnote of the attached notes 

to the consolidated financial statements for summarized 

financial data, including balance sheet and income statement 

information of the underlying investments.

Acquisition-related gains—Acquisition-related gains consist of 

non-cash gains recognized by the Company upon a GAAP required 

fair value remeasurement due to a business combination. These 

gains are typically recognized with the change of control of an 

existing investment. The gain amount is based upon the fair 

value of the Company’s equity in the investment in excess of the 

carrying amount of the equity directly preceding the change of 

control or the separately determined fair value of an investment 

being an excess of cash paid. These gains also arise when KW 

Group converts a loan into consolidated real estate owned and 

the fair value of the underlying real estate exceeds the basis in 

the previously held loan.

Acquisition-related expenses—Acquisition-related expenses 

consists of the costs incurred to acquire assets. Generally, 

the majority of these expenses relate to stamp duty taxes 

on foreign transactions (primarily within KWE). Acquisition-

related expenses may also include any professional fees 

associated with closing the transactions and the write off of any 

costs associated with acquisitions which did not materialize.

Gain on sale of real estate—Gain on sale of real estate relates 

to the amount received over the carrying value of assets sold 

that met the definition of a business under US GAAP.

Interest expense - corporate debt—Interest expense - corporate  

debt represents interest costs associated with our senior 

notes payable, junior subordinated debentures and line of 

credit facility. This debt is unsecured and we typically use 

the funds generated from corporate borrowings to fund new  

investments.

Interest expense - investment—Interest expense -investment 

represents interest costs associated with mortgages on our 

consolidated real estate and unsecured debt held by KWE. 

The mortgages are typically secured by the underlying real 

estate collateral.

Other Income—Other income includes the realized foreign 

currency exchange income or loss relating to the settlement 

of foreign transactions during the year which arise due to 

changes in currency exchange rates, realized gains or losses 

related to the settlement of derivative instruments, the gain 

or loss on the sale of marketable securities, and other non-

operating interest income.

Income taxes—The Company’s services business operates 

globally as corporate entities subject to federal, state, and 

local income taxes and the investment business operates 

through various partnership structures to participate in 

multifamily, office and residential property acquisitions 

as well as originate loans and purchases loan pools. The 

Company’s distributive share of income from its partnership 

investments will be subject to federal, state, and local taxes 

at the entity level and the related tax provision attributable 

to the Company’s share of the income tax is reflected in the 

consolidated financial statements.

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests 

represents income or loss attributable to equity partners for 

their ownership in investments which the Company controls. 

Income or loss is attributed to noncontrolling interest partners 

based on their respective ownership interest in an investment.

Accumulated other comprehensive income—Accumulated 

other comprehensive income represents the Company’s 

share of foreign currency movement on translating KW 

Group’s foreign subsidiaries from their functional currency 

into the Company’s reporting currency. These amounts are 

offset by KW Group’s effective portion of currency related 

hedge instruments. Unrealized changes in fair value on the 

Company’s investment in marketable securities are also 

included in this account. 

Foreign Currency

As of December 31, 2016, approximately 36% of our 

investment account is invested through our foreign 

platforms in their local currencies. Investment level debt 

is generally incurred in local currencies and therefore 

we consider the carrying value of our equity investment 

as the appropriate exposure to evaluate for hedging 

purposes. Fluctuations in foreign exchanges rates may 

have a significant impact on the results of our operations. 

In order to manage the effect of these fluctuations, we 

generally hedge our book equity exposure to foreign 

currencies through currency forward contracts and 

options. We typically hedge 50%-100% of book equity 

exposure against these foreign currencies. Please see 

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market 

Risk - Currency Risk - Foreign Currencies for a detailed 

discussion with respect to foreign currency.

Results of Operations

4Q & Full Year Highlights

• Growth in Recurring NOI: Kennedy Wilson’s share of 4Q 

Property NOI grew by $6 million or 10% to $61 million 

from 4Q-2015. For the year, Kennedy Wilson’s share of 

Property NOI grew by $35 million or 17% to $241 million.

• Continued Strong Same Property Performance: The 

4Q and FY change in same property multifamily and 

commercial real estate are as follows: 

4Q - 2016 vs 4Q - 2015 FY - 2016 vs FY - 2015

Occupancy Revenue NOI Occupancy Revenue NOI

Multifamily (1.0)% 8.6% 10.3% (0.4)% 9.8% 12.1%

Commercial 1.7 % 5.5% 5.7% 1.5% 5.0% 5.6%

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
and Results of Operations (continued)
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• Dividend Declaration: Kennedy Wilson announced 

a 21% increase in the common dividend per share 

to $0.17 per quarter or $0.68 on an annualized basis. 

The dividend is payable on April 6, 2017 to common 

shareholders of record as of March 31, 2017.

• Continued Investment in Revenue Generating Capex: 

During 4Q-2016, the Company invested $40 million 

into capex (including $10 million related to Capital 

Dock, a prime waterfront 690,000 sq. ft. commercial 

and multifamily development in Dublin, Ireland) 

compared to $30 million during 4Q-2015. For the year, 

the Company invested $110 million into capex (vs. $100 

million in 2015).

• Performance Fees & Gains: The Company’s financial 

metrics were impacted by a decrease in the Company’s 

pro-rata share of total performance fees and gains of $8 

million in 4Q and $55 million for the year:

• Performance Fees: The Company had a decrease in 

performance fees of $32 million in 4Q and FY-2016, 

primarily resulting from no KWE performance fees 

during 2016.

• Realized Gains: The Company had an increase in 

realized gains on sale of real estate of $19 million in 

4Q-2016 (vs. 4Q-2015) and $36 million in FY-2016 (vs. 

FY-2015).

• Acquisition-related and Fair Value Gains: The 

Company had an increase in acquisition-related and 

fair value gains of $5 million in 4Q-2016 (vs 4Q-2015) 

and a decrease of $59 million in FY-2016 (vs FY-2015).

Corporate Finance

• Capital Return Program: During 2016, Kennedy Wilson 

returned a record $111 million, or approximately 

$1.02 per common share outstanding, to common 

shareholders through a combination of stock 

repurchases ($50 million in 2016) and common 

dividends ($61 million in 2016).

• Preferred Stock Conversion: The Company issued an 

aggregate of 3,366,973 shares of Common Stock upon 

the early conversion of all outstanding shares of its 6.45% 

Series B mandatory convertible preferred stock owned by 

entities affiliated with Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited. 

The Company has no further remaining preferred stock 

outstanding.

Investments Business

• Investment Transactions: The Company, together with its equity partners (including KWE), completed the following:

($ in millions) Gross Kennedy Wilson’s Share

4Q - 2016
Aggregate Purchase/

Sale Price
Income 

Producing
Non-income 

Producing Total NOI
KW

Cap Rate (1)

Acquisitions(2) $    341.3 $ 160.1 $    2.1 $    162.2 $   7.8 4.9%

Dispositions(3) 508.2 189.2 68.4 257.6 10.3 5.2%

 Total Transactions $    849.5 $    419.8

FY - 2016

Acquisitions(2) $ 1,392.8 $ 579.4 $  41.3 $    620.7 $ 31.3 5.4%

Dispositions(3) 1,694.9 412.9 118.8 531.7 21.0 5.1%

 Total Transactions $ 3,087.7 $ 1,152.4

(1) KW Cap rate includes only stabilized income-producing properties. Please see “common definitions” for a definition of cap rate.
(2) The three months ended and year ended December 31, 2016 includes $14.5 million and $264.5 million of acquisitions by KWE, respectively.
(3) The three months ended and year ended December 31, 2016 includes $185.0 million and $514.2 million of dispositions by KWE, respectively.

• KWE: Kennedy Wilson’s ownership in KWE grew to 23.6% as of December 31, 2016, compared to 21.8% as of September 

30, 2016 and 18.2% as of December 31, 2015. Kennedy Wilson received cash dividends of $18 million during 2016, an 

increase of 50% from 2015.

Investment Management and Real Estate Services Business 

This segment earns fees primarily from its investment management business along with its real estate services activities. 

Adjusted Fees and Adjusted EBITDA were impacted in 2016 by a reduction in performance fees and promoted interests of $32 

million in both 4Q and FY. For 4Q-2016, the Company’s Investment Management and Real Estate Services segment reported 

the following results:

4Q FY

($ amounts in millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015

GAAP Results

Investment Management, Property Services, and Research Fees $ 12.7 $ 22.3 $   59.4 $   69.3

Non-GAAP Results

Adjusted Fees (1)(2) $ 22.6 $ 64.2 $ 108.9 $ 158.2

Adjusted EBITDA 10.2 36.9 49.7 82.8

(1)  Adjusted Fees earned from KWE were $4.9 million and $37.1 million for the three months ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and $22.2 
million and $67.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Adjusted Fees includes accrued performance fees related to 
KWE of $0 for each of the three months and year ended December 31, 2016 and $30.9 million and $43.7 million for the three months and year ended 
December 31, 2015, respectively. Adjusted Fees excludes non-controlling interest.

(2)  Adjusted fees includes fees eliminated in consolidation of $6.6 million and $38.6 million for the three months ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, and $36.9 million and $75.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Hedging

For 4Q-2016 and FY-2016, changes in foreign currency rates reduced consolidated revenue by 5% and 4%, respectively and 

Adjusted EBITDA by 2% for both periods compared to foreign currency rates as of December 31, 2015. During the quarter and 

year, the net decrease in Kennedy Wilson’s shareholder’s equity related to fluctuations in foreign currency and related hedges 

(in the GBP, EUR and JPY) was $10.0 million and $24.6 million, respectively.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
and Results of Operations (continued)
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The following tables summarize KW Group’s revenue, operating expenses, non-operating expenses, operating income 

(loss) and net income (loss) and calculate EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by segment for the year ended December 31, 2016, 

2015, and 2014 and is intended to be helpful in understanding the year over year explanations following the tables:

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions) Investments IMRES Corporate Total

 Rental $  485.9 $    — $       — $  485.9

 Hotel 116.2 — — 116.2

 Sale of real estate 29.3 — — 29.3

 Investment management, property services and research fees — 59.4 — 59.4

 Loan purchases, loan originations, and other 12.6 — — 12.6

Revenue 644.0 59.4 — 703.4

Operating expenses (345.2) (54.9) (93.6) (493.7)

Depreciation and amortization (198.2) — — (198.2)

Income from unconsolidated investments, net of depreciation and amortization 122.8 3.8 — 126.6

Operating income 223.4 8.3 (93.6) 138.1

Non-operating income (expense):

 Gain on sale of real estate 130.7 — — 130.7

 Acquisition - related gains 16.2 — — 16.2

 Acquisition - related expenses (9.5) — — (9.5)

 Interest expense-investment (137.4) — — (137.4)

 Interest expense - corporate — — (54.2) (54.2)

 Other non-operating (expenses) income (1.2) — 7.8 6.6

 Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 5.0 — (19.0) (14.0)

Total non-operating income (loss) 3.8 — (65.4) (61.6)

Net income (loss) 227.2 8.3 (159.0) 76.5

Add back (less):

 Interest expense-investment 137.4 — — 137.4

 Interest expense - corporate — — 54.2 54.2
  Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense included in unconsolidated  

 investments 22.1 0.9 — 23.0

 Depreciation and amortization 198.2 — — 198.2
  Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and amortization included in  

 unconsolidated investments 17.2 3.6 — 20.8

 (Provision for) benefit from income taxes (5.0) — 19.0 14.0

 Fees eliminated in consolidation (36.9) 36.9 — —

 Share-based compensation — — 65.1 65.1

 EBITDA attributable to noncontrolling interests(2) (239.3) — — (239.3)

Adjusted EBITDA(1) $   320.9 $  49.7 $    (20.7 ) $   349.9

(1) See “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions and discussion of Adjusted EBITDA
(2) $169.3 million of depreciation, amortization, interest and taxes for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Year Ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in millions) Investments IMRES Corporate Total

 Rental $   404.8 $     — $     — $  404.8

 Hotel 106.4 — — 106.4

 Sale of real estate 3.7 — — 3.7

 Investment management, property services and research fees — 69.3 — 69.3

 Loan purchases, loan originations, and other 19.5 — — 19.5

Revenue 534.4 69.3 — 603.7

Operating expenses (283.3) (69.7) (53.4) (406.4)

Depreciation and amortization (166.3) — — (166.3)

Income from unconsolidated investments, net of depreciation and amortization 93.6 3.8 — 97.4

Operating income (loss) 178.4 3.4 (53.4) 128.4

Non-operating income (expense):

 Gain on sale of real estate 72.4 — — 72.4

 Acquisition - related gains 108.1 — — 108.1

 Acquisition - related expenses (37.3) — — (37.3)

 Interest expense-investment (108.8) — — (108.8)

 Interest expense - corporate — — (46.9) (46.9)

 Loss on extinguishment of corporate debt — — (1.0) (1.0)

 Other non-operating expenses (2.5) — — (2.5)

 Provision for income taxes (23.4) — (30.0) (53.4)

Total non-operating income (loss) 8.5 — (77.9) (69.4)

Net income (loss) 186.9 3.4 (131.3) 59.0

Add back (less):

 Interest expense-investment 108.8 — — 108.8

 Interest expense - corporate — — 46.9 46.9

 Early extinguishment of corporate debt — — 1.0 1.0

  Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense included in unconsolidated  
 investments 27.0 1.1 — 28.1

 Depreciation and amortization 166.3 — — 166.3

  Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and amortization included in  
 unconsolidated investments 25.2 2.9 — 28.1

 Provision for income taxes 23.4 — 30.0 53.4

 Fees eliminated in consolidation (75.0) 75.0 — —

 Share-based compensation — — 30.8 30.8

 EBITDA attributable to noncontrolling interests(2) (151.6) 0.4 — (151.2)

Adjusted EBITDA(1) $   311.0 $  82.8 $ (22.6 ) $  371.2

(1) See “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions and discussion of Adjusted EBITDA
(2) $166.9 million of depreciation, amortization, taxes and interest for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
and Results of Operations (continued)
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Year Ended December 31, 2014

(dollars in millions) Investments IMRES Corporate Total

 Rental $   206.9 $     — $      — $  206.9

 Hotel 63.3 — — 63.3

 Sale of real estate 28.4 — — 28.4

 Investment management, property services and research fees — 82.6 — 82.6

 Loan purchases, loan originations, and other 17.4 — — 17.4

Revenue 316.0 82.6 — 398.6

Operating expenses (201.7) (61.1) (35.8) (298.6)

Depreciation and amortization (104.5) — — (104.5)

Income from unconsolidated investments, net of depreciation and amortization 48.3 5.9 — 54.2

Operating income (loss) 58.1 27.4 (35.8) 49.7

Non-operating income (expense):

 Gain on sale of real estate — — — —

 Acquisition - related gains 218.1 — — 218.1

 Acquisition - related expenses (19.7) — — (19.7)

 Interest expense-investment (46.3) — — (46.3)

 Interest expense - corporate — — (57.1) (57.1)

 Loss on extinguishment of corporate debt — — (27.3) (27.3)

 Other non-operating expenses 5.1 — 5.1

 Provision for income taxes — — (32.4) (32.4)

Total non-operating income (loss) 157.2 — (116.8) 40.4

Net income (loss) 215.3 27.4 (152.6) 90.1

Add back (less):

 Interest expense-investment 46.3 — — 46.3

 Interest expense - corporate — — 57.1 57.1

 Early extinguishment of corporate debt — — 27.3 27.3
  Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense included in unconsolidated  

 investments 34.0 1.5 — 35.5

 Depreciation and amortization 104.5 — — 104.5
  Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and amortization included in  

 unconsolidated investments 43.7 3.4 — 47.1

 Provision for income taxes — — 32.4 32.4

 Fees eliminated in consolidation (21.6) 21.6 — —

 Share-based compensation — — 15.8 15.8

 EBITDA attributable to noncontrolling interests(2) (143.7) 5.4 — (138.3)

Adjusted EBITDA(1) $     278.5 $   59.3 $   (20.0) $    317.8

(1) See “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions and discussion of Adjusted EBITDA
(2) $70.1 million of depreciation, amortization, taxes and interest for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Non-GAAP Measures

We use certain non-GAAP measures to analyze our business, including Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Fees. We use these 

metrics for evaluating the success of our company and believe that they enhance the understanding of our operating results. 

A reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Fees is presented below:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Net income $   76.5 $    59.0 $   90.1 $    13.9 $   6.7

Non-GAAP adjustments:

Add back:

Interest expense - investment 137.4 108.8 46.3 11.8 2.5

Interest expense - corporate 54.2 46.9 57.1 39.9 26.1

Early extinguishment of corporate debt — 1.0 27.3 — —

Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense included in  
 investment in unconsolidated investments 23.0 28.1 35.5 45.0 29.5

Depreciation and amortization 198.2 166.3 104.5 17.4 4.9

Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and amortization  
 included in unconsolidated investments 20.8 28.1 47.1 46.7 22.6

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 14.0 53.4 32.4 2.9 (0.2)

Share-based compensation 65.1 30.8 15.8 7.5 8.1

EBITDA attributable to noncontrolling interests(1) (239.3) (151.2) (138.3) (26.0) (2.8)

Adjusted EBITDA (2) $ 349.9 $  371.2 $  317.8 $  159.1 $  97.4

(1)(2) See “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions and discussion of Adjusted EBITDA.

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Investment management, property services and research fees(1) $   59.4 $    69.3 $   82.6 $     68.1 $  53.3

Non-GAAP adjustments:

Add back:

Fees eliminated in consolidation 36.9 75.0 21.6 4.3 2.4

Kennedy Wilson’s share of fees in unconsolidated service  
 businesses 12.6 13.9 16.8 — —

Adjusted Fees $ 108.9 $  158.2 $ 121.0 $    72.4 $  55.7

(1)  Amounts previously presented as Management and leasing fees and commissions on prior period statement of operations. Amounts above represent 
total of fees and commissions from prior periods.

Three Months Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Investment management, property services and research fees $  12.7 $     22.3 $ 17.6

Non-GAAP adjustments:

Add back:

Fees eliminated in consolidation(1) 6.6 38.6 7.0

KW share of fees in unconsolidated service businesses(2) 3.3 3.3 6.5

Adjusted Fees $  22.6 $     64.2 $ 31.1

(1)  The three months ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 includes $4.6 million, $30.8 million and $5.1 million, respectively of fees recognized in 
net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests relating to portion of fees paid by noncontrolling interest holders in KWE and equity partner 
investments. 

(2) Included in income from unconsolidated investments relating to the Company’s investment in a servicing platform in Spain.
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Three months ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Services

Net income (loss) $    2.5 $ (2.9) $   —
Add back:

 Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense included in  
  unconsolidated investments 0.2 0.5 0.4

 Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and amortization included in  
  unconsolidated investments 0.9 0.7 1.4

 Operating expenses attributable to noncontrolling interests — — 2.7

 Fees eliminated in consolidation 6.6 38.6 7.0

Adjusted EBITDA $  10.2 $ 36.9 $ 11.5

KW Group Consolidated Financial Results: Year Ended 

December 31, 2016 Compared to the Year Ended December 

31, 2015 

Adjusted EBITDA was $349.9 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2016, a 6% decrease from $371.2 million for 2015, 

due to lower non-cash acquisition-related gains in the current 

period as the Company took control of fewer properties as 

compared to the prior period as well as no performance fee 

being earned on KWE in the current period. This decrease was 

offset by higher realized gains on the sale of consolidated and 

unconsolidated investments in the current period. For same 

property multifamily units, total revenues increased 10%, net 

operating income increased 12% and occupancy remained at 

94% from 2015. For same property commercial real estate, total 

revenues increased 5%, net operating income increased 6% and 

occupancy increased 2% to 96% from the same period in 2015.

A significant portion of the Company’s investments are in 

foreign currencies. We generally hedge the majority of our 

investments in foreign currencies but we generally do not hedge 

current operations or future cash flows so changes in foreign 

currency rates will have an impact on our results of operations. 

We have included the table below to illustrate the impact these 

fluctuations have had on our revenues, net income and Adjusted 

EBITDA by applying the applicable exchange rates for the prior 

period. Please refer to Currency Risk - Foreign Currencies section 

below for the Company’s risks relating to foreign currency and 

its hedging strategy and the Other Comprehensive Income 

section below for a discussion of the balance sheet impact of 

foreign currency movements on our results of operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Investments IMRES Total

Revenues $ (28.8) (4)% $   — —% $ (28.8) (4)%

Net Income (2.1) (75)% (1.5) (53)% (3.6) (128)%

Adjusted EBITDA (5.3) (2)% (1.4) —% (6.7) (2)%

Revenues

Investments Segment Revenues—Rental income was $485.9 

million for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared 

to $404.8 million for 2015. The $81.1 million increase is 

primarily due to new acquisitions in 2016 and the latter half 

of 2015. 

Hotel income was $116.2 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2016 as compared to $106.4 million for 

2015. The $9.8 million increase is primarily due to a $8.1 

million (25%) increase at Ritz Carlton, Lake Tahoe due to 

improved winter conditions in the first and fourth quarters 

of 2016, mainly through increases in average daily rates and 

occupancy as compared to the prior period and a $4.7 million 

(12%) increase at the Shelbourne due to higher average 

daily rates. These have been offset by Fairmont St Andrews 

and Portmarnock, which are held by KWE, that have been 

undergoing renovation programs in 2016 and have had fewer 

rooms available than the prior period.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, we sold 

24 condominium units, a vacant lot and a parcel of land 

generating $29.3 million of proceeds as compared to one 

condominium unit sold in the prior period for proceeds of 

$3.7 million.

Loan and other income was $12.6 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2016 as compared to $19.5 million for 

2015. The decrease in income was mainly due to loans that 

were resolved or sold on notes held by KWE in the latter 

half of the prior period and during the beginning of the 

current year. As there was a lower note receivable balance 

over the current period KW Group received less in interest 

income.

Investment Management and Services Segment Revenues—

Fees are earned on the following types of services provided:

• investment management, including acquisition, asset 

management and disposition services. Fees earned 

from consolidated investments, for example KWE, are 

eliminated in consolidation with the amount relating to 

our equity partners being recognized through income 

attributable to noncontrolling interests; 

• property services, including management of commercial 

real estate for third-party clients, fund investors, and 

investments held by KW Group;

• research, including consulting practice and data and 

analytics for the residential real estate development and 

new home construction industry;

• auction and conventional sales, including innovative 

marketing and sales strategies for all types of commercial and 

residential real estate, including single family homes, mixed-

use developments, estate homes, multifamily dwellings, new 

home projects, conversions and scattered properties; and

• brokerage services, including innovative marketing 

programs tailored to client objectives for all types of 

investment grade and income producing real estate. 

The following table shows Adjusted Fees for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015

Investment management, property services and research fees $   59.4 $   69.3

Non-GAAP adjustments:

Add back:

 Fees eliminated in consolidation(1) 36.9 75.0

 Kennedy Wilson’s share of fees in unconsolidated service businesses 12.6 13.9

Adjusted Fees(2) $ 108.9 $ 158.2

(1)  The years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 include $23.1 million and $57.7 million, respectively, of fees recognized in net (income) loss attributable 
to noncontrolling interests relating to portion of fees paid by noncontrolling interest holders in KWE and equity partner investments. 

(2) See Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions for a definition and discussion of Adjusted Fees.

Investment management and real estate services fees 

were $59.4 million during the year ended December 31, 

2016 as compared to $69.3 million for 2015 mainly due to 

lower performance fees earned during 2016. 

Fees earned from investments that were eliminated in 

consolidation totaled $36.9 million compared to $75.0 million 

for 2015. The decrease is primarily due to the Company not 

recognizing any performance fees on its external management 

of KWE in 2016 compared to $43.7 million ($36.1 million of 

which was allocated to noncontrolling interest holders) of 

such fees being earned in the prior period. In accordance with 

U.S. GAAP, these fees were excluded from total fees of $59.4 

million and $69.3 million, respectively.

The table below shows Adjusted Fees from investment 

management and real estate related services for the year 

ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

(dollars in millions) Year Ended December 31,

Fee Description 2016 2015

Property Services and Research $   47.7 $   48.5

 Investment Management - Base 41.1 44.0

 Investment Management - Performance 19.8 62.5

 Investment Management - Acquisition / Disposition 0.3 3.2

Investment Management - Total 61.2 109.7

Total Adjusted Fees(1) $  108.9 $ 158.2

(1) See “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions and discussion of Adjusted Fees.

Investment management—Investment management 

generated adjusted fees of $61.2 million during the year 

ended December 31, 2016 as compared to $109.7 million for 

2015. The decrease is primarily attributable to $43.7 million 

of accrued performance fee related to our management 

of KWE in 2015. No such accrual has been made through 

December 31, 2016. The prior period also had disposition 

fees associated with the sale of our Japanese multifamily 

portfolio with no comparable activity in 2016. Base 

management fees decreased in the current year due to the 

Company recognizing fees associated with a loan pool in 

the prior period that was fully resolved at December 31, 

2015. However, this was partially offset during the year 

ended December 31, 2016 by performance fees earned on 

the sale of an Irish office building and a multifamily property 
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in the Western U.S. and accrued performance fees relating 

to KW Fund V.

Real estate related services—Real estate related services 

fees decreased to $47.7 million during the year ended 

December 31, 2016 as compared to $48.5 million for 2015 

due to lower fees earned on the Company’s loan servicing 

platform in Spain.

Operating Expenses

Investments Segment Operating Expenses—Operating 

expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased 

to $543.4 million compared to $449.6 million for 2015. The 

increase is primarily attributable to the following: 

Rental operating expenses increased by $27.4 million, 

hotel operating expenses increased by $6.4 million and 

depreciation and amortization increased by $31.9 million 

due to increased acquisitions.

Compensation and related expenses increased by $5.2 

million due to higher headcount. 

Investment Management and Services Segment Operating 

Expenses—Operating expenses for the year ended December 

31, 2016 were $54.9 million as compared to $69.7 million for 

2015. The decrease is primarily attributable to lower adjusted 

fees and lower discretionary compensation driven by the 

lack of a performance fee earned on KWE in 2016. 

Corporate Operating Expenses—Operating expenses for the 

year ended December 31, 2016 were approximately $93.6 

million as compared to $53.4 million for 2015. Compensation 

and related expenses increased by $39.8 million primarily due 

higher stock compensation and an increase in discretionary 

compensation. The increase in stock compensation in 2016 

is mainly due to $26.5 million or 60% of the expense of the 

restricted stock that was granted in 2012 under our Amended 

and Restated 2009 Equity Participation Plan being incurred 

during April 2016 to March 2017 due to the cliff vesting that is 

scheduled to occur in 2017. A portion of the increase was also 

attributed to the restricted stock that was granted during the 

fourth quarter of 2015 and during 2016.

Income from Unconsolidated Investments

Investments Segment Income from Unconsolidated 

Investments—During the year ended December 31, 2016, 

income from unconsolidated investments was $122.8 million 

as compared to $93.6 million for 2015. Five multifamily 

properties were sold in the Western U.S. which attributed 

to the increase in income as compared to the prior period. 

Upon sale, the Company recognized gains of $59.0 million 

(excluding $2.4 million of promoted interest recognized 

in investment management fees). In addition to sales 

discussed above the Company recognized $24.3 million of 

fair value gains on its VHH portfolio due to resyndications 

and development fees. See footnote 5 in the Company’s 

financial statements for further explanation. It also 

recognized $6.1 million from operating distributions made 

by VHH during the year. The Company recognized a $19.5 

million fair value gain on its investment in the iconic Kona 

Village Resort (“Kona Village”) in Kona, Hawaii, primarily 

relating to future insurance proceeds it obtained rights to 

after converting its loan on the project into real estate.

In 2015 the Company recognized $34.9 million of fair value 

gains during the year relating to improved market conditions 

in VHH, entitlements achieved on development projects, 

commencing sales process on a condo project as well as 

improved property performance in investments held within fund 

investments carried at fair value. In addition to fair value gains, 

the Company has recognized $7.3 million in equity income 

related to operating distributions from VHH during the year. The 

prior period income primarily related to the recognition of $46.6 

million in gains on the sale of four multifamily properties and an 

office building all in the Western United States.

Services Segment Income from Unconsolidated Investments—

Services segment income from unconsolidated investments 

relates to the Company’s acquired interest in a loan servicing 

platform in Spain with approximately €23.0 billion of assets 

under management. During the year ended December 31, 

2016, income from unconsolidated investments was $3.8 

million compared to $3.8 million in 2015.

Non-operating Items

Gains on sale of real estate were $130.7 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2016 compared to $72.4 million in the 

prior period. The gain recognized during the year ended 

December 31, 2016 relates primarily to the sale of a commercial 

property in the United Kingdom, a commercial property in 

Ireland, an office building in North Hollywood, CA, the sale of 

an equity interest in Kona Village and sales by KWE of non-

core assets out of its United Kingdom commercial properties 

and an office building in central district Dublin. During the 

prior period, KW Group sold the majority of its investment in 

its Japanese multifamily portfolio, which resulted in a gain of 

$33.5 million before noncontrolling interest and KWE sold non-

core assets out of its United Kingdom commercial properties 

during the year, which resulted in a gain of $38.9 million 

before noncontrolling interest. These gains are presented net 

as a component of non-operating income (expense) as the 

properties were treated as businesses at acquisition.

Acquisition-related gains were $16.2 million for the 

year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to $108.1 

million for 2015. The acquisition-related gains during the 

year ended December 31, 2016 were due to the Company 

acquiring additional equity interest in a retail center in the 

Western United States that was previously accounted for 

as an unconsolidated investment. The Company acquired 

additional equity interests and took control of Kona Village 

that was previously accounted for as an unconsolidated 

investment. Subsequently after taking control the Company 

sold a 50% interest to a strategic partner and accounted for 

Kona Village as an unconsolidated investment at year end.

In 2015, the Company acquired additional equity interests 

in multifamily and commercial properties located in 

Western United States that were previously accounted for 

as unconsolidated investments. KW Group also converted 

two notes secured by three commercial buildings located in 

Dublin, Ireland and a note secured by a multifamily property 

in London into a direct 100% ownership interest in the 

property. As a result of acquiring control of the properties, 

the assets and liabilities were consolidated in KW Group’s 

financial statements at fair value which resulted in an 

acquisition-related gains primarily by the remeasurement 

of the previously owned interest to current market values.

Acquisition-related expenses were $9.5 million for the 

year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $37.3 million 

during 2015. The acquisition related expenses primarily 

relate to professional fees and the payment of stamp duty 

taxes in the United Kingdom and Ireland. The decrease year 

over year is due to lower acquisition activity at KWE.

Interest expense associated with corporate debt was 

$54.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 as 

compared to $46.9 million for 2015. During the third quarter 

of 2016, KW Group issued an additional $250.0 million of 

5.875% senior unsecured notes due 2024 which resulted in 

the higher interest expense. In addition, our line of credit 

was utilized for a longer period as compared to 2015 which 

led to increased interest expense.

Interest expense associated with investment debt was 

$137.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 as 

compared to $108.8 million for 2015. The increase is due 

to the acquisitions and consolidations that occurred in the 

second half of 2015 and refinancings were the Company 

was able to increase its leverage on properties. 

Other income was $6.6 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2016 as compared to a loss of $2.5 million for 

2015. The increase is due to higher realized gains on foreign 

currency derivative investments that were not designated as 

net investment hedges.

Provision for income taxes was $14.0 million in 2016 as 

compared to a provision for income taxes of $53.4 million 

in 2015. The decrease is primarily due to lower U.S. pre-tax 

book income which is taxed at a higher statutory rate. We also 

released a valuation allowance as new evidence indicated that 

it is now more likely than not that certain net operating losses in 

the United Kingdom will be realized. During 2015, a significant 

tax expense was recorded due to taxable gain on the disposition 

of our Japanese multifamily portfolio The Company had $109.4 

million and $108.4 million of federal and state net operating 

losses as of December 31, 2016, respectively. 

We had net income of $70.9 million attributable to 

noncontrolling interests during the year ended December 

31, 2016 compared to net loss of $15.7 million attributable 

to noncontrolling interests during 2015. The increase 

during the current period is due to gains on sales of 

properties, lower acquisition related expenses and the lack 

of performance fee earned by Kennedy Wilson and paid by 

KWE on the Company’s investment in KWE. Fees on KWE 

are eliminated in revenues and operating expenses but the 

Company recognizes the amount of the fee that is allocated 

to noncontrolling interest holders through net income/loss 

attributable to noncontrolling interests.

Preferred dividends and accretion of preferred stock issue 

costs were $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 

as compared to $3.6 million for 2015. The decrease in the 

current period is due to Series A shares being outstanding 

for one quarter last period. The Series B shares converted at 

the end of the current period, and as of December 31, 2016 

the Company has no preferred stock outstanding. 

Other Comprehensive Income

The two major components that drive the change in other 

comprehensive loss are the change in foreign currency 

rates and the gains or loss of any associated foreign 

currency hedges. Please refer to the Currency Risk - Foreign 

Currencies section below for the Company’s risks relating to 

foreign currency and its hedging strategy.

(dollars in millions) Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015

Unrealized foreign currency translation loss, net of noncontrolling interests and tax $ (32.5) $ (46.3)

Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income during the period 3.4 9.7

Unrealized foreign currency derivative contract gains, net of noncontrolling interests and tax 5.5 17.0

Unrealized losses on marketable securities, net of noncontrolling interests and tax 0.1 0.1

Other comprehensive loss $  (23.5) $ (19.5)

In addition to the amounts above there was a loss of 

$1.1 million and $18.9 million for the year ended December 

31, 2016 and 2015 that was recorded in the consolidated 

statement of operations relating to amounts that were 

reclassified out of other comprehensive income relating to 

properties that were sold and foreign currency derivative 
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investments that were not designated as net investment 

hedges. The total impact to Kennedy Wilson’s shareholders 

equity was a loss of $24.6 million and $38.4 million for the 

year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The main currencies that the Company has exposure 

to are the euro, pound sterling and the yen. The table 

below represents the change in rates over the year ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015 as compared to the U.S. Dollar:

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015

Euro (3.0)% (10.0)%

GBP (16.0)% (5.0)%

Yen —% —%

Other compressive loss, net of taxes and noncontrolling 

interests, for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

was $23.5 million and $19.5 million, respectively.

The unrealized foreign currency translation loss, net of 

taxes and non-controlling interests, was a loss of $32.5 

million and $46.3 million for the year ended December 31, 

2016 and 2015, respectively. The losses relating to unrealized 

foreign currency translation decreased during the current 

period as we incurred losses on the pound sterling and the 

Euro, primarily as a result of the Brexit vote.

The unrealized foreign currency derivative contract gain, net 

of taxes and non-controlling interests, was a gain of $5.5 million 

and $17.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 

2015, respectively. The Company typically hedges 50%-100% of 

its net investments in certain non-U.S. operations through use of 

currency derivative contracts, such as foreign currency forward 

contracts and options. The gain in the current year primarily 

relates to the strengthening of the dollar against the GBP related 

the Company’s stock investment in KWE which was offset by 

our share of the decreased value of derivative contracts at KWE 

(due to the strengthening of the euro against the British pound 

sterling) from hedges on its Euro denominated assets. The prior 

period gains relate to the strengthening of the U.S. Dollar in 

relation to all the foreign currencies the Company invests in. 

Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other 

comprehensive income are for amounts that are moved 

out of other comprehensive income and recognized on 

the statement of operations. Although there is activity for 

the period the amounts reclassified are inception-to-date, 

and, accordingly, they are not indicative of current period 

movements. The reclassification for the current period 

relates to the resolution of European loan pools and the sale 

of office properties in Ireland and Japan during the year. 

The prior period included amounts relating to the sale of the 

Company’s Japanese multifamily portfolio.

KW Group Consolidated Financial Results: Year Ended 

December 31, 2015 Compared to the Year Ended December 

31, 2014

Adjusted EBITDA was $371.2 million, a 17% increase from 

$317.8 million for 2014, due to gains on asset sales and 

strong same property performance and the additional net 

operating income from assets acquired subsequent to the 

prior period. For same property multifamily units, total 

revenues increased 8%, net operating income increased 

11% and occupancy remained at 95% compared to 2014. 

For same property commercial real estate, total revenues 

increased 2%, net operating income increased 3% and 

occupancy increased 3% to 90% compared to 2014.

A significant portion of the Company’s investments are 

in foreign currencies. We generally hedge the majority of 

our investments in foreign currencies but we generally 

do not hedge future operations or cash flows so changes 

in foreign currency rates will have an impact on our 

results of operations. We have included the table below 

to illustrate the impact these fluctuations have had on our 

revenues, net income and Adjusted EBITDA by applying 

the applicable exchange rates for the prior period. Please 

refer to Currency Risk - Foreign Currencies section in Item 

7A for the Company’s risks relating to foreign currency 

and its hedging strategy and the Other Comprehensive 

Income section below for a discussion of the balance sheet 

impact of foreign currency movements on our results of 

operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Investments IMRES Total

Revenues $ (10.7) (2)% $ (0.1) —% $ (10.8) (2)%

Net Income 1.6 2% 0.4 1% 2.0 3%

Adjusted EBITDA (2.0) (1)% (2.0) (1)% (4.0) (2)%

Revenues

Investments Segment Revenues—Rental income was $404.8 

million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared 

to $206.9 million for 2014. The $197.9 million increase is 

primarily due to new acquisitions and consolidations in 

2015 and the latter half of 2014. KW Group increased rental 

income 10% on 5,296 same-store multifamily units in its 

consolidated portfolio and 4% on 2.2 million same-store 

square feet on its consolidated commercial properties.

Hotel income was $106.4 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2015 as compared to $63.3 million for 2014. 

The $43.1 million increase is primarily due to the acquisition 

of three hotels in Europe subsequent to the second quarter 

of 2014. In addition to a full years’ worth of results in current 

period the hotels have benefited from higher average room 

rates due to asset management efforts and the hosting of 

the British Open adjacent to one of KW Group’s hotels.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, we sold one 

condominium unit generating $3.7 million of proceeds. 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we sold ten units 

for proceeds of $28.4 million.

Loan and other income was $19.5 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2015 as compared to $17.4 million for 

2014. The increase in income was mainly due to the interest 

earned on notes KWE acquired in the second and third 

quarter of 2014.

Services Segment Revenues—Fees are earned on the 

following types of services provided:

• investment management, including acquisition, asset 

management and disposition services; 

• property services, including management of commercial 

real estate for third-party clients, fund investors, and 

investments held by KW Group;

• research, including consulting practice and data and 

analytics for the residential real estate development and 

new home construction industry;

• auction and conventional sales, including innovative 

marketing and sales strategies for all types of 

commercial and residential real estate, including single 

family homes, mixed-use developments, estate homes, 

multifamily dwellings, new home projects, conversions 

and scattered properties; and

• brokerage services, including innovative marketing 

programs tailored to client objectives for all types of 

investment grade and income producing real estate. 

The following table shows Adjusted Fees for the year December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014

Investment management, property services and research fees $   69.3 $   82.6

Non-GAAP adjustments:

Add back:

 Fees eliminated in consolidation(1) 75.0 21.6

 Kennedy Wilson’s share of fees in unconsolidated service businesses 13.9 16.8

Adjusted Fees(2) $ 158.2 $  121.0

(1)  The year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 includes $57.7 million and $14.3 million of fees recognized in net (income) loss attributable to noncon-
trolling interests relating to portion of fees paid by noncontrolling interest holders in KWE and equity partner investments. 

(2) See Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions for a definition and discussion of Adjusted Fees

Investment management and real estate services fees 

were $69.3 million during the year ended December 31, 

2015 as compared to $82.6 million for 2014.

Fees earned from investments that were eliminated in 

consolidation totaled $75.0 million compared to $21.6 million 

for 2014. The increase is primarily due to fees earned with 

respect to performance fees on Kennedy Wilson’s external 

management of KWE. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, these 

fees were excluded from total fees of $69.3 million and $82.6 

million, respectively.

The table below shows Adjusted Fees from investment management and real estate related services for the year ended 

December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended December 31,

Fee Description 2015 2014

Property Services and Research $   48.5 $   47.8

Investment Management - Base 44.0 32.6

Investment Management - Performance 62.5 39.7

Investment Management - Acquisition / Disposition 3.2 0.9

Investment Management - Total 109.7 73.2

Total Adjusted Fees(1) $ 158.2 $ 121.0

(1) See “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for definitions and discussion of Adjusted Fees.

Investment management—Investment management 

generated adjusted fees of $61.2 million during the year 

ended December 31, 2015 as compared to $109.7 million for 

2014. The increase is primarily attributable to $43.7 million 

of accrued performance fee related to our management of 

KWE in 2015. No such accrual was made during 2014. During 

the year ended December 31, 2014 the Company recognized 
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fees associated with the sale of a portfolio of commercial 

properties located primarily in Dublin, Ireland. 

Property Services and Research—Property services and 

research fees increased to $48.5 million during the year 

ended December 31, 2015 as compared to $47.8 million for 

2014 due to increased brokerage service fees.

Operating Expenses

Investments Segment Operating Expenses—Operating 

expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased 

to $449.6 million compared to $306.1 million for 2014. The 

increase is primarily attributable to the following: 

Rental operating expenses increased by $48.7 million, 

hotel operating expenses increased by $32.8 million and 

depreciation and amortization increased by $61.8 million 

due to acquisitions and consolidations during 2014 and the 

launch of KWE in February of 2014. 

Compensation and related expenses increased by $14.5 

million due to higher headcount and an increase in the 

compensation accrual.

During the year ended December 31, 2015 we sold 1 

condominium unit which resulted in $2.6 million of sale-

related costs. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we 

sold 10 condominium units which resulted in $20.7 million 

of sale-related costs.

Services Segment Operating Expenses—Operating 

expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 were 

approximately $69.7 million as compared to $61.1 million 

for 2014. The increase is attributable to the following:

The increase is primarily attributable to a $9.8 million 

increase in compensation and related expenses which was 

mostly due to an increase in the compensation accrual 

during the year. This was offset by a decrease in legal costs 

in our European operation.

Corporate Operating Expenses—Operating expenses for the 

year ended December 31, 2015 were approximately $53.4 

million as compared to $35.8 million for 2014. Compensation 

and related expenses increased by $17.6 million primarily 

due to share-based compensation expense associated with 

additional grants and an increase in the compensation accrual.

Income from Unconsolidated Investments

Investments Segment Income from Unconsolidated 

Investments—During the year ended December 31, 2015, 

income from unconsolidated investments (which includes 

both joint-venture investments and loan pool participations) 

was $93.6 million as compared to $48.3 million for 2014. 

The Company recognized $46.6 million in gains on the sale 

of four multifamily properties and an office building all 

in the Western United States. The increase is also due to 

$34.9 million of fair value gains during the year relating to 

improved market conditions in VHH, entitlements achieved 

on development projects, commencing sales process on a 

condo project as well as improved property performance 

in investments held within fund investments carried at 

fair value. In addition to fair value gains, the Company has 

recognized $7.3 million in equity income related to operating 

distributions from VHH during the year.

Services Segment Income from Unconsolidated Investments—

Services segment income from unconsolidated investments 

relates to the Company’s acquired interest in a loan servicing 

platform in Spain with approximately €23.0 billion of assets 

under management. During the year ended December 31, 

2015, income from unconsolidated investments was $3.8 

million compared to $5.9 million in 2014. The decrease in 

income during the year ended December 31, 2015 related to 

higher overhead and operational costs.

Non-operating Items

Gains on sale of real estate were $72.4 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2015 with no comparable activity in the 

prior period. KW Group sold the majority of its investment in 

its Japanese multifamily portfolio, which resulted in a gain of 

$33.5 million before noncontrolling interest and KWE sold non-

core assets out of its United Kingdom commercial properties 

during the year, which resulted in a gain of $38.9 million 

before noncontrolling interest. These gains are presented net 

as a component of non-operating income (expense) as the 

properties were treated as businesses at acquisition.

Acquisition-related gains were $108.1 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2015 as compared to $218.1 million for 

2014. The acquisition-related gains during the year ended 

December 31, 2015 were due to the Company acquiring 

additional equity interests in multifamily and commercial 

properties located in Western United States that were 

previously accounted for as unconsolidated investments. KW 

Group also converted two notes secured by three commercial 

buildings located in Dublin, Ireland and a note secured by a 

multifamily property in London into a direct 100% ownership 

interest in the property. As a result of acquiring control of the 

properties, the assets and liabilities were consolidated in KW 

Group’s financial statements at fair value which resulted in an 

acquisition-related gains primarily by the remeasurement of 

the previously owned interest to current market values.

In 2014, the Company and one of its equity partners 

amended existing operating agreements, which the 

Company had an approximate 50% ownership, governing 

six separate joint ventures that hold real estate-related 

investments located in the U.K. and Ireland. The Company 

and one of its equity partners also amended an existing 

operating agreement governing 50 multifamily buildings in 

and around Tokyo, Japan comprising approximately 2,400 

units. (as mentioned above, the Company subsequently 

sold the majority of its investment in this portfolio) The 

Company has an approximate 41% ownership interest in 

these investments. These joint ventures were previously 

accounted for by the Company on an equity method basis. 

As a result of gaining control, the Company was required 

to consolidate the assets and liabilities of these properties 

at fair value. As the fair value of our interests in these 

properties were in excess of the carrying value, we recorded 

acquisition-related gains of $150.8 million of which $63.1 

million was allocated to noncontrolling interest partners.

In addition, in 2014, we foreclosed on a 133,000 square foot 

retail center and an adjacent 2.4-acre vacant lot in Van Nuys, 

California and converted a note secured by the landmark 

Shelbourne Hotel located in Dublin, Ireland into a direct 100% 

ownership interest in the property. As a result of taking title 

to the properties, the assets and liabilities were consolidated 

in KW Group’s financial statements at fair value and an 

acquisition-related gain of $3.7 million was recognized. KWE 

also acquired the subordinated notes on 20 commercial 

properties located throughout England and Scotland during 

the prior period and used its position as a debt holder to 

secure the acquisition of the underlying properties. KW 

Group recognized an acquisition-related gain of $15.2 million 

on the transaction due to its ability to acquire the underlying 

real estate at a discount to its fair value.

Acquisition-related expenses were $37.3 million for the 

year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $19.7 million 

during 2014. The increase year over year is due to stamp 

duty expenses related to acquisitions by KWE during the 

first half of 2015.

Interest expense associated with corporate debt was $46.9 

million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared 

to $57.1 million for 2014. The decrease in corporate interest 

expense is attributable to the interest savings related to the 

refinancing of $350.0 million of 8.75% senior notes due 2019 

with $350.0 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2024, which 

occurred during the fourth quarter of 2014.

Loss on early extinguishment of corporate debt was $1.0 

million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 

$27.3 million in the prior period. The current period amount 

relates to fees associated with the extinguishment of its old 

credit facility as part of entering into its new $475 million 

facility. The prior period loss on early extinguishment of 

corporate debt related to the extinguishment of the senior 

notes due 2019 as discussed above.

Interest expense associated with investment debt was 

$108.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as 

compared to $46.3 million for 2014. The increase is due to 

the acquisitions and consolidations that occurred in the 

second half of 2014 and during 2015.

Provision for income taxes was $53.4 million in 2015 as 

compared to a provision for income taxes of $32.4 million 

in 2014 primarily due to taxable gain on the disposition of 

our Japanese assets and non-deductible depreciation and 

acquisition-related expenses in United Kingdom. The Company 

had $133.2 million and $90.0 million of federal and state net 

operating losses as of December 31, 2015, respectively.

We had a net loss of $15.7 million attributable to noncontrolling 

interests during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared 

to net income of $68.2 million attributable to noncontrolling 

interests during the prior period. The prior period consolidations 

had higher noncontrolling interest ownerships, which resulted 

in greater gains being allocated from the Company.

Other Comprehensive Income

(dollars in millions) Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014

Unrealized foreign currency translation loss, net of noncontrolling interests and tax $ (46.3) $ (46.4)

Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income during the period 9.7 (7.1)

Unrealized foreign currency derivative contract gains, net of noncontrolling interests and tax 17.0 16.3

Unrealized losses on marketable securities, net of noncontrolling interests tax 0.1 (0.2)

Other comprehensive loss $ (19.5) $ (37.4)

The main currencies that the Company has exposure 

to are the euro, pound sterling and the yen. The table 

below represents the change in rates over the year ended 

December 31, 2015 and 2014 as compared to the U.S. Dollar:

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014

Euro (10.0)% (12.0)%

GBP (5.0)% (6.0)%

Yen —% (14.0)%

Other compressive loss, net of taxes and noncontrolling 

interests, for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was 

$19.5 million and $37.4 million, respectively. The two major 

components that drive the change in other comprehensive 

loss are the change in foreign currency rates and the gains 

or loss of any associated foreign currency hedges. 

The unrealized foreign currency translation loss, net 

of taxes and non-controlling interests, was $46.3 million 

and $46.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 

and 2014, respectively. In addition, KW Group had a large 
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increase in the amount of assets denominated in foreign 

currencies due to the launch of KWE in February of 2014.

The unrealized foreign currency derivative contract 

gain, net of taxes and non-controlling interests, was a 

gain of $17.0 million and $16.3 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company 

typically hedges 50%-100% of its net investments in certain 

non-U.S. operations through use of currency derivative 

contracts, such as foreign currency forward contracts 

and options. As the total amount of assets denominated 

in foreign currencies has grown due to KW Group’s 

expansion in Europe, we have also increased the amount 

of corresponding foreign currency derivative contracts. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity and capital resources requirements include 

acquisitions of real estate and real estate related assets, capital 

expenditures for consolidated real estate and unconsolidated 

investments and working capital needs. We finance these 

activities with internally generated funds, borrowings under our 

revolving lines of credit, sales of equity and debt securities and 

cash out refinancings to the extent they are available and fit within 

our overall portfolio leverage strategy. Our investments in real 

estate are typically financed with equity from our balance sheet, 

third party equity and mortgage loans secured primarily by that 

real estate. These mortgage loans are generally nonrecourse 

in that, in the event of default, recourse will be limited to the 

mortgaged property serving as collateral, subject to limited 

customary exceptions. In some cases, we guarantee a portion of 

the loan related to a consolidated property or an unconsolidated 

investment, usually until some condition, such as completion of 

construction or leasing or certain net operating income criteria, 

has been met. We do not expect these guarantees to materially 

affect liquidity or capital resources. Please refer to the “Off 

Balance Sheet Arrangements” section for further information. 

Historically, we have not required significant capital resources 

to support our IMRES business.

Our short-term liquidity requirements primarily consist of 

operating expenses and other expenditures associated with 

our properties, dividend payments to our shareholders, capital 

expenditures and, potentially, acquisitions. We expect to meet our 

short-term liquidity requirements through our existing cash and 

cash equivalents plus capital generated from our IMRES business, 

sales of real estate, collections from loans and loan pools, as 

well as availability on our current revolving lines of credit (which 

was undrawn as of December 31, 2016). As of December 31, 

2016, we and our consolidated subsidiaries (including KWE) had 

approximately $1.6 billion of potential liquidity, which includes 

approximately $752.7 million of availability under lines of credit 

and $886.0 million of cash for KWH and KWE, collectively. 

Our need to raise funds from time to time to meet our 

capital requirements will depend on many factors, including 

the success and pace of the implementation of our strategy 

for strategic and accretive growth. Additionally, we may 

opportunistically seek to raise capital (equity or debt) when 

we believe market conditions are favorable and consistent 

with our growth strategy. In addition, we may seek third 

party financing to the extent that we engage in additional 

strategic investments, including capital necessary to 

execute potential development or redevelopment strategies 

or acquisition of real estate, note portfolios, or other real 

estate related companies or real estate related securities.

Development and redevelopment—Kennedy Wilson has a 

number of development, redevelopment and entitlement 

projects that are underway or in the planning stages. 

These initiatives may ultimately result in 1,849 multifamily 

units, 542,000 commercial rentable square feet, and 525 

residential units, along with substantial upgrades to certain 

multifamily and commercial properties and hotels (figures 

exclude similar projects owned by KWE). If these projects 

were brought to completion the estimated remaining 

capital would be approximately $1.3 billion which we 

expect would be funded through our existing equity, third 

party equity, project sales and secured debt financing. This 

represents total capital over the life of the projects and is 

not a representation of peak equity and does not take into 

account any distributions over the course of the investment. 

As of December 31, 2016, we expect to invest $216.3 million 

in cash commitments to develop to completion or complete 

the entitlement process on these projects. These figures 

are budgeted costs and are subject to change. We and our 

equity partners are under no obligation to complete these 

projects and may dispose of any such assets after adding 

value through the entitlement process. In many cases, we 

allocated little to no basis to the land that was acquired in 

conjunction with nearby income producing properties. 

We are currently developing “Capital Dock,” a prime 

waterfront 690,000 square feet commercial and multifamily 

development located in Dublin, Ireland. The development is 

currently being funded with equity from us and our equity 

partners. We hold a 42.5% interest in the development and as 

of December 31, 2016, we have invested $47.0 million of equity 

in the project. Additionally, during the year ended December 

31, 2016, we contributed a total of $25.7 million to the project. 

We currently expect to complete the development by 2019 

with additional equity from us of approximately $60.0 million. 

This is a budgeted figure, however, and is subject to change 

(increase or decrease) due to a number of factors, including: 

(i) we are developing this project under a construction 

management contract with the general contractor and 

therefore could be called upon to contribute additional capital 

in the event that actual costs exceed budgeted costs (currently, 

approximately 80% of the budgeted costs have been fixed 

under price-capped agreements between the general 

contractor and various subcontractors); and (ii) we and our 

equity partners may look to secure third-party construction 

financing to fund all or a portion of the construction costs. We 

and our equity partners are under no obligation to complete 

this project, and we could decide to sell the asset before the 

development is complete. In addition to Capital Dock, we are 

concurrently building approximately 417 multifamily units in 

Dublin, Ireland. 

In addition to Capital Dock, we are starting the process 

of developing Kona Village Resort an iconic five-star 

resort in Kona, Hawaii that will have 125 bungalows upon 

completion. We anticipate on completing this project in 

2020 and currently believe the total cost of construction will 

be approximately $150 million with the Company’s share 

being $55.0 million. This is a budgeted figure, however, and 

is subject to change (increase or decrease) due to a number 

of factors, including but not limited to: (i) we and our 

equity partners may look to secure third-party construction 

financing to fund all or a portion of the construction costs 

and (ii) the actual construction costs may significantly 

exceed our budgeted costs. We and our equity partners are 

under no obligation to complete this project and we could 

decide to sell the asset before the development is complete.

Consolidated and unconsolidated investment portfolio—

In addition to our development and redevelopment 

initiatives we regularly implement a value add approach to 

our consolidated and unconsolidated investments which 

includes rehabbing properties and adding or updating 

property amenities. The capital required to implement these 

value add initiatives is typically funded with capital calls, 

refinancing or supplemental financings at the property level. 

We are not required to make these investments but they are 

a key driver in our ability to increase net operating income 

at our properties post acquisition. We typically invest $5 

million to $10 million a year to fund capital expenditures for 

our consolidated and unconsolidated investment portfolio.

Under our current joint venture strategy, we generally 

contribute property expertise and a fully funded initial 

cash contribution, with commitments to provide additional 

funding. Accordingly, we generally do not have significant 

capital commitments with unconsolidated entities. As of 

December 31, 2016, we have unfulfilled capital commitments 

totaling $24.7 million to our unconsolidated investments. 

Foreign subsidiaries—We have subsidiaries in the United 

Kingdom, Ireland, Luxembourg, Spain and Jersey which 

manage our European real estate investments. We also 

have subsidiaries that operate hotel businesses in Ireland 

and Scotland. As of December 31, 2016, two of our foreign 

subsidiaries have positive, accumulated earnings of $6.0 

million. U.S. domestic taxes have not been recorded in 

our financial statements on amounts earned by such Irish 

companies since it is our plan to indefinitely reinvest amounts 

earned by our Irish subsidiaries as we plan to indefinitely 

reinvest amounts earned by our foreign subsidiaries. If these 

earnings were repatriated to the United States, additional 

U.S. domestic taxes of $1.4 million would be incurred.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the cash provided by or 

used in our operating, investing and financing activities for 

the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 102.9 $   178.2 $     98.1

Net cash used in investing activities (286.7) (1,483.6) (2,473.2)

Net cash provided by financing activities 419.8 1,118.8 3,163.4

Operating—Our cash flows from operating activities are 

primarily dependent upon operations from consolidated 

properties, the operating distributions from our 

unconsolidated investments, revenues from our IMRES 

business net of operating expenses and other general and 

administrative costs. Substantially all of the cash flows 

from operations of $102.9 million, $178.2 million and $98.1 

million for the year ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 

2014 respectively, were generated from net rental income 

received from our rental properties, operating distributions 

from our unconsolidated investments and fees earned on 

our service business. When comparing 2016 vs. 2015, while 

recurring revenues from our rental business continue to 

increase, these increases were offset in 2016 by the timing of 

the payments of accrued expenses and liabilities, including a 

tax payment in 2016 related to the 2015 sale of our Japanese 

multifamily portfolio, additional interest expense related to 

our corporate bonds, value added tax (“VAT”) payments in 

Europe, and payment of accounts payable.

Investing—Our cash flows used in investing activities are 

generally comprised of cash used to fund consolidated property 

acquisitions, investments in unconsolidated investments, 

capital expenditures and purchases of loans secured by 

real estate. These items are offset from cash provided from 

investing activities for property sales on our consolidated and 

unconsolidated investments and distributions received from 

refinancings on our unconsolidated investments. Net cash used 

in investing activities totaled $286.7 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2016. During the current period KW Group had 

$949.6 million of purchases and additions to real estate (including 

$416.7 million by KWE) and $124.9 million contributions to new 

and existing unconsolidated investments. The cash used in 

the aforementioned investing activities was offset by receipt of 

$540.1 million, mainly from commercial property sales in Europe 

including $332.8 million by KWE and $80.4 million from European 

investments the Company made prior to KWE’s formation. KW 
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Group also collected $146.9 million on loans primarily from the 

sale of a portfolio of loans by KWE during the first quarter.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $1.5 billion for 

the year ended December 31, 2015. KW Group spent $1.9 

billion of purchases and additions to real estate (including 

$1.6 billion by KWE). In addition, KW Group invested $235.8 

million (including $211.8 million by KWE) to fund our equity 

in loans secured by real estate. The investment in the loans 

were mainly for the acquisition of a loan portfolio secured by 

eight hotels across the United Kingdom and a loan secured 

by a residential property also in the United Kingdom. The 

cash used in the aforementioned investing activities was 

offset by receipt of $622.6 million, mainly from the sale of 

our Japanese multifamily portfolio and other asset sales.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $2.5 billion for 

the year ended December 31, 2014. KW Group invested $2.0 

billion on purchases and additions to real estate (including $1.7 

billion by KWE). In addition, KW Group invested $536.8 million 

(including $373.2 million by KWE) to fund our equity in loans. 

The investment in the loans were mainly for the acquisition 

of notes secured by the Shelbourne Hotel in Dublin, Ireland 

(100% owned by KWH) and the acquisition of subordinated 

notes throughout Ireland and the United Kingdom by 

KWE. Additionally, $167.7 million of equity was invested in 

unconsolidated investments of which $29.2 million related to 

the of acquisition of a loan portfolio by KWE and $57.2 million  

related to the acquisition of a portfolio of 14 assets comprised of 

commercial, retail and industrial assets which was subsequently 

contributed into KWE as part of its initial public offering. The 

cash used in the aforementioned investing activities was 

offset by receipt of $111.8 million in distributions from our 

unconsolidated investments primarily due to refinancing of 

property level debt and the sale of underlying properties.

Financing—Our net cash related to financing activities 

is generally impacted by capital-raising activities net 

of dividends and distributions paid to common and 

preferred shareholders and noncontrolling interests as 

well as financing activities for consolidated real estate 

investments. Net cash provided by financing activities 

totaled $419.8 million for the year ended December 31, 

2016. KW Group received proceeds of $250.0 million from 

the issuance of senior notes and $1.2 billion from mortgage 

loans to finance and refinance consolidated property 

acquisitions of which $636.9 million related to financings 

by KWE. These were offset by repayment of $608.1 million 

of investment debt, of which $394.0 million were related to 

repayments by KWE. In addition, KWE and the Company 

spent $196.9 million for KWE’s share repurchase program 

and the Company’s open market purchases of KWE shares. 

Distributions of $116.6 million to noncontrolling interest 

holders due mainly to asset sales also offset cash from 

financing. The Company also drew and repaid $125 million 

on its line of credit during the current year. 

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $1.1 billion 

for the year ended December 31, 2015. This was primarily due 

to net proceeds of $215.0 million received from the issuance 

of 8.6 million shares of common stock. In addition, the KW 

Group received proceeds of $2.1 billion from mortgage loans 

to finance and refinance consolidated property acquisitions of 

which $1.7 billion related to financing by KWE which included 

$888.3 million generated by two investment grade senior 

unsecured bond offerings. These were offset by repayment 

of $681.1 million of investment debt, of which $134.6 million 

were related to repayments by KWE and distributions of 

$239.2 million to noncontrolling interest holders mainly due 

to the sale of our Japanese multifamily portfolio.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $3.2 billion 

for the year ended December 31, 2014. This was primarily 

due to proceeds, net of issuance costs, of $1.8 billion from 

noncontrolling interest holders for the initial public offering 

of KWE, net proceeds of $190.6 million received from the 

issuance of 9.2 million shares of common stock primarily 

to institutional investors, the issuance of $650.0 million of 

senior notes which generated $647.2 million in proceeds, 

and $1.3 billion of proceeds from mortgage loans to finance 

and refinance consolidated property acquisitions of which 

$921.8 million related to financing by KWE. These were 

offset by repayment of $345.8 million of investment debt, of 

which $256.9 million were related to repayments by KWE, 

and the extinguishment of our junior subordinated debt of 

$40.0 million and the payment of cash dividends of $38.9 

million to our common and preferred shareholders.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

At December 31, 2016, KW Group’s contractual cash 

obligations, including debt, lines of credit, and operating 

leases included the following:

Payments due by period

(dollars in millions) Total

Less than 

1 year

1- 3 

years

4-5 

years

After 5 

years

Contractual obligations

Borrowings:(1)(4)

 Investment debt(2)(4) $3,980.1 $82.8 $990.1 $742.1 $2,165.1

 Senior notes(3)(4) 955.0 — — — 955.0

 Total borrowings 4,935.1 82.8 990.1 742.1 3,120.1

 Operating leases 11.7 2.8 5.1 2.4 1.4

Total contractual  

 cash obligations $4,946.8 $85.6 $995.2 $744.5 $3,121.5

(1)  See Notes 8-11 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Figures do not include scheduled interest payments. Assuming each 
debt obligation is held until maturity, we estimate that we will make 
the following interest payments: Less than 1 year-$186.5 million; 1-3 
years-$517.9 million; 4-5 years-$290.9 million; After 5 years: $321.8 mil-
lion. The interest payments on variable rate debt have been calculated 
at the interest rate in effect as of December 31, 2016.

(2)  Excludes $0.9 million of unamortized debt premium on investment 
debt.

(3) Excludes $2.2 million of net unamortized debt discount on senior notes.
(4) Excludes $41.2 million unamortized loan fees.

At December 31, 2016, Kennedy Wilson’s share of 

contractual cash obligations (excluding amounts that are 

attributable to noncontrolling interests), including debt, 

lines of credit, and operating leases included the following:

Payments due by period

(dollars in millions) Total

Less than 

1 year

1-3 

years

4-5 

years

After 5  

years

Contractual obligations

Borrowings:(1)

 Investment debt $2,188.8 $78.5 $493.0 $243.3 $1,374.0

 Senior notes(2) 955.0 — — — 955.0

 Total borrowings 3,143.8 78.5 493.0 243.3 2,329.0

 Operating leases 11.7 2.8 5.1 2.4 1.4

Total contractual 

 cash obligations $3,155.5 $81.3 $498.1 $245.7 $2,330.4

(1)  See Notes 8-11 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Fig-
ures do not include scheduled interest payments.

(2) Excludes $2.2 million of net unamortized debt discount on senior notes.

Indebtedness and Related Covenants

The following describes our corporate indebtedness and 

related covenants.

Senior Notes Payable

In March 2014, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc., completed a public 

offering of $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 

5.875% Senior Notes due 2024 (the “2024 Notes”), for 

approximately $290.7 million, net of discount and estimated 

offering expenses. The 2024 Notes were issued pursuant 

to an indenture dated as of March 25, 2014, by and among 

Kennedy-Wilson, Inc., as issuer, and Wilmington Trust 

National Association, as trustee, as supplemented by a 

supplemental indenture, dated as of March 25, 2014, by 

and between Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. as issuer, Kennedy-

Wilson Holdings, Inc., as parent guarantor, certain 

subsidiaries of the issuer, as subsidiary guarantors, and 

Wilmington Trust National Association, as trustee (the 

indenture, as so supplemented, the “2024 Indenture”). 

The issuer’s obligations under the 2024 Notes are fully and 

unconditionally guaranteed by Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, 

Inc. and the subsidiary guarantors. At any time prior to April 

1, 2019, the issuer may redeem the 2024 Notes, in whole or 

in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of their principal 

amount, plus an applicable “make-whole” premium and 

accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. 

At any time and from time to time on or after April 1, 2019, 

the issuer may redeem the 2024 Notes, in whole or in part, 

at the redemption price specified in the 2024 Indenture, 

plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption 

date. Prior to April 1, 2017, the issuer may also redeem up to 

35% of the 2024 Notes from the proceeds of certain equity 

offerings. Interest on the 2024 Notes accrues at a rate of 

5.875% per annum and is payable semi-annually in arrears 

on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing on 

October 1, 2014. The 2024 Notes will mature on April 1, 2024. 

In November 2014 and August 2016, we completed two 

additional public offerings of $350 million and $250 million, 

respectively, aggregate principal amounts of 5.875% Senior 

Notes, due 2024 (the “Additional Notes”). The Additional 

Notes have substantially identical terms as the 2024 Notes 

described above, and are treated as a single series with the 

2024 Notes under such 2024 Indenture. The Additional Notes 

were issued and sold at a public offering prices of 100.0% of 

their principal amount, plus accrued interest. The amount of 

the 2024 Notes included in the accompanying consolidated 

balance sheets was $897.8 million at December 31, 2016.

In November and December 2012, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. 

completed a public offering of $55.0 million aggregate 

principal amount of 7.750% Senior Notes due 2042 (the 

“2042 Notes”). The 2042 Notes were issued pursuant to an 

indenture dated as of November 28, 2012, by and among 

Kennedy-Wilson, Inc., as issuer, Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, 

Inc., as parent guarantor, certain subsidiaries of the issuer, 

as subsidiary guarantees and Wilmington Trust National 

Association, as trustee, as amended by various subsequent 

supplemental indentures. The issuer’s obligations under 

the 2042 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed 

by Kennedy Wilson and the subsidiary guarantors. At any 

time prior to December 1, 2017, the issuer may redeem 

the 2042 Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price 

equal to 100% of their principal amount, plus an applicable 

“make-whole” premium and accrued and unpaid interest, 

if any, to the redemption date. At any time and from time to 

time on or after December 1, 2017, the issuer may redeem 

the 2042 Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price 

equal to 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued and 

unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. Interest 

on the 2042 Notes accrues at a rate of 7.750% per annum 

and is payable quarterly in arrears on March 1, June 1, 

September 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing 

on March 1, 2013. The 2042 Notes will mature on December 

1, 2042. The amount of the 2042 Notes included in the 

accompanying consolidated balance sheets was $55.0 

million at December 31, 2016.

In November 2014, Kennedy Wilson extinguished its 

2019 Notes with an aggregate face value of $350.0 million 

(and an aggregate carrying value of $353.5 million) for 

$380.1 million with the proceeds from the November 2014 

issuance of 2024 Notes, together with cash on hand, which 

resulted in a $25.8 million loss on early extinguishment of 

corporate debt.
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KWE Senior Notes Payable

In June 2015, KWE completed its inaugural bond offering 

(“KWE Bonds”) of approximately $370.2 million (based on 

December 31, 2016 rates) (£300 million) in 3.95% fixed-rate 

senior unsecured bonds due 2022. In September 2016, KWE 

completed an additional bond offering of approximately 

$246.8 million (based on December 31, 2016 rates) (£200 

million) under the same indenture as the KWE Bonds 

mentioned above. The KWE Bonds have a carrying value of 

$616.8 million at December 31, 2016. KWE effectively reduced 

the interest rate to 3.35% as a result of it entering into swap 

arrangements to convert 50% of the proceeds into Euros. 

In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2015, KWE 

established a £2.0 billion (approximately $2.5 billion based 

on December 31, 2016 rates) Euro Medium Term Note 

Programme (“EMTN”). Under the EMTN Programme, KWE 

may issue, from time to time, up to £2.0 billion of various 

types of debt securities in certain markets and currencies. 

During the fourth quarter of 2015 and second quarter of 2016, 

KWE drew down under its EMTN Programme, with issuances 

of senior unsecured notes for an aggregate principal amount 

of approximately $578.4 million (based on December 31, 

2016 rates) (€550 million) (the “KWE Notes”). The KWE Notes 

were issued at a discount and have a carrying value of $575.5 

million have an annual fixed coupon of 3.25%, and mature in 

2025. The KWE Notes rank pari passu with the KWE Bonds, 

and are subject to the same restrictive covenants.

The KWE Bonds and KWE Notes require KWE to maintain 

(i) consolidated net indebtedness (as defined in the trust 

deed for the notes) of no more than 60% of the total asset 

value; (ii) consolidated secured indebtedness (less cash 

and cash equivalents) of no more than 50% of total asset 

value; (iii) an interest coverage ratio of at least 1.5 to 1.0, 

and (iv) unencumbered assets of no less than 125% of the 

unsecured indebtedness (less cash & cash equivalents). The 

covenants associated with KWE Bonds and KWE Notes are 

not an obligation of KWH and these amounts are presented 

as a component of our investment debt as it is an unsecured 

obligation relating to an underlying investment of ours.

Borrowings Under Line of Credit

Kennedy Wilson had an unsecured revolving credit facility 

(“Pre-Existing KWH Facility”) with U.S. Bank and East-West 

Bank and Bank of Ireland that bears interest at a rate equal 

to LIBOR plus 2.75% and had a maturity date of October 

1, 2016. In July 2014 Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. increased its 

unsecured corporate line of credit facility from $140.0 

million to $300.0 million. The increase was driven by the 

admission of Bank of America, N.A., Deutsche Bank AG 

New York Branch and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. to the 

existing lender syndicate and an increased commitment 

from The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland.

In December 2015, Kennedy Wilson extinguished the Pre-

Existing KWH Facility, which resulted in a $1.0 million loss 

on early extinguishment of corporate debt.

On December 10, 2015, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. (the 

“Borrower”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of KWH entered 

into a $475.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the 

“KW Revolving Facility”) with a syndicate of lenders including 

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Deutsche Bank AG New York 

Branch, U.S. Bank N.A., East West Bank, Fifth Third Bank, 

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland, Compass 

Bank, City National Bank, and Bank of America, N.A., as 

administrative agent and letter of credit issuer. Loans under 

the KW Revolving Facility bear interest at a rate equal to 

LIBOR plus 2.50% or 3.00%, depending on the consolidated 

leverage ratio as of the applicable measurement date, and 

have a maturity date of December 10, 2018. Subject to certain 

conditions precedent and at the Borrower’s option, the 

maturity date of the KW Revolving Facility may be extended 

by one year. As of December 31, 2016, the KW Revolving 

Facility was undrawn, with $475.0 million still available.

KWE Facility

In August 2014, KWE entered into a three-year unsecured 

floating rate revolving debt facility (“KWE Facility”) with Bank 

of America Merrill Lynch, Deutsche Bank, and J.P. Morgan 

Chase of approximately $277.7 million (based on December 31, 

2016 rates) (£225 million). The terms of the agreement were 

amended during June 2015. The KWE Facility requires KWE 

to maintain (i) a maximum consolidated leverage ratio (as 

defined in the revolving loan agreement) not to exceed 60%; 

(ii) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio where consolidated 

EBITDA to consolidated fixed charges not to be less than 1.9 

to 1.0 for the last four quarters; (iii) unencumbered assets of 

no less than 125% of the unsecured indebtedness (less cash 

& cash equivalents); and (iv) a maximum secured recourse 

indebtedness for consolidated secured recourse debt to not 

exceed 2.5% of total asset value at any time. As of December 31, 

2016, the KWE Facility was undrawn, with $277.7 million (based 

on December 31, 2016 rates) (£225 million) still available.

Debt Covenants

The KW Revolving Facility and the indentures governing the 

2024 Notes and 2042 Notes contain numerous restrictive 

covenants that, among other things, limit Kennedy Wilson’s 

and certain of its subsidiaries’ ability to incur additional 

indebtedness, pay dividends or make distributions to 

stockholders, repurchase capital stock or debt, make 

investments, sell assets or subsidiary stock, create or permit 

liens on assets, engage in transactions with affiliates, enter into 

sale/leaseback transactions, issue subsidiary equity and enter 

into consolidations or mergers. The KW Revolving Facility 

requires Kennedy Wilson to maintain a minimum tangible net 

worth and a specified amount of cash and cash equivalents.

The credit agreement that governs the KW Revolving 

Facility requires us to maintain (i) a maximum consolidated 

leverage ratio (as defined in the credit agreement) of not 

greater than 65%, measured as of the last day of each 

fiscal quarter, (ii) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio 

(as defined in the credit agreement) of not less than 1.60 

to 1.00, measured as of the last day of each fiscal quarter 

for the period of four full fiscal quarters then ended, (iii) a 

minimum consolidated tangible net worth equal to or greater 

than the sum of $920,660,504.65 plus an amount equal to 

fifty percent (50%) of net equity proceeds received by the 

Company after the date of September 30, 2015 financial 

statements, measured as of the last day of each fiscal 

quarter, (iv) a maximum recourse leverage ratio (as defined 

in the credit agreement) of not greater than an amount equal 

to consolidated tangible net worth as of the measurement 

date multiplied by 1.5, measured as of the last day of each 

fiscal quarter, (v) a maximum secured recourse leverage 

ratio (as defined in the credit agreement) of not greater than 

an amount equal to 3.5% of consolidated total asset value 

(as defined in the credit agreement) and $138,187,197, (vi) 

a maximum adjusted secured leverage ratio (as defined in 

the credit agreement) of not greater than 55%, measured as 

of the last day of each fiscal quarter, and (vii) liquidity (as 

defined in the credit agreement) of at least $250 million.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s consolidated 

leverage ratio was 61.1%, its fixed charge coverage ratio 

was 2.7 to 1.00, its consolidated tangible net worth was 

$1,226.5 million, its adjusted secured leverage ratio was 

43.3%, its secured recourse leverage ratio was 1.4%, its 

recourse leverage ratio was 0.83, and liquidity was $681.8 

million. The obligations of the Borrower pursuant to the 

Credit Agreement are guaranteed by the Company and 

certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The indentures governing the 2024 Notes and 2042 Notes 

limit Kennedy-Wilson, Inc.’s ability to incur additional 

indebtedness if, on the date of such incurrence and after 

giving effect to the new indebtedness, Kennedy-Wilson, 

Inc.’s maximum balance sheet leverage ratio (as defined in 

the indenture) is greater than 1.50 to 1.00. As of December 

31, 2016, the balance sheet leverage ratio was 0.92 to 1.00. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Guarantees—We have provided guarantees associated with 

loans secured by consolidated assets. At December 31, 

2016, the maximum potential amount of future payments 

(undiscounted) we could be required to make under the 

guarantees was approximately $62.7 million at December 

31, 2016. The guarantees expire through 2026 and our 

performance under the guarantees would be required to the 

extent there is a shortfall in liquidation between the principal 

amount of the loan and the net sale proceeds of the applicable 

properties. If we were to become obligated to perform on 

these guarantees, it could have an adverse effect on our 

financial condition.

As of December 31, 2016, we have unfulfilled capital 

commitments totaling $24.7 million to our unconsolidated 

investments. As we identify investment opportunities in 

the future, we may be called upon to contribute additional 

capital to unconsolidated investments in satisfaction of our 

capital commitment obligations.

Non-Recourse Carve Out Guarantees—Most of our real estate 

properties within our equity partnerships are encumbered 

by traditional non-recourse debt obligations. In connection 

with most of these loans, however, we entered into certain 

“non-recourse carve out” guarantees, which provide for 

the loans to become partially or fully recourse against us if 

certain triggering events occur. Although these events are 

different for each guarantee, some of the common events 

include:

• the special purpose property-owning subsidiary’s filing 

a voluntary petition for bankruptcy;

• the special purpose property-owning subsidiary’s 

failure to maintain its status as a special purpose entity; 

and

• subject to certain conditions, the special purpose 

property-owning subsidiary’s failure to obtain lender’s 

written consent prior to any subordinate financing 

or other voluntary lien encumbering the associated 

property.

In the event that any of these triggering events occur 

and the loans become partially or fully recourse against us, 

our business, financial condition, results of operations and 

common stock price could be materially adversely affected.

In addition, other items that are customarily recourse to 

a non-recourse carve out guarantor include, but are not 

limited to, the payment of real property taxes, liens which 

are senior to the mortgage loan and outstanding security 

deposits.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

Inflation has not had a significant impact on the results of 

operations of our company in recent years.

Our exposure to market risk from changing prices consists 

primarily of fluctuations in rental rates of commercial and 

residential properties, market interest rates on residential 

mortgages and debt obligations and real estate property 

values. Rental rate increases are dependent upon market 

conditions and the competitive environments in the respective 

locations of the properties. The revenues associated with the 

real estate services businesses are impacted by fluctuations 

in interest rates, lease rates, real property values and the 

availability of space and competition in the market place. 

Real estate service revenues are derived from a broad range 

of real estate services that are primarily transaction driven 
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and are therefore volatile in nature and highly competitive. 

The revenues of the investment management operations 

with respect to rental properties are highly dependent 

upon the aggregate rents of the properties managed, which 

are affected by rental rates and building occupancy rates. 

Employee compensation is the principal cost element of 

investment management. To the extent that we engage in 

development activities, we may have exposure to changing 

prices in materials or cost of labor.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our primary market risk exposure relates to changes in interest 

rates in connection with our short-term borrowings, some of 

which bear interest at variable rates based on the lender’s 

base rate, prime rate, EURIBOR, GBP LIBOR, or LIBOR plus 

an applicable borrowing margin. These borrowings do not 

give rise to a significant interest rate risk because they have 

short maturities. However, the amount of income or loss we 

recognize for unconsolidated joint ventures or consolidated 

interest expense from property level debt may be impacted 

by changes in interest rates. Historically, the impact from the 

changes in rates has not been significant. Our exposure to 

market risk also consists of foreign currency exchange rate 

fluctuations related to our international operations.

Interest Rate Risk

We have established an interest rate management policy, 

which attempts to minimize our overall cost of debt while 

taking into consideration the earnings implications associated 

with the volatility of short-term interest rates. As part of this 

policy, we have elected to maintain a combination of variable 

and fixed rate debt. As of December 31, 2016, 80% of our 

consolidated debt is fixed rate, 12% is floating rate with 

interest caps and 8% is floating rate without interest caps.

We hold variable rate debt on some of our consolidated 

properties that are subject to interest rate fluctuations. In 

order to mitigate some of the risk associated with increasing 

interest rates we have purchased interest rate caps that limit 

the amount that interest expense can increase with rate 

increases. However, some of its debt is uncapped and the 

mortgages that do have interest caps are subject to increased 

interest expense until rates hit the level of caps that have 

been purchased. If there was a 100 basis point increase or 

decrease, we would have a $6.7 million increase in interest 

expense or $3.5 million in interest expense savings during 

2017 of our current consolidated mortgages. The weighted 

average maturity of KW Group’s variable rate mortgages is 

approximately 4 years as of December 31, 2016. 

The table below represents contractual balances of our 

financial instruments at the expected maturity dates as well 

as the fair value as of December 31, 2016. The weighted 

average interest rate for the various assets and liabilities 

presented are actual as of December 31, 2016. We closely 

monitor the fluctuation in interest rates, and if rates were to 

increase significantly, we believe that we would be able to 

either hedge the change in the interest rate or refinance the 

loans with fixed interest rate debt. All instruments included 

in this analysis are non-trading.

Principal Maturing in: Fair Value 
December 31, 

 2016(dollars in millions) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter Total

Interest rate sensitive assets

Cash equivalents $914.4 $       — $       — $       — $     — $         — $    914.4 $    914.4

Average interest rate 0.11% —% —% —% —% —% 0.11% —

Fixed rate receivables 72.9 — 4.5 — — — 77.4 77.4

Average interest rate (1) 3.05% —% 5.00% —% —% —% 3.76% —

Variable rate receivables 10.3 — — — — — 10.3 10.3

Average interest rate 3.87% —% —% —% —% —% 3.87% —

Total $997.6 $       — $     4.5 $       — $     — $         — $ 1,002.1 $ 1,002.1

Weighted average interest rate (1) 0.18% —% 5.00% —% —% —% 0.20%

Interest rate sensitive liabilities

Variable rate borrowings $  70.1 $    92.5 $ 470.2 $   13.1 $  51.5 $    312.7 $ 1,010.1 $ 1,009.0

Average interest rate 2.92% 3.39% 2.17% 4.01% 3.01% 2.75% 2.58% —

Fixed rate borrowings — 68.6 102.6 218.3 47.4 3,488.1 3,925.0 3,964.9

Average interest rate —% 4.15% 4.36% 3.78% 4.85% 4.18% 4.18% —

Total $  70.1 $  161.1 $ 572.8 $ 231.4 $  98.9 $ 3,800.8 $ 4,935.1 $ 4,973.9

Weighted average interest rate 2.92% 3.71% 2.57% 3.80% 3.89% 4.06% 3.85%

(1) Interest rate sensitive assets’ weighted average interest rates are exclusive of non-performing receivables

Currency Risk - Foreign Currencies

The financial statements of KW Group’s subsidiaries located 

outside the United States are measured using the local 

currency as this is their functional currency. The assets and 

liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at the rates 

of exchange at the balance sheet date, and income and 

expenses are translated at the average monthly rate. The 

foreign currencies primarily include the euro and the British 

pound sterling. Cumulative translation adjustments, to the 

extent not included in cumulative net income, are included 

in the consolidated statement of equity as a component 

of accumulated other comprehensive income. Currency 

translation gains and losses and currency derivative gains 

and losses will remain in other comprehensive income 

unless and until the Company substantially liquidates 

underlying investments.

As the total amount of assets denominated in foreign cur-

rencies has grown due to KW Group’s expansion in Europe, 

we have also increased the amount of corresponding for-

eign currency derivative contracts. As of December 31, 2016, 

approximately 36% of our investment account is invested 

through our foreign platforms in their local currencies. In-

vestment level debt is generally incurred in local currencies 

and therefore we consider our equity investment as the ap-

propriate exposure to evaluate for hedging purposes. 

As discussed throughout this report, we are required un-

der U.S. GAAP to consolidate certain non-wholly owned 

subsidiaries or investments that we control. As such, our fi-

nancial statements reflect currency translation adjustments 

and related hedging activities on a gross basis. In many in-

stances, these fluctuations are not reflective of the actual 

foreign currency exposure of the underlying consolidated 

subsidiary. For example, we are required to translate the 

activities of KWE into US dollars even though KWE does 

not invest in US dollar denominated assets. Therefore, it is 

important to look at the provided currency translation and 

currency derivative adjustment information net of noncon-

trolling interests to get a more accurate understanding of 

our actual currency exposure.

We hedge the GBP exposure related to our investment in 

the KWE shares as KWE’s functional currency is GBP. How-

ever, approximately 44% of KWE investments are Euro de-

nominated investments. KWE generally hedges its net cost 

basis in the Euro denominated assets. As such, to provide 

a more accurate picture of KW’s actual GBP and euro expo-

sure, in the table below we included KWE’s euro denominat-

ed investments in the GBP column.

If our business in Europe continues to grow, primarily 

due to the growth of KWE, fluctuations in the Euro and GBP 

foreign exchange rates will have a greater impact on our 

business. In order to manage the effect of these fluctua-

tions, we typically hedge 50%-100% of foreign currency ex-

change rate risk associated with our net cost basis in certain 

non-U.S. operations through the use of currency derivative 

contracts such as foreign currency forward contracts and 

options. Our service businesses typically do not require 

much capital so foreign currency translation and derivative 

activity primarily relates to the investments segment as 

that has greater balance sheet exposure to foreign currency 

fluctuations.

We typically have not hedged the impact foreign curren-

cy fluctuations may have on our future operations or cash 

flows. The costs to operate these businesses, such as com-

pensation, overhead and interest expense are incurred in 

local currencies. As we are not currently hedging our cur-

rent operations there will be foreign currency impact on our 

results of operations for both the services and investment 

segments.
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The table below shows the Company’s investment account and consolidated cash position by currency as well as any 

hedges on those currencies as of December 31, 2016 and the impact of a 10% fluctuation in rates.

(in millions) GBP Euro
Total

Non-USD USD Total

USD

Investment account(1)(2) $  535.7 26% $  213.9 10% $ 749.6 36% $1,322.8 64% $2,072.4

Cash 1.9 —% 2.1 1% 4.0 1% 255.4 98% 259.4

Local currencies

Investment account £ 434.1 € 203.4

Cash £     1.5 €     2.0

Hedges, net of noncontrolling interests

Notional Amount £ 295.2 € 130.0

Rate fluctuation impact

10% increase $   34.0 $   11.6

10% decrease $  (33.8) $  (10.9)

(1) Includes cash held by consolidated investments net of noncontrolling interests
(2) Excludes hedge fair values, net of noncontrolling interest of $16.0 million and $(11.9) million on GBP and Euro, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements 

include the accounts of KW Group and voting interest entities 

which it controls. All significant intercompany balances and 

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In addition, 

Kennedy Wilson evaluates its relationships with other entities 

to identify whether they are variable interest entities (“VIE”) as 

defined by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810 – 

Consolidation and to assess whether it is the primary beneficiary 

of such entities. In determining whether Kennedy Wilson is the 

primary beneficiary of a VIE, qualitative and quantitative factors 

are considered, including, but not limited to: the amount and 

characteristics of Kennedy Wilson’s investment; the obligation 

or likelihood for Kennedy Wilson to provide financial support; 

Kennedy Wilson’s ability to control or significantly influence key 

decisions for the VIE; and the similarity with and significance 

to the business activities of Kennedy Wilson. Significant 

judgments related to these determinations include estimates 

about the future fair values and performance of real estate held 

by these VIEs and general market conditions.

Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Plc (“KWE,” LSE: 

KWE), a Jersey investment company formed to invest in real 

estate and real estate-related assets in Europe, closed its 

initial public offering (“IPO”) on the London Stock Exchange 

during the quarter ended March 31, 2014. KWE is externally 

managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kennedy 

Wilson incorporated in Jersey pursuant to an investment 

management agreement. Due to the terms provided in the 

investment management agreement and Kennedy Wilson’s 

equity ownership interest in KWE, pursuant to the guidance 

set forth in Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810 - 

Consolidation (“Subtopic 810”), the Company is required 

to consolidate KWE’s results in its consolidated financial 

statements. As of December 31, 2016, the Company invested 

$489.3 million and owned approximately 23.6% of KWE’s 

total issued share capital. 

Prior to KWE’s formation and for investments that do 

not meet KWE’s investment guidelines, the Company has 

directly invested in 17 properties and a servicing platform 

in Europe that have total assets of $834.4 million included 

in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and $269.1 

million of equity as of December 31, 2016. As of December 

31, 2016, the Company’s weighted average ownership in 

these investments was 63.1%. 

Use of Estimates—The preparation of the accompanying 

consolidated financial statements in conformity with 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

about future events. These estimates and the underlying 

assumptions affect the amounts of assets and liabilities 

reported, disclosure about contingent assets and liabilities, 

and reported amounts of revenues and expenses. 

Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on 

an ongoing basis using historical experience and other 

factors, including the current economic environment, 

which management believes to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. Management adjusts such estimates and 

assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As 

future events and their effects cannot be determined with 

precision, actual results could differ significantly from these 

estimates. Changes in those estimates will be reflected in 

the financial statements in future periods.

Revenue Recognition—Revenue consists of management 

and leasing fees (including performance fees), commissions, 

rental and hotel income, sales of real estate and loan and 

other income.

Management fees are primarily comprised of investment 

management, property services, and research fees. 

Investment management fees are earned from KWE and 

from limited partners of funds, co-investments, or separate 

accounts and are generally based on a fixed percentage 

of committed capital or net asset value. Property services 

fees are earned for managing the operations of real estate 

assets and are generally based on a fixed percentage of the 

revenues generated from the respective real estate assets. 

Research fees are earned from consulting arrangements. 

These fees are recognized as revenue ratably over the 

period that the respective services are performed.

Performance fees or carried interest are allocated to the 

general partner, special limited partner or asset manager of 

Kennedy Wilson’s real estate funds and loan pool participations 

based on the cumulative performance of the fund and loan 

pools and are subject to preferred return thresholds of the 

limited partners and participants. At the end of each reporting 

period, Kennedy Wilson calculates the performance fee that 

would be due as if the fair value of the underlying investments 

were realized as of such date, irrespective of whether such 

amounts have been realized. As the fair value of underlying 

investments varies between reporting periods, it is necessary 

to make adjustments to amounts recorded as performance 

fees to reflect either (a) positive performance resulting in an 

increase in the performance fee allocated to the general partner 

or asset manager or (b) negative performance that would cause 

the amount due to Kennedy Wilson to be less than the amount 

previously recognized as revenue, resulting in a negative 

adjustment to performance fees allocated to the general partner 

or asset manager. Substantially all of the performance fees are 

recognized in investment management fees and substantially 

all of the carried interest is recognized in income from 

unconsolidated investments in our consolidated statements of 

operations. Total performances fees recognized to date through 

December 31, 2016 that may be reversed in future periods 

if there is negative fund performance totaled $27.4 million. 

Performance fees recognized during the years ended December 

31, 2016, 2015, and 2013 were $13.0 million, $18.0 million and 

$8.5 million and are included in accounts receivable—related 

parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

KWE is externally managed by one of our wholly-owned 

subsidiaries (“KWE Manager”) pursuant to an investment 

management agreement in which Kennedy Wilson will be 

entitled to receive certain management and performance fees. 

KWE Manager is paid an annual management fee (payable 

quarterly in arrears) equal to 1% of KWE’s adjusted net asset 

value (EPRA NAV). The management fee payable to KWE 

Manager is paid half in cash and half in shares of KWE. KW 

Manager earned $22.2 million in management fees which is 

eliminated in consolidation due to our consolidation of KWE.

We are also entitled to receive an annual performance fee 

equal to 20% of the lesser of (i) the excess of the shareholder 

return for the relevant year (defined as the change in KWE’s 

adjusted net asset value per ordinary share plus dividends 

paid) over a 10% annual return hurdle, and (ii) the excess of 

year-end adjusted net asset value per ordinary share over 

a “high water mark.” The performance fee is payable in 

shares of KWE that vest equally over a three-year period. As 

of December 31, 2016, no such fees have been accrued by 

Kennedy Wilson for the current period. 

Commissions primarily consist of acquisition fees, 

auction and real estate sales commissions, leasing 

commissions, and consulting fees. Acquisition fees are 

earned for identifying and closing investments on behalf 

of investors and are based on a fixed percentage of the 

acquisition price. Acquisition fees are recognized upon the 

successful completion of an acquisition after all required 

services have been performed. In the case of auction and 

real estate sales commissions, the revenue is generally 

recognized when escrow closes. In accordance with the 

guidelines established for Reporting Revenue Gross as a 

Principal versus Net as an Agent in the ASC Subtopic 605-

45, KW Group records commission revenues and expenses 

on a gross basis. Of the criteria listed in the Subtopic 605-45, 

Kennedy Wilson is the primary obligor in the transaction, 

does not have inventory risk, performs all or part of the 

service, has credit risk, and has wide latitude in establishing 

the price of services rendered and discretion in selection of 

agents and determination of service specifications. Leasing 

fees that are payable upon tenant occupancy, payment of 

rent or other events beyond Kennedy Wilson’s control are 

recognized upon the occurrence of such events.

Rental income from operating leases is generally 

recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the 

leases. Hotel income is earned when rooms are occupied or 

goods and services have been delivered or rendered.

Sales of real estate are recognized when title to the real 

property passes to the buyer and there is no continuing 

involvement in the real property. KW Group follows the 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
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requirements for profit recognition as set forth by the Sale 

of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20.

Interest income from investments in loans acquired at a 

discount are recognized using the effective interest method. 

Interest income from investments in loans which KW Group 

originates are recognized at the stated interest rate. When 

a loan or loans are acquired with deteriorated credit quality 

primarily for the rewards of collateral ownership, such loans are 

accounted for as loans until KW Group is in possession of the 

collateral. However, accrual of income is not recorded during 

the conversion period under ASC Subtopic 310-30-25. Income 

is recognized to the extent that cash is received from the loan.

Real Estate Acquisitions—When acquiring a property, the 

purchase price of acquired properties is recorded to land, 

buildings and building improvements and intangible lease 

value (value of above-market and below-market leases, 

acquired in-place lease values, and tenant relationships, 

if any) based on their respective estimated fair values in 

accordance with Business Combinations ASC Subtopics 

805-10. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The valuations of real estate are based on management 

estimates of the real estate assets using income and market 

approaches. The indebtedness securing the real estate 

are valued, in part, based on third party valuations and 

management estimates also using an income approach.

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests are 

reported within equity as a separate component of Kennedy 

Wilson’s equity in accordance with Noncontrolling Interests 

in Consolidated Financial Statements ASC Subtopic 810-10. 

Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, net income or loss, and 

other comprehensive income are reported in the consolidated 

statements of operations at the consolidated amounts and 

net income and comprehensive income attributable to 

noncontrolling interests are separately stated. Due to the 

launch and consolidation of KWE and the Company’s 23.6% 

ownership there has been a large increase in noncontrolling 

interest during 2014. Management fees earned by KWE 

Manger for managing KWE are eliminated in consolidation 

however the amount attributable to the noncontrolling 

interest holders of KWE are recognized through net income 

(loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest holders.

Foreign Currencies—The financial statements of 

subsidiaries located outside the United States are measured 

using the local currency as the functional currency. The 

assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at 

the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date, and income 

and expenses are translated at the average monthly rate. 

The foreign currencies include the Euro, the British pound 

sterling, and the Japanese yen. Cumulative translation 

adjustments, to the extent not included in cumulative net 

income, are included in the consolidated statements of 

equity and comprehensive income as a component of 

accumulated other comprehensive income. The Company 

hedges its investments in foreign subsidiaries with forward 

and option contracts as discussed below.

At December 31, 2016, approximately 36% of our 

investment account is invested through our foreign 

platforms in their local currencies. Investment level debt 

is generally incurred in local currencies. Fluctuations in 

foreign exchanges rates may have a significant impact on 

the results of our operations. In order to manage the effect 

of these fluctuations, we generally hedge our book equity 

exposure to foreign currencies through currency forward 

contracts and options. We typically hedge 50%-100% of the 

book equity exposure to these foreign currencies. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging—KW Group holds 

derivatives to reduce our exposure to foreign currencies. 

We recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair 

value. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to 

fair value and the changes in fair value must be reflected 

as income or expense. If the derivative qualifies for hedge 

accounting, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes 

in the fair value of derivatives are either offset against 

the change in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities, 

or firm commitments through earnings or recognized in 

other comprehensive income, which is a component of the 

stockholders’ equity accounts. The ineffective portion of a 

derivative’s change in fair value is immediately recognized 

in earnings.

Unconsolidated Investments—KW Group has a number 

of joint venture interests that were formed to acquire, 

manage, and/or sell real estate and invest in loan pools and 

discounted loan portfolios. Investments in unconsolidated 

investments are accounted for under the equity method of 

accounting as KW Group can exercise significant influence, 

but does not have the ability to control the unconsolidated 

investment. An investment in an unconsolidated investment 

is recorded at its initial investment and is increased or 

decreased by KW Group’s share of income or loss, plus 

additional contributions and less distributions. A decline in 

the value of an unconsolidated investment that is other than 

temporary is recognized when evidence indicates that such 

a decline has occurred in accordance with Equity Method 

Investments ASC Subtopic 323-10. As of December 31, 2016, 

the Company also had an investment in one joint venture 

which is a VIE in which the Company is not the primary 

beneficiary and therefore accounts for it under the equity 

method as well.

Profits on the sale of real estate held by unconsolidated 

investments in which KW Group has continuing involvement 

are deferred until such time that the continuing involvement 

has been concluded and all the risks and rewards of ownership 

have passed to the buyer. Profit on sales to unconsolidated 

investment in which KW Group retains an equity ownership 

interest results in partial sales treatment in accordance with 

Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20, thus deferring 

a portion of the gain as a result of KW Group’s continuing 

ownership percentage in the unconsolidated investment.

Kennedy Wilson records its investments in certain funds 

it manages and sponsors (“the Funds”) that are investment 

companies under the Investment Companies ASC Subtopic 

946-10, based upon the net assets that would be allocated 

to its interests in the Funds assuming the Funds were to 

liquidate their investments at fair value as of the reporting 

date. Thus, the Funds reflect their investments at fair value, 

with unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in 

fair value reflected in their earnings. Kennedy Wilson has 

retained the specialized accounting for the Funds pursuant 

to Retention of Specialized Accounting for Investments in 

Consolidation ASC Subtopic 323-10 in recording its equity 

in joint venture income from the Funds.

Additionally, Kennedy Wilson elected the fair value option 

for thirteen investments in unconsolidated investment 

entities. Kennedy Wilson elected to record these investments 

at fair value to more accurately reflect the timing of the 

value created in the underlying investments and report 

those results in current operations.

Interest income from investments in loan pool participations 

are recognized on a level yield basis under the provisions of 

Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit 

Quality ASC Subtopic 310-30, where a level yield model is 

utilized to determine a yield rate which, based upon projected 

future cash flows, accretes interest income over the estimated 

holding period. In the event that the present value of those 

future cash flows is less than net book value, a loss would be 

immediately recorded. When the future cash flows of a note 

cannot be reasonably estimated, cash payments are applied 

to the cost basis of the note until it is fully recovered before 

any interest income is recognized.

Fair Value Measurements—KW Group accounts for fair value 

measurements of financial assets and financial liabilities 

and for fair value measurements of non-financial items 

that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial 

statements on a recurring basis under the provisions of Fair 

Value Measurements ASC Subtopic 820-10. Subtopic 820-10 

defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell 

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. When 

estimating fair value in the absence of an orderly transaction 

between market participants, valuations of real estate are 

based on management estimates of the real estate assets 

using income and market approaches. The indebtedness 

securing the real estate and the investments in debt securities 

are valued, in part, based on third party valuations and 

management estimates also using an income approach.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The estimated fair value 

of financial instruments is determined using available market 

information and appropriate valuation methodologies. 

Considerable judgment, however, is necessary to interpret 

market data and develop the related estimates of fair value. 

Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily 

indicative of the amounts that could be realized upon 

disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different 

market assumptions or estimation methodologies may have a 

material impact on the estimated fair value amounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from 

Contracts with Customers, a five step model to recognize 

revenue from customer contracts in an effort to increase 

consistency and comparability throughout global capital 

markets and across industries. The model will identify the 

contract, identify any separate performance obligations 

in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate 

the transaction price and recognize revenue when the 

performance obligation is satisfied. The new standard 

will apply to KW Group’s management and leasing fees 

(including performance fees), commissions, rental and hotel 

income. Management is evaluating the impact of the five 

step model and determined that it is not expected to have a 

significant impact on the financial statements. ASU 2014-09 

will also impact how sales of real estate are reported, which 

will become subject to ASC Subtopic 610-20 Other Income- 

Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial 

Assets (“Subtopic 610-20”). After review of Subtopic 610-

20, management concluded that the new standard is not 

expected to have a significant impact on the amount, 

timing or classification of real estate sales in the financial 

statements or related disclosures based on the Company’s 

current business mix. The new standard will replace most 

existing revenue recognition in GAAP when it becomes 

effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The Company 

is planning on adopting a modified retrospective transition 

method when the guidance becomes effective.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, 

Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation 

Analysis and was adopted by the KW Group on January 1, 

2016. The new standard makes certain changes to both the 

variable interest model and the voting model, including 

changes to (1) the identification of variable interests (fees 

paid to a decision maker or service provider), (2) the variable 

interest entity characteristics for a limited partnership or 

similar entity and (3) the primary beneficiary determination. 

The adoption of ASU 2015-02 did not result in any changes 

to the Company’s conclusions regarding the consolidation 

of investments under the new standard. The Company 

identified several entities, already consolidated under the 

previous standard but not considered VIEs, which under the 
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new standard, are considered VIEs and will continue to be 

consolidated. KWE was determined to be a VIE under the new 

standard as were eight other less significant consolidated 

investments, all with the same partner and sharing similar 

legal structures. However, because the Company’s analysis 

concludes that the Company is the primary beneficiary of 

those entities, they continue to be consolidated. 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the 

Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, to reduce the complexity 

of financial statement presentation pursuant to which debt 

issuance costs will be presented as a direct deduction from the 

carrying amount of debt liabilities as opposed to a deferred 

charge recognized as an asset. ASU 2015-03 is required to be 

adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015. 

ASU 2015-03 became effective for KW Group beginning 

January 1, 2016. The adoption of this standard did not have 

a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases 

(Topic 842), which sets out the principles for the recognition, 

measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both 

parties to a contract (i.e., lessees and lessors). The new standard 

requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases 

as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of 

whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase by 

the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease 

expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or 

on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is also 

required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all 

leases with a term of greater than 12 months regardless of their 

classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be 

accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating leases 

today. The new standard requires lessors to account for leases 

using an approach that is substantially equivalent to existing 

guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing leases and 

operating leases. ASU 2016-02 is required to be adopted for fiscal 

years beginning after December 15, 2018. Because KW Group’s 

existing operating lease commitments are not material and the 

accounting for leases by the lessor is substantially unchanged, 

the Company does not expect the ASU to have a significant 

impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-07, Simplifying 

the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting, which 

eliminates the requirement for an investor to retroactively 

apply the equity method when its increase in ownership 

interest (or degree of influence) in an investee triggers 

equity method accounting. ASU 2016-07 is effective for all 

entities in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. 

The Company does not expect the ASU to have a significant 

impact on KW Group’s consolidated financial statements.

On March 30, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, 

Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, 

which is intended to improve the accounting for share-based 

payment transactions as part of the FASB’s simplification 

initiative. The ASU changes seven aspects of the accounting 

for share-based payment award transactions, including: 

(1) accounting for income taxes; (2) classification of excess 

tax benefits on the statement of cash flows; (3) forfeitures; 

(4) minimum statutory tax withholding requirements; (5) 

classification of employee taxes paid on the statement of cash 

flows when an employer withholds shares for tax-withholding 

purposes; (6) practical expedient - expected term (nonpublic 

only); and (7) intrinsic value (nonpublic only). ASU 2015-09 

is required to be adopted for public entities for fiscal years 

beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company does not 

expect the ASU to have a significant impact on KW Group’s 

consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, 

Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, 

which addresses eight classification issues related to 

the statement of cash flows: (a) debt prepayment or debt 

extinguishment costs, (b) settlement of zero-coupon bonds, 

(c) contingent consideration payments made after a business 

combination (d) proceeds from the settlement of insurance 

claims, (e) proceeds from the settlement of corporate-

owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life 

insurance policies, (f) distributions received from equity 

method investees, (g) beneficial interests in securitization 

transactions, and (h) separately identifiable cash flows and 

application of the predominance principle. ASU 2016-15 is 

required to be adopted for public entities for fiscal years 

beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company does not 

expect the ASU to have a significant impact on KW Group’s 

consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01, Business 

Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a 

Business. The ASU clarifies the definition of a business. The 

three elements of a business (inputs, processes, and outputs) 

has not changed, however, the amendment provides a 

framework to assist entities in evaluating whether these 

elements are present. The amended framework is not expected 

to materially impact the Company’s financial statements. 

However, the amendment also includes a provision that when 

substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired 

(or disposed of) is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or 

a group of similar identifiable assets, the set is not a business. 

Therefore, Real estate acquisitions generally will no longer be 

considered a business and consequently not be accounted 

for under Topic 805. The Company has evaluated the likely 

impacts noting that (1) acquisition related costs will no longer 

be expensed as incurred and (2) regardless of the market 

value of a property at the acquisition date, acquisition related 

gains will no longer be recorded. ASU 2017-01 is required to 

be adopted for public entities for fiscal years beginning after 

December 15, 2017.

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets  

of Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the 

Company) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related 

consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive 

income, equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the 

three-year period ended December 31, 2016. In connection 

with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, 

we also have audited financial statement schedules III and 

IV. These consolidated financial statements and financial 

statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s 

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these consolidated financial statements and financial 

statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards 

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 

(United States). Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred 

to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries 

as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their 

operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the 

three-year period ended December 31, 2016, in conformity 

with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in 

our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when 

considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial 

statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material 

respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of 

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 

States), Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.’s internal control 

over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based 

on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated 

Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and 

our report dated February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 

control over financial reporting.

Los Angeles, California

February 27, 2017

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.’s internal 

control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, 

based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated 

Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.’s management is responsible 

for maintaining effective internal control over financial 

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 

internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control 

over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards 

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 

(United States). Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether effective internal control over financial reporting 

was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included 

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial 

reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 

Our audit also included performing such other procedures as 

we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe 

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 

internal control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the company are being made only in accordance 

with authorizations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 

a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 

Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.

In our opinion, Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. maintained, 

in all material respects, effective internal control over 

financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria 

established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) 

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 

the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of 

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 

States), the consolidated balance sheets of Kennedy-Wilson 

Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 

2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 

comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for each 

of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 

2016, as well as schedules III and IV, and our report dated 

February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on 

those consolidated financial statements.

Los Angeles, California

February 27, 2017

December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015

Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents $    260.2 $     182.6

 Cash and cash equivalents held by consolidated investments 625.5 549.0

 Accounts receivable (including $30.4 and $22.9 of related party) 71.3 54.7

 Loan purchases and originations (including $0 and $40.9 of related party) 87.7 299.7

 Real estate and acquired in place lease values, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,814.2 5,797.5

 Unconsolidated investments (including $333.8 and $223.8 at fair value) 560.1 444.9

 Other assets 240.1 267.2

  Total assets(1) $ 7,659.1 $  7,595.6

Liabilities

 Accounts payable $11.2 $22.2

 Accrued expenses and other liabilities 412.1 392.0

 Investment debt 3,956.1 3,627.5

 Senior notes payable 936.6 688.8

  Total liabilities (1) 5,316.0 4,730.5

Equity

 Cumulative preferred stock, $0.0001 par value: 1,000,000 shares authorized $1,000 per share liquidation  
  preference; 32,550 shares of Series B preferred stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 — —

 Common Stock, 115,740,906 and 114,533,581 shares issued outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and  
  December 31, 2015

— —

 Additional paid-in capital 1,231.4 1,225.7

 Accumulated deficit (112.2) (44.2)

 Accumulated other comprehensive loss (71.2) (47.7)

  Total Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders’ equity 1,048.0 1,133.8

 Noncontrolling interests 1,295.1 1,731.3

 Total equity 2,343.1 2,865.1

 Total liabilities and equity $ 7,659.1 $  7,595.6

(1)  The assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2016 include $4.5 billion (including cash held by consolidated investments of $0.6 billion and real estate 
and acquired in place lease values, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $3.6 billion) and $2.7 billion (including investment debt of 
$2.4 billion), respectively, from consolidated variable interest entities (“VIEs”). The assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2015 include $5.0 billion 
(including cash held by consolidated investments of $0.5 billion and real estate and acquired in place lease values, net of accumulated depreciation 
and amortization of $4.0 billion) and $2.7 billion (including investment debt of $2.4 billion), respectively, from VIEs. These assets can only be used to 
settle obligations of the consolidated VIEs, and the liabilities do not have recourse to the Company.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions, except per share data) 2016 2015 2014

Revenue
 Rental $           485.9 $          404.8 $        206.9
 Hotel 116.2 106.4 63.3
 Sale of real estate 29.3 3.7 28.4
 Investment management, property services, and research fees (includes $28.9, $37.8, and  
  $57.4 million of related party fees, respectively) 59.4 69.3 82.6
 Loan purchases, loan originations, and other 12.6 19.5 17.4

  Total revenue 703.4 603.7 398.6

Operating expenses

 Rental operating 135.4 108.0 59.3
 Hotel operating 96.3 89.9 57.1
 Cost of real estate sold 22.1 2.6 20.7
 Commission and marketing 8.0 7.3 5.6
 Compensation and related 186.5 154.8 113.8
 General and administrative 45.4 43.8 42.1
 Depreciation and amortization 198.2 166.3 104.5

  Total operating expenses 691.9 572.7 403.1
Income from unconsolidated investments 126.6 97.4 54.2

  Operating income 138.1 128.4 49.7
Non-operating income (expense)
 Gain on sale of real estate 130.7 72.4 —
 Acquisition-related gains 16.2 108.1 218.1
 Acquisition-related expenses (9.5) (37.3) (19.7)
 Interest expense - investment (137.4) (108.8) (46.3)
 Interest expense - corporate (54.2) (46.9) (57.1)
 Loss on early extinguishment of corporate debt — (1.0) (27.3)
 Other income (expense) 6.6 (2.5) 5.1

  Income before provision for income taxes 90.5 112.4 122.5
Provision for income taxes (14.0) (53.4) (32.4)

  Net income 76.5 59.0 90.1
Net (income) loss attributable to the noncontrolling interests (70.9) 15.7 (68.2)
Preferred dividends and accretion of preferred stock issuance costs (2.8) (3.6) (8.1)

Net income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $               2.8 $            71.1 $          13.8

Basic Earnings per share
   Income per basic $             0.01 $            0.66 $          0.14
   Weighted average shares outstanding for basic 109,094,530 103,261,513 89,200,855
Diluted Earnings per share
   Income per diluted $             0.01 $            0.66 $          0.14
   Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted 109,094,530 109,553,728 91,555,214
Dividends declared per common share $             0.56 $            0.48 $          0.36

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Net income $   76.5 $   59.0 $   90.1

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

 Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities 0.1 0.1 (0.2)

 Unrealized foreign currency translation loss (164.1) (138.3) (46.4)

 Amounts reclassified out of AOCI during the period 3.4 9.7 (7.1)

 Unrealized currency derivative contracts (loss) gain (100.1) 6.3 16.3

Total other comprehensive loss for the period (260.7) (122.2) (37.4)

Comprehensive (loss) income (184.2) (63.2) 52.7

Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests 166.3 118.4 (15.6)

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. $   (17.9 ) $   55.2 $   37.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
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Consolidated Statements of Equity

Additional 

Paid-in 

Capital

Accumulated 

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Preferred Stock Common Stock Retained 

Earnings

Noncontrolling 

Interests Total(dollars in millions, except share amounts) Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at January 1, 2014 132,550 — 82,592,607 $   — $   801.3 $   (42.2) $   9.2 $   50.6 $   818.9
Issuance of shares, net — — 9,201,250 — 190.6 — — — 190.6
Shares granted — — 3,147,500 — — — — — —
Exercise of Warrants into Common — — 1,472,146 — — — — — —
Shares forfeited — — (2,475) — — — — — —
Shares retired due to RSG Vesting — — (319,582) — (8.1) — — — (8.1)
Stock based compensation — — — — 15.8 — — — 15.8
 Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Unrealized foreign currency translation 
  loss, net of tax — — — — — — (46.7) (94.4) (141.1)
 Unrealized foreign currency derivative  
  contract gain, net of tax — — — — 9.5 10.6 20.1
 Unrealized losses on marketable  
  securities, net of tax — — — — — — (0.2) — (0.2)
 Preferred stock dividends — — — — — (8.1) — (8.1)
Common stock dividends — — — — — (33.6) — — (33.6)
Net income (loss) — — — 21.9 — 68.2 90.1
Consolidation of noncontrolling interests — — — — — 291.8 291.8
Issuance of KWE shares, net — — (8.3) — — 1,893.9 1,885.6
Acquisition of Kennedy Wilson Europe 
 (KWE) — — — — — (51.1) (51.1)
Contributions from noncontrolling 
 interests, excluding KWE — — — — — — — 30.9 30.9
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — (57.7) (57.7)
Balance, December 31, 2014 132,550 — 96,091,446 — 991.3 (62.0) (28.2) 2,142.8 3,043.9
Issuance of 8,625,000 shares, net — — 8,625,000 — 215.0 — — — 215.0
Shares forfeited — — (57,148) — — — — — —
RSG Grants — — 1,754,750 — — — — —
Shares retired due to RSG Vesting — — (435,415) — (11.4) — — — (11.4)
Conversion of preferred stock to  
 common stock (100,000) — 8,554,948 — — — — — —
Stock based compensation — — — — 30.8 — — — 30.8
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Unrealized foreign currency translation 
  loss, net of tax — — — — — — (27.5) (92.0) (119.5)
 Unrealized foreign currency derivative  
  contract gain (loss), net of tax — — — — — — 8.0 (10.7) (2.7)
 Preferred stock dividends — — — — — (3.6) — — (3.6)
Common stock dividends — — — — — (53.3) — — (53.3)
Net income (loss) — — — — — 74.7 — (15.7) 59.0
Acquisition of Kennedy Wilson Europe  
 (KWE) shares from noncontrolling  
 interest holders — — — — — — — (68.4) (68.4)
Contributions from noncontrolling  
 interests, excluding KWE — — — — — — — 14.5 14.5
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — (239.2) (239.2)

Retained 

Earnings 

(Accumulated 

Deficit)

Accumulated 

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Noncontrolling 

Interests Total

Additional 

Paid-in 

Capital
(dollars in millions, except share 
amounts)

Preferred Stock Common Stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2015 32,550 $ — 114,533,581 $ — $1,225.7 $  (44.2 ) $(47.7 ) $1,731.3 2,865.1
Shares forfeited — — (31,900) — — — —
Conversion of preferred stock  

 to common stock (32,550) — 3,366,973 — — — — — —
RSG Grants — — 1,006,750 — — — — — —
Shares retired due to RSG  

 Vesting — — (693,942) — (14.7 ) — — — (14.7)
Shares retired due to common  

 stock repurchase program (2,440,556) — (43.2 ) (6.9 ) — — (50.1)

Stock based compensation — — — — 65.1 — — — 65.1
Other comprehensive income  

 (loss)
 Unrealized foreign currency 

  translation loss, net of tax — — — — — — (28.7 ) (131.6) (160.3)
 Unrealized foreign currency  

  derivative contract gain 

   (loss), net of tax — — — — — — 5.1 (105.6) (100.5)
 Unrealized gains on  

  marketable securities — — — — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Preferred stock dividends — — — — — (2.8) — — (2.8)

Common stock dividends — — — — — (63.9 ) — — (63.9)

Net income — — — — — 5.6 — 70.9 76.5
Acquisition of Kennedy Wilson  

 Europe (KWE) shares from  

 noncontrolling interest holders — — — — — — — (196.9) (196.9)
Acquisition of noncontrolling  

 interests from consolidated  

 entity — — — — (1.5) 1.5 —
Contributions from noncontrolling  

 interests, excluding KWE — — — — — — — 42.1 42.1
Distributions to noncontrolling  

 interests — — — — — — — (116.6) (116.6)

Balance, December 31, 2016 — $ — 115,740,906 $ — $1,231.4 $(112.2 ) $(71.2) $1,295.1 $2,343.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Equity
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Net income $     76.5 $      59.0 $      90.1
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

  Net gain from sale of real estate (137.9) (70.7) (7.7)
  Acquisition-related gains (16.2) (108.1) (218.1)
  Depreciation and amortization 198.2 166.3 104.5
  Provision for deferred income taxes 8.8 24.4 28.2
  Amortization of deferred loan costs 12.3 8.2 4.1
  Amortization of discount and accretion of premium on issuance of the senior notes payable (2.1) (8.6) (14.5)
  Unrealized net (gains) losses on derivatives (6.5) 3.4 2.3
  Income from unconsolidated investments (126.6) (97.2) (54.2)
  Accretion of interest income on loans (11.7) (8.9) (0.9)
  Stock compensation expense 65.1 30.8 15.8
  Operating distributions from unconsolidated investments 62.8 78.8 88.8
  Operating distributions from loans 32.7 9.7 —
  Change in assets and liabilities:
   Accounts receivable (22.9) 2.0 (28.6)
   Other assets (18.0) (14.2) (23.1)
   Accrued expenses and other liabilities (11.6) 103.3 111.4

    Net cash provided by operating activities 102.9 178.2 98.1

Cash flows from investing activities:
  Additions to loans (16.1) (235.8) (536.8)
  Collections of loans 146.9 27.8 95.9
  Nonrefundable escrow deposits — (3.8) (47.7)
  Net proceeds from sale of real estate 540.1 622.6 24.7
  Purchases of and additions to real estate (949.6) (1,927.6) (1,962.2)
  Investment in marketable securities (3.2) (5.0) (11.5)
  Proceeds from sale of marketable securities — 6.2 8.6
  Investing distributions from unconsolidated investments 89.6 180.0 111.8
  Contributions to unconsolidated investments (124.9) (184.3) (167.7)
  Proceeds from settlement of foreign currency derivative contracts 38.6 41.5 14.4
  Purchases of foreign currency derivative contracts (8.1) (5.2) (2.7)

     Net cash used in investing activities (286.7) (1,483.6) (2,473.2)

Cash flow from financing activities:
  Borrowings under senior notes payable 250.0 — 647.2
  Repayment of senior notes payable — — (350.0)
  Repayments of junior subordinated debt — — (40.0)
  Borrowings under lines of credit 125.0 95.0 215.0
  Repayment of lines of credit (125.0) (220.0) (90.0)
  Borrowings under investment debt 1,189.7 2,087.9 1,283.8
  Repayment of investment debt (608.1) (681.1) (345.8)
  Debt issue costs (10.8) (21.7) (38.7)
  Issuance of common stock — 215.0 190.6
  Repurchase of common stock (64.8) (11.4) (8.2)
  Proceeds from the issuance of KWE shares, net — — 1,827.2
  Dividends paid (64.8) (51.8) (38.9)
  Acquisition of noncontrolling interests (196.9) (68.4) (51.0)
  Contributions from noncontrolling interests 42.1 14.5 19.9
  Distributions to noncontrolling interests (116.6) (239.2) (57.7)

     Net cash provided by financing activities 419.8 1,118.8 3,163.4

 Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (81.9) (19.5) (28.8)

     Net change in cash and cash equivalents 154.1 (206.1) 759.5
 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 731.6 937.7 178.2

     Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $   885.7 $    731.6 $    937.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

Supplemental cash flow information:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Cash paid for:

 Interest(1) $ 170.7 $ 133.5 $ 98.9

 Income taxes(2) 10.7 3.0 0.3

(1) $57.8 million, $38.6 million, and $18.0 million attributable to noncontrolling interests for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014.
(2) $8.5 million, $2.5 million, $0.0 million attributable to noncontrolling interests for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014.

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing  

and financing activities:

The Series B Preferred Stock converted into 3,366,973 

common shares on December 28, 2016 at a price of $9.67 

per share. The Company paid $0.7 million of dividends at 

conversion for dividends that would have been accrued 

up to the mandatory conversion date. On May 19, 2015, all 

100,000 outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock 

were mandatorily converted into an aggregate of 8,554,948 

shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.0001 par value 

per share, based on a conversion price of approximately 

$11.69 per share of Common Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company 

acquired additional equity interests in Kona Village and 

a retail property in the Western United States that were 

previously unconsolidated. Subsequent to gaining control and 

consolidating Kona Village, Kennedy Wilson sold a 50% equity 

interest to a strategic partner, resulting in shared control, and, 

accordingly, the Company accounts for its investment under 

the equity method as of December 31, 2016. 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, KWE 

foreclosed on four notes secured by office buildings located 

in Dublin, Ireland and the Company acquired additional 

equity interests in multifamily and commercial properties 

in the Western United States that were previously 

unconsolidated. The assets and liabilities of these properties 

were consolidated in KW Group’s financial statements at 

fair value in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805 Business 

Combinations. As the fair value of the KW Group’s interests 

in these properties were in excess of their carrying value 

of their ownership interest, KW Group recorded acquisition-

related gains of $16.2 million and $108.1 million, during the 

year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. See 

Note 4 for more detail.

On February 28, 2014, the Kennedy Wilson contributed its 

50% interest in an unconsolidated investment which held 

14 commercial, retail, and industrial properties portfolio 

to KWE as part of Kennedy Wilson’s subscription in KWE’s 

initial public offering.

On March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2014, Kennedy Wilson 

amended the existing operating agreements governing 

certain of its investments with certain of its equity partners 

thereby allowing Kennedy Wilson to gain control of these 

operating properties. As a result of obtaining control, the 

assets and liabilities of these properties were consolidated in 

KW Group’s financial statements at fair value in accordance 

with FASB ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations as 

described in note 4.

During 2014, Kennedy Wilson foreclosed on a 133,000 

square foot retail center and an adjacent 2.4-acre vacant lot 

in Van Nuys, CA and on the notes secured by the Shelbourne 

Hotel in Dublin, Ireland. Additionally, Kennedy Wilson 

increased its ownership in a previously unconsolidated 

investment in a 750-unit Western US multifamily property 

from 42% to 87% and amended the existing operating 

agreement to gain control of the property. As a result of 

such foreclosure and increase in ownership, the assets 

and liabilities of these properties were consolidated in KW 

Group’s financial statements at fair value under ASC Topic 

805 Business Combinations, as described in note 4.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 

Note 1—Organization

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. (“KWH,” NYSE: KW), a Delaware 

corporation, and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively 

the “Company” or “Kennedy Wilson”) and its consolidated 

subsidiaries (including KWE as defined below), collectively 

“KW Group”, is a global real estate investment company. We 

own, operate, and invest in real estate both on our own and 

through our investment management platform. We focus on 

multifamily and commercial properties located in the Western 

U.S., UK, Ireland, Spain, Italy and Japan. To complement our 

investment business, the Company also provides real estate 

services primarily to financial services clients.

Note 2—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant 

Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements 

include the accounts of KW Group and voting interest entities 

which it controls. All significant intercompany balances and 

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In addition, 

Kennedy Wilson evaluates its relationships with other entities 

to identify whether they are variable interest entities (“VIE”) as 

defined by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810 – 

Consolidation and to assess whether it is the primary beneficiary 

of such entities. In determining whether Kennedy Wilson is the 

primary beneficiary of a VIE, qualitative and quantitative factors 

are considered, including, but not limited to: the amount and 

characteristics of Kennedy Wilson’s investment; the obligation 

or likelihood for Kennedy Wilson to provide financial support; 

Kennedy Wilson’s ability to control or significantly influence key 

decisions for the VIE; and the similarity with and significance 

to the business activities of Kennedy Wilson. Significant 

judgments related to these determinations include estimates 

about the future fair values and performance of real estate held 

by these VIEs and general market conditions.

Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Plc (“KWE,” LSE: KWE), 

a Jersey investment company formed to invest in real estate 

and real estate-related assets in Europe, closed its initial public 

offering (“IPO”) on the London Stock Exchange during the 

quarter ended March 31, 2014. KWE is externally managed by 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kennedy Wilson incorporated 

in Jersey pursuant to an investment management agreement. 

Due to the terms provided in the investment management 

agreement and Kennedy Wilson’s equity ownership interest 

in KWE, pursuant to the guidance set forth in Financial 

Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards 

Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810 - Consolidation (“Subtopic 

810”), the Company is required to consolidate KWE’s results 

in its consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 

2016, the Company has invested $489.3 million and owned 

approximately 23.6% of KWE’s total issued share capital. 

Prior to KWE’s formation and for investments that do 

not meet KWE’s investment guidelines, the Company has 

directly invested in 17 properties and a servicing platform 

in Europe that have total assets of $834.4 million included 

in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and $269.1 

million of equity as of December 31, 2016. As of December 

31, 2016, the Company’s weighted average ownership in 

these investments was 63.1%. 

Use of Estimates—The preparation of the accompanying 

consolidated financial statements in conformity with 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

about future events. These estimates and the underlying 

assumptions affect the amounts of assets and liabilities 

reported, disclosure about contingent assets and liabilities, 

and reported amounts of revenues and expenses. 

Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on 

an ongoing basis using historical experience and other 

factors, including the current economic environment, 

which management believes to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. Management adjusts such estimates and 

assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As 

future events and their effects cannot be determined with 

precision, actual results could differ significantly from these 

estimates. Changes in those estimates will be reflected in 

the financial statements in future periods.

Revenue Recognition—Revenue consists of management 

and leasing fees (including performance fees), commissions, 

rental and hotel income, sales of real estate and loan income.

Management fees are primarily comprised of investment 

management, property services, and research fees. Investment 

management fees are earned from limited partners of funds, 

co-investments, or separate accounts and are generally based 

on a fixed percentage of committed capital or net asset value. 

Property services fees are earned for managing the operations 

of real estate assets and are generally based on a fixed 

percentage of the revenues generated from the respective 

real estate assets. Research fees are earned from consulting 

arrangements. These fees are recognized as revenue ratably 

over the period that the respective services are performed. The 

Company provides investment management and property 

services on investments it also has an ownership interest 

in. Fees earned on consolidated properties are eliminated 

in consolidation and fees on unconsolidated investments 

are eliminated for the portion that relate to the Company’s 

ownership interest. During the year ended December 31, 

2016, $36.9 million were eliminated in consolidation. 

Performance fees or carried interest are allocated to the 

general partner, special limited partner or asset manager of 

Kennedy Wilson’s real estate funds and loan pool participations 

based on the cumulative performance of the fund and loan 

pools and are subject to preferred return thresholds of the 

limited partners and participants. At the end of each reporting 

period, Kennedy Wilson calculates the performance fee that 

would be due as if the fair value of the underlying investments 

were realized as of such date, irrespective of whether such 

amounts have been realized. As the fair value of underlying 

investments varies between reporting periods, it is necessary 

to make adjustments to amounts recorded as performance 

fees to reflect either (a) positive performance resulting in an 

increase in the performance fee allocated to the general partner 

or asset manager or (b) negative performance that would cause 

the amount due to Kennedy Wilson to be less than the amount 

previously recognized as revenue, resulting in a negative 

adjustment to performance fees allocated to the general partner 

or asset manager. Substantially all of the performance fees are 

recognized in investment management fees in our consolidated 

statements of operations. Total performances fees recognized 

to date through December 31, 2016 that may be reversed in 

future periods if there is negative fund performance totaled 

$27.4 million. Performance fees recognized during the years 

ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 were $13.0 million, 

$18.0 million and $8.5 million and the amounts that have not 

been received are included in accounts receivable—related 

parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

KWE is externally managed by one of the Company’s 

wholly-owned subsidiaries (“KWE Manager”) pursuant 

to an investment management agreement in which 

capacity Kennedy Wilson will be entitled to receive certain 

management and performance fees. KWE Manager is paid 

an annual management fee (payable quarterly in arrears) 

equal to 1% of KWE’s adjusted net asset value (EPRA NAV). 

The management fee payable to KWE Manager is paid half 

in cash and half in shares of KWE. KW Manager earned $22.2 

million in management fees for the year ended December 

31, 2016 which is eliminated in consolidation due to the 

Company’s consolidation of KWE.

We are also entitled to receive an annual performance fee 

equal to 20% of the lesser of (i) the excess of the shareholder 

return for the relevant year (defined as the change in KWE’s 

adjusted net asset value per ordinary share plus dividends 

paid) over a 10% annual return hurdle, and (ii) the excess of 

year-end adjusted net asset value per ordinary share over 

a “high water mark.” The performance fee is payable in 

shares of KWE that vest equally over a three-year period. As 

of December 31, 2016, no such fees have been accrued by 

Kennedy Wilson for the current period. 

Commissions primarily consist of acquisition fees, auction 

and real estate sales commissions, leasing commissions, and 

consulting fees. Acquisition fees are earned for identifying and 

closing investments on behalf of investors and are based on a 

fixed percentage of the acquisition price. Acquisition fees are 

recognized upon the successful completion of an acquisition 

after all required services have been performed. In the case 

of auction and real estate sales commissions, the revenue is 

generally recognized when escrow closes. In accordance with 

the guidelines established for Reporting Revenue Gross as 

a Principal versus Net as an Agent in the ASC Subtopic 605-

45, KW Group records commission revenues and expenses 

on a gross basis. Of the criteria listed in the Subtopic 605-45, 

Kennedy Wilson is the primary obligor in the transaction, does 

not have inventory risk, performs all or part of the service, has 

credit risk, and has wide latitude in establishing the price of 

services rendered and discretion in selection of agents and 

determination of service specifications. Leasing fees that are 

payable upon tenant occupancy, payment of rent or other 

events beyond Kennedy Wilson’s control are recognized upon 

the occurrence of such events.

Rental income from operating leases is generally 

recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the 

leases. Hotel income is earned when rooms are occupied or 

goods and services have been delivered or rendered.

Sales of real estate are recognized when title to the real 

property passes to the buyer and there is no continuing 

involvement in the real property. KW Group follows the 

requirements for profit recognition as set forth by the Sale 

of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20.

Interest income from investments in loans acquired 

at a discount are recognized using the effective interest 

method. Interest income from investments in loans which 

KW Group originates are recognized at the stated interest 

rate. When a loan or loans are acquired with deteriorated 

credit quality primarily for the rewards of collateral 

ownership, such loans are accounted for as loans until KW 

Group is in possession of the collateral. However, accrual 

of income is not recorded during the conversion period 

under ASC Subtopic 310-30-25. Income is recognized to the 

extent that cash is received from the loan.

Real Estate Acquisitions—The purchase price of acquired 

properties is recorded to land, buildings and building 

improvements and intangible lease value (value of above-

market and below-market leases, acquired in-place lease 

values, and tenant relationships, if any) based on their 

respective estimated fair values in accordance with Business 

Combinations ASC Subtopics 805-10. Acquisition-related 

costs are expensed as incurred.

The valuations of real estate are based on management 

estimates of the real estate assets using income and market 

approaches. The indebtedness securing the real estate 

are valued, in part, based on third party valuations and 

management estimates also using an income approach.

Unconsolidated Investments—KW Group has a number 

of joint venture interests that were formed to acquire, 

manage, and/or sell real estate and invest in loan pools and 

discounted loan portfolios. Investments in unconsolidated 

investments are accounted for under the equity method of 

accounting as KW Group can exercise significant influence, 

but does not have the ability to control the unconsolidated 
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investment. An investment in an unconsolidated 

investment is recorded at its initial investment and is 

increased or decreased by KW Group’s share of income or 

loss, plus additional contributions and less distributions. 

A decline in the value of an unconsolidated investment 

that is other than temporary is recognized when evidence 

indicates that such a decline has occurred in accordance 

with Equity Method Investments ASC Subtopic 323-10.

Profits on the sale of real estate held by unconsolidated 

investments in which KW Group has continuing involvement 

are deferred until such time that the continuing involvement 

has been concluded and all the risks and rewards of ownership 

have passed to the buyer. Profit on sales to unconsolidated 

investments in which KW Group retains an equity ownership 

interest results in partial sales treatment in accordance with 

Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20, thus deferring 

a portion of the gain as a result of KW Group’s continuing 

ownership percentage in the unconsolidated investment.

Kennedy Wilson records its investments in certain 

commingled funds it manages and sponsors (“the Funds”) 

that are investment companies under the Investment 

Companies ASC Subtopic 946-10, based upon the net 

assets that would be allocated to its interests in the Funds 

assuming the Funds were to liquidate their investments at fair 

value as of the reporting date. Thus, the Funds reflect their 

investments at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 

resulting from changes in fair value reflected in their earnings. 

Kennedy Wilson has retained the specialized accounting for 

the Funds pursuant to Retention of Specialized Accounting 

for Investments in Consolidation ASC Subtopic 323-10 in 

recording its equity in joint venture income from the Funds.

Additionally, Kennedy Wilson elected the fair value option 

for thirteen investments in unconsolidated investment 

entities. Due to the nature of these investments, Kennedy 

Wilson elected to record these investments at fair value in 

order to report the value in the underlying investments in 

the results of our current operations.

Interest income from investments in loan pools are 

recognized on a level yield basis under the provisions of 

Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit 

Quality ASC Subtopic 310-30, where a level yield model 

is utilized to determine a yield rate which, based upon 

projected future cash flows, accretes interest income over 

the estimated holding period. In the event that the present 

value of those future cash flows is less than net book value, 

a loss would be immediately recorded. When the future 

cash flows of a note cannot be reasonably estimated, cash 

payments are applied to the cost basis of the note until it 

is fully recovered before any interest income is recognized.

Distributions from Unconsolidated Investments—The 

Company utilizes the “look-through” approach, distributions 

are reported under operating cash flow unless the facts 

and circumstances of a specific distribution clearly indicate 

that it is a return of capital (e.g., a liquidating dividend 

or distribution of the proceeds from unconsolidated 

investments’ sale of assets), in which case it is reported as 

an investing activity. This enables KW Group to look to the 

nature and source of the distribution received and classify it 

appropriately between operating and investing activities on 

the statement of cash flows based upon the source.

Fair Value Measurements—KW Group accounts for fair value 

measurements of financial assets and financial liabilities 

and for fair value measurements of non-financial items 

that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial 

statements on a recurring basis under the provisions of Fair 

Value Measurements ASC Subtopic 820-10. Subtopic 820-10 

defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell 

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. When 

estimating fair value in the absence of an orderly transaction 

between market participants, valuations of real estate are 

based on management estimates of the real estate assets 

using income and market approaches. The indebtedness 

securing the real estate and the investments in debt securities 

are valued, in part, based on third party valuations and 

management estimates also using an income approach.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The estimated fair value 

of financial instruments is determined using available market 

information and appropriate valuation methodologies. 

Considerable judgment, however, is necessary to interpret 

market data and develop the related estimates of fair value. 

Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily 

indicative of the amounts that could be realized upon 

disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different 

market assumptions or estimation methodologies may have a 

material impact on the estimated fair value amounts.

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests are 

reported within equity as a separate component of Kennedy 

Wilson’s equity in accordance with Noncontrolling Interests 

in Consolidated Financial Statements ASC Subtopic 810-10. 

Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, net income or loss, and 

other comprehensive income are reported in the consolidated 

statements of operations at the consolidated amounts and 

net income and comprehensive income attributable to 

noncontrolling interests are separately stated. Management 

fees earned by KWE Manager for managing KWE are eliminated 

in consolidation however the amount attributable to the 

noncontrolling interest holders of KWE are recognized through 

net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest holders.

Foreign Currencies—The financial statements of 

subsidiaries located outside the United States are measured 

using the local currency as the functional currency. The 

assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at 

the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date, and income 

and expenses are translated at the average monthly rate. 

The foreign currencies include the Euro, the British pound 

sterling, and the Japanese yen. Cumulative translation 

adjustments, to the extent not included in cumulative net 

income, are included in the consolidated statements of 

equity and comprehensive income as a component of 

accumulated other comprehensive income. The Company 

hedges its investments in foreign subsidiaries with forward 

and option contracts as discussed below.

At December 31, 2016, approximately 36% of our investment 

account is invested through our foreign platforms in their 

local currencies. Investment level debt and operational costs 

of our platforms are generally incurred in local currencies. 

Fluctuations in foreign exchanges rates may have a significant 

impact on the results of our operations. In order to manage 

the effect of these fluctuations, we generally hedge our book 

equity exposure to foreign currencies through currency 

forward contracts and options. We typically hedge 50%-100% 

of the book equity exposure to these foreign currencies. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—KW Group 

has derivatives to reduce its exposure to foreign currencies. 

All derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or 

liabilities in the balance sheet at their respective fair values. 

For derivatives designated in hedging relationships, changes 

in fair value of cash flow hedges or net investment hedges are 

recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, to 

the extent the derivative is effective at offsetting the changes in 

the item being hedged until the hedged item affects earnings.

Goodwill—Goodwill results from the difference between 

the purchase price and the fair value of net assets acquired 

based upon the purchase method of accounting for business 

combinations. In accordance with Accounting for Goodwill 

ASC Subtopic 350-20, goodwill is reviewed for impairment 

on an annual basis. The Company performs its annual 

review of impairment at year end and when a triggering 

event occurs between annual year end reviews. As a result 

of the evaluation performed as described above, Kennedy 

Wilson has determined that there was no impairment of 

goodwill as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents 

consist of cash and all highly liquid investments purchased 

with maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash 

equivalents are invested in institutions insured by 

government agencies. Certain accounts contain balances 

in excess of the insured limits. KW Group’s operations and 

financial position are affected by fluctuations in currency 

exchange rates between the Japanese yen, euro, and British 

pound sterling against the U.S. Dollar.

Long-Lived Assets—KW Group reviews its long-lived assets 

(excluding goodwill) whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset 

may not be recoverable in accordance with Impairment of 

Long-Lived Assets ASC Subtopic 360-10. Recoverability of 

assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of 

the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted 

future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. 

If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated 

undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is 

recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of 

the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be 

disposed of are presented separately in the balance sheet 

and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value 

less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets 

and liabilities of the assets to be disposed of are classified 

as held for sale and would be presented separately in the 

appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet.

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable are recorded 

at the contractual amount as determined by the underlying 

agreements and do not bear interest. An allowance for 

doubtful accounts is provided when KW Group determines 

there are probable credit losses in KW Group’s existing 

accounts receivable and is determined based on historical 

experience. KW Group reviews its accounts receivable for 

probable credit losses on a quarterly basis. As of December 

31, 2016, KW Group had an immaterial allowance for doubtful 

accounts and during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 

2015 had recorded no provision for doubtful accounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that 

subject KW Group to credit risk consist primarily of accounts 

and notes receivable, cash equivalents and derivative 

instruments. Credit risk is generally diversified due to the 

large number of entities composing KW Group’s customer 

base and their geographic dispersion throughout the United 

States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain, Italy and Japan. 

Kennedy Wilson performs ongoing credit evaluations of its 

customers and debtors.

Earnings Per Share—Basic earnings per share is computed 

based upon the weighted average number of shares of 

common stock outstanding during the periods presented. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed based upon the 

weighted average number of shares of common stock 

and potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the 

periods presented. The dilutive impact of potentially dilutive 

securities including convertible securities, and unvested 

stock which were outstanding during the period. Unvested 

stock are calculated by the “treasury stock” method and 

the convertible securities under the “if converted” method.

Comprehensive (Loss) Income—Comprehensive (loss) 

income consists of net income (loss) and other comprehensive 

income (loss). In the accompanying consolidated balance 

sheets, accumulated other comprehensive income consists 
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of foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized 

gains (losses) on available for sale securities and derivative 

instruments.

Repurchase Of Equity Instruments—Upon the decision to 

retire repurchased equity instruments, Kennedy Wilson 

records the retirement as a reduction to additional paid in 

capital for the amount that shares were initially issued at 

with the excess paid going to retained earnings.

Share-Based Payment Arrangements—Kennedy Wilson 

accounts for its share-based payment arrangements under 

the provisions of Share-Based Payments ASC Subtopic 

718-10. Compensation cost for employee service received 

in exchange for an award of equity instruments is based on 

the grant-date fair value of the share-based award that is 

ultimately settled in equity of Kennedy Wilson. The cost of 

employee services is recognized over the period during which 

an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based 

payment award. Share-based payment arrangements with 

only services conditions that vest ratably over the requisite 

service period are recognized on the straight-line basis and 

performance awards that vest ratably are recognized on a 

tranche by tranche basis over the performance period.

Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for under the 

asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to 

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts 

of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases 

and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax 

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates 

expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which 

those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 

settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a 

change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that 

includes the enactment date. In accordance with Accounting 

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes ASC Subtopic 740-10, Kennedy 

Wilson recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if 

those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. 

Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest 

amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. 

Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the 

period in which the change in judgment occurs.

Kennedy Wilson records interest related to unrecognized 

tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in general and 

administrative expenses.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In May 2014, the 

FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers, a five step model to recognize revenue from 

customer contracts in an effort to increase consistency and 

comparability throughout global capital markets and across 

industries. The model will identify the contract, identify 

any separate performance obligations in the contract, 

determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price 

and recognize revenue when the performance obligation 

is satisfied. The new standard will apply to KW Group’s 

management and leasing fees (including performance fees), 

commissions, rental and hotel income. Management is 

evaluating the impact of the five step model and determined 

that it is not expected to have a significant impact on the 

financial statements. ASU 2014-09 will also impact how sales 

of real estate are reported, which will become subject to ASC 

Subtopic 610-20 Other Income- Gains and Losses from the 

Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets (“Subtopic 610-20”). 

After review of Subtopic 610-20, management concluded that 

the new standard is not expected to have a significant impact 

on the amount, timing or classification of real estate sales 

in the financial statements or related disclosures based on 

the Company’s current business mix. The new standard will 

replace most existing revenue recognition in GAAP when it 

becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The 

Company is planning on adopting a modified retrospective 

transition method when the guidance becomes effective.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, 

Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation 

Analysis and was adopted by the KW Group on January 1, 

2016. The new standard makes certain changes to both the 

variable interest model and the voting model, including 

changes to (1) the identification of variable interests (fees 

paid to a decision maker or service provider), (2) the variable 

interest entity characteristics for a limited partnership or 

similar entity and (3) the primary beneficiary determination. 

The adoption of ASU 2015-02 did not result in any changes 

to the Company’s conclusions regarding the consolidation 

of investments under the new standard. The Company 

identified several entities, already consolidated under the 

previous standard but not considered VIEs, which under the 

new standard, are considered VIEs and will continue to be 

consolidated. KWE was determined to be a VIE under the new 

standard as were eight other less significant consolidated 

investments, all with the same partner and sharing similar 

legal structures. However, because the Company’s analysis 

concludes that the Company is the primary beneficiary of 

those entities, they continue to be consolidated. 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Simplifying 

the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, to reduce the 

complexity of financial statement presentation pursuant 

to which debt issuance costs will be presented as a 

direct deduction from the carrying amount of debt 

liabilities as opposed to a deferred charge recognized 

as an asset. ASU 2015-03 is required to be adopted for 

fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015. ASU 

2015-03 became effective for KW Group beginning  

January 1, 2016. The adoption of this standard did not have 

a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases 

(Topic 842), which sets out the principles for the recognition, 

measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both 

parties to a contract (i.e., lessees and lessors). The new standard 

requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases 

as either finance or operating leases based on the principle 

of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase 

by the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease 

expense is recognized based on an effective interest method 

or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is 

also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability 

for all leases with a term of greater than 12 months regardless 

of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less 

will be accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating 

leases today. The new standard requires lessors to account 

for leases using an approach that is substantially equivalent 

to existing guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing 

leases and operating leases. ASU 2016-02 is required to be 

adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. 

Because KW Group’s existing operating lease commitments 

are not material and the accounting for leases by the lessor 

is substantially unchanged, the Company does not expect the 

ASU to have a significant impact on its results of operations or 

financial position.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-07, Simplifying 

the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting, which 

eliminates the requirement for an investor to retroactively 

apply the equity method when its increase in ownership 

interest (or degree of influence) in an investee triggers 

equity method accounting. ASU 2016-07 is effective for all 

entities in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. 

The Company does not expect the ASU to have a significant 

impact on KW Group’s consolidated financial statements.

On March 30, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, 

Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment 

Accounting, which is intended to improve the accounting 

for share-based payment transactions as part of the 

FASB’s simplification initiative. The ASU changes seven 

aspects of the accounting for share-based payment award 

transactions, including: (1) accounting for income taxes; (2) 

classification of excess tax benefits on the statement of cash 

flows; (3) forfeitures; (4) minimum statutory tax withholding 

requirements; (5) classification of employee taxes paid on 

the statement of cash flows when an employer withholds 

shares for tax-withholding purposes; (6) practical expedient 

- expected term (nonpublic only); and (7) intrinsic value 

(nonpublic only). ASU 2015-09 is required to be adopted for 

public entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 

2016. The adoption of this standard will not have a material 

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, 

Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, 

which addresses eight classification issues related to 

the statement of cash flows: (a) debt prepayment or debt 

extinguishment costs, (b) settlement of zero-coupon bonds, 

(c) contingent consideration payments made after a business 

combination (d) proceeds from the settlement of insurance 

claims, (e) proceeds from the settlement of corporate-

owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life 

insurance policies, (f) distributions received from equity 

method investees, (g) beneficial interests in securitization 

transactions, and (h) separately identifiable cash flows and 

application of the predominance principle. ASU 2016-15 is 

required to be adopted for public entities for fiscal years 

beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company does not 

expect the ASU to have a significant impact on KW Group’s 

consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01, Business 

Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business. 

The ASU clarifies the definition of a business. The three elements 

of a business (inputs, processes, and outputs) has not changed, 

however, the amendment provides a framework to assist entities 

in evaluating whether these elements are present. The amended 

framework is not expected to materially impact the Company’s 

financial statements. However, the amendment also includes 

a provision that when substantially all of the fair value of the 

gross assets acquired (or disposed of) is concentrated in a single 

identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets, the set 

is not a business. Therefore, Real estate acquisitions generally 

will no longer be considered a business and consequently not 

be accounted for under Topic 805. The Company has evaluated 

the likely impacts noting that (1) acquisition related costs will no 

longer be expensed as incurred and (2) regardless of the market 

value of a property at the acquisition date, acquisition related 

gains will no longer be recorded. ASU 2017-01 is required to 

be adopted for public entities for fiscal years beginning after 

December 15, 2017.

Reclassifications—Certain balances included in prior years' 

financial statements have been reclassified to conform with 

the current year's presentation.

Note 3—Loan Purchases and Originations

KW Group’s investment in loan purchases and originations 

was $87.7 million and $299.7 million at December 31, 2016 

and December 31, 2015, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, KWH originated 

a loan secured by a beach-front hotel located in Waimea, 

Hawaii for $4.5 million. A loan of approximately $4.9 million 

secured by a Class A office building in Burbank, CA was 

collected in full.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, KWE sold 

a tranche of five loans secured by five assets in the United 

Kingdom, which had a carrying value of $138.5 million, and 

recognized a gain of $6.9 million. Additionally, KWE received 

$25.4 million of distributions related to its eight loans secured 

by eight hotels located throughout the United Kingdom.
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During the year ended December 31, 2015, KWH fully 

resolved two loans for $8.7 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, KWE converted 

loans into 100% direct ownership interests in an office building 

in Dublin, Ireland and a retail center located in Cavan, Ireland 

that had carrying values of $53.0 million and $11.7 million, 

respectively. Additionally, during the second quarter of 2015, 

KWE acquired a nonperforming loan secured by a residential 

property in London, England, for $108.4 million which was 

then converted to real estate in the fourth quarter of 2015. 

Kona Village—During the year ended December 31, 2015, 

KWH originated a loan to an existing joint venture for $38.7 

million. With the loan, the joint venture purchased a note 

(the “Note”) secured by the iconic Kona Village Resort 

(“Kona Village”) in Kona, Hawaii for the same $38.7 million. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Note was 

converted to real estate. The Note had a carrying value 

of $46.3 million at the time of conversion. Subsequent to 

conversion, Kennedy Wilson purchased the equity partners’ 

interests and consolidated the investment. Subsequent 

to consolidating the investment, Kennedy Wilson sold a 

50% equity interest in Kona Village to a strategic partner, 

resulting in shared control, and, accordingly, the Company 

accounts for its investment under the equity method as 

of December 31, 2016. Kona Village is currently in the re-

development stage.

Interest Income from Notes Receivable—KW Group 

recognized interest income on loans of $12.6 million, $19.5 

million, and $17.4 million during the years ended December 

31, 2016, 2015, and 2014.

Note 4— Real Estate and Acquired in Place Lease Value

The following table summarizes the Company’s investment in 

consolidated real estate properties at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015
Land $ 1,383.2 $ 1,471.5
Buildings 4,048.7 3,905.5
Building improvements 373.5 247.2
Acquired in place lease values 383.1 421.8

6,188.5 6,046.0
Less accumulated depreciation and  
 amortization (374.3) (248.5)
Real estate and acquired in place 
 lease values, net of depreciation and  
 amortization $ 5,814.2 $ 5,797.5

Real property, including land, buildings, and building 

improvements, are included in real estate and are generally stated 

at cost. Buildings and building improvements are depreciated on 

the straight-line method over their estimated lives not to exceed 40 

years. Acquired in-place lease values are recorded at their estimated 

fair value and depreciated over their respective weighted-average 

lease term which was 10.5 years at December 31, 2016.

Depreciation and amortization expense on buildings, 

building improvements and acquired in place lease values 

for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 

was $181.6 million, $157.3 million and $100.1 million, 

respectively.

Consolidated Acquisitions—The purchase of property is 

recorded to land, buildings, building improvements, and 

intangible lease value (including the value of above-market 

and below-market leases, acquired in-place lease values, and 

tenant relationships, if any) based on their respective estimated 

fair values. The purchase price generally approximates the 

fair value of the properties as acquisitions are generally 

transacted with third-party willing sellers.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, KW Group acquired the following consolidated properties:

(dollars in millions) Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation at Acquisition(1)

Location Description Land Building

Acquired in 
place lease 

values(2)

Investment 
debt NCI(3)

KWH 
Shareholders’ 

Equity
Western U.S. Three retail centers, six multifamily and  

 two residential properties(5) $ 124.6 $ 360.2 $   8.7 $ 295.8 $     2.0 $ 195.7
United Kingdom Portfolio of 10 office properties and two  

 commercial property(4) 44.0 88.4 18.0 — 118.1 32.3
Ireland Three commercial properties and one  

 development property (4) 25.3 84.9 5.8 — 91.6 24.4
Spain One development project and one  

 supermarket(4) 1.9 17.1 0.3 — 15.3 4.0
$ 195.8 $ 550.6 $ 32.8 $ 295.8 $ 227.0 $ 256.4

(1)  Excludes acquisition expenses and net other assets. The purchase price allocations for properties acquired during the year ended December 31, 2016 are 
based on preliminary measurements of fair value that are subject to change. These allocations represent the Company’s current best estimates of fair value.

(2)  Includes above and below market leases in this table. Above and below market leases are part of other assets and accrued expenses and other liabilities.
(3) Noncontrolling interest amounts associated with acquisition.

(4)  This portfolio of properties was directly acquired and is held by KWE. Kennedy Wilson owns approximately 23.6% of the total issued share capital of 
KWE as of December 31, 2016. 

(5)  During the year ended December 31, 2016, a property included within this group was accounted for under the equity method. KW Group purchased 
the equity partner interest and consolidated the property resulting in an acquisition-related gain of $8.6 million. Additionally, KW Group purchased 
equity partners’ interests and consolidated a development project in Kona, HI that was previously accounted for as an equity method investment 
resulting in an acquisition related gain of $7.6 million. Subsequently, Kennedy Wilson sold an equity interest in the development project, resulting in 
shared control, and, accordingly, the Company accounts for its investment under the equity method.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, KW Group acquired the following properties:

At Acquisition(1)

Location Description Land Building

Acquired in 
place lease 

values(2)

Investment 
debt NCI(3)

KWH 
Shareholders’ 

Equity

Western U.S. 153k square feet of commercial properties  
 and 208 multifamily units(6) $   16.7 $   56.0 $     1.5 $   55.0 $     0.5 $   18.7

United Kingdom Portfolio of 176 commercial, retail, and  
 industrial properties(4) 276.1 421.7 76.6 529.3 205.7 39.4

United Kingdom Portfolio of 9 commercial properties(4) 104.4 178.7 45.4 — 270.4 58.1

Ireland Dublin office buildings (4) 3.9 26.3 2.8 — 22.6 10.4

Spain Two development projects(4) — 43.9 — — 36.8 7.1

Spain 16 supermarkets and shopping center(4)(5) 50.7 112.2 8.8 — 141.0 30.7

Italy Portfolio of 9 commercial properties(4)(5) 47.5 135.1 28.1 — 172.5 38.2

$ 499.3 $ 973.9 $ 163.2 $ 584.3 $ 849.5 $ 202.6

(1)  Excludes acquisition expenses and net other assets. The purchase price allocations for properties acquired during the year ended December 31, 2015 
are based on preliminary measurements of fair value that are subject to change. These allocations represent the Company’s current best estimates 
of fair value.

(2)  Includes above and below market leases in this table. Above and below market leases are part of other assets and accrued expenses and other lia-
bilities.

(3) Noncontrolling interest amounts associated with acquisition.
(4)  These portfolios of properties were directly acquired and are held by KWE. Kennedy Wilson owns approximately 18.2% of the total issued share 

capital of KWE as of December 31, 2015.
(5)  KWE recognized an acquisition related gain of $7.8 million due to improvements in market conditions when the acquisition was agreed to and when 

it subsequently closed.

Consolidation of previously unconsolidated investments—

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 

the Company purchased equity partner interests in joint 

ventures previously accounted for on an equity method 

basis, resulting in the Company gaining control of the 

investments and consolidation treatment pursuant to ASC 

810 Consolidation. 

During the year ended December 31, 2014 the 

Company amended the existing operating agreements 

governing certain investments with its equity partners 

thereby allowing the Company to gain control of these 

operating investments. These joint ventures were 

previously accounted for on an equity method basis 

due to substantive participation of the equity partners in 

the operational control over the real estate assets. The 

operating agreements of the investments were amended 

and restated to give Kennedy Wilson full operational 

control over the real estate assets while the equity partners 

retained only certain protective rights. Given that Kennedy 

Wilson now controls the joint ventures and the ultimate 

real estate assets held by the joint ventures under the 

amended and restated operating agreements, a change to 

the accounting treatment of these joint ventures from the 

equity method to consolidated treatment pursuant to ASC 

810 Consolidation was required.

 As a result of gaining control, the assets and liabilities of 

these properties were consolidated in KW Group’s financial 

statements at fair value in accordance with FASB ASC 

Topic 805 Business Combinations. As the fair value of the 

property was in excess of the carrying value of its ownership 

interest, an acquisition-related gain was recorded in the 

accompanying consolidated statement of operations for 

the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. See 

Note 6 - Fair Value Measurements for further detail of the 

methodology used to determine the fair value of the assets 

and liabilities acquired in these transactions.
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Consolidations - 2016

The following table summarizes the assets and liabilities assumed as a result of gaining control of these properties and the 

acquisition-related gains recognized:

(dollars in millions)

Property Type Location Cash

Real estate 
and acquired 

in-place lease 
values

Accounts 
receivable and 

other assets

Accounts 
payable, 
accrued 

expenses, and 
other liabilities

Investment 
debt

Noncontrolling 
interests

Acquisition 
related 

gain

Development 
project in Hawaii Hotel Western US $ — $    76.3 $  5.9 $  1.0 $      — $    — $    7.6

One retail center Commercial Western US 0.8 46.5 — 0.4 29.0 1.8 8.6

$ 0.8 $  122.8 $  5.9 $  1.4 $  29.0 $  1.8 $  16.2

During the year ended December 31, 2016 KW Group 

purchased equity partners’ interests in a development project 

in Kona, HI that was previously accounted for as an equity 

method investment resulting in acquisition related gains of 

$7.6 million. Subsequent to gaining control, KW Group sold 

a 50% equity interest in the project to a strategic partner 

resulting in shared control and a gain on sale of real estate of 

$3.8 million which is included as part of the gains on real estate 

table listed below. The gain on sale was based on the fact that 

consideration received from our new equity partner was in 

excess of the Company’s basis in the portion of the investment 

it sold. The Company will act as the general partner after the 

sale and will manage the development of the project. 

Consolidations - 2015

The following table summarizes the assets and liabilities assumed as a result of gaining control of these properties and the 

acquisition-related gains recognized:

(dollars in millions)

Property Type Location Cash

Real estate 
and acquired 

in-place 
lease values

Accounts 
receivable 
and other 

assets

Accounts 
payable, 
accrued 

expenses, and 
other liabilities

Investment 
debt

Noncontrolling 
interests

Acquisition 
related 
gain(1)

1,468 units  
 across multiple  
 properties Multifamily Western US $ 2.9 $  283.6 $  0.8 $  3.9 $  166.0 $  0.5 $  46.5

490K sq. ft.  
 across multiple  
 properties Commercial Western US 7.8 234.7 2.5 6.0 97.9 5.0 37.9

$ 10.7 $  518.3 $  3.3 $  9.9 $  263.9 $  5.5 $   84.4

(1)  $2.3 million was allocated to noncontrolling interest for the portion the acquisition related gain that relates to our equity partners ownership in the 
properties.

During 2015, Kennedy Wilson bought out equity interests from 

equity partners in a number of joint ventures with investments 

based in Western United States where it acquired control of the 

underlying properties and consolidated real estate at fair value.

Consolidations - 2014

The following table summarizes the assets and liabilities assumed as a result of gaining control of these properties and the 

acquisition-related gains recognized:

(dollars in millions)

Property Type Location Cash

Real estate 
and acquired 

in-place lease 
values

Accounts 
receivable 
and other 

assets

Accounts 
payable, accrued 

expenses, and 
other liabilities

Investment 
debt

Noncontrolling 
interests

Acquisition 
related 
gain(1)

Three multifamily  
 properties Multifamily Ireland $ 3.6 $    248.5 $   0.9 $   5.4 $ 114.3 $   66.6 $   39.3

Two office  
 properties Commercial Ireland 4.3 223.9 7.6 4.9 75.2 77.9 33.5

Two commercial  
 properties and  
 loans secured  
 by real estate

Commercial  
 & Loans U.K. 9.6 195.0 5.6 8.1 100.8 62.0 11.3

50 multifamily  
 properties Multifamily Japan 21.0 501.2 14.3 4.6 283.7 146.8 66.7

Multifamily  
 property Multifamily Western US 0.9 101.3 0.3 0.9 63.2 3.7 19.5

$ 39.4 $ 1,269.9 $ 28.7 $ 23.9 $ 637.2 $ 357.0 $ 170.3

(1)  $65.2 million was allocated to noncontrolling interest for the portion the acquisition related gain that relates to our equity partners ownership in the properties. 

On March 31, 2014, Kennedy Wilson and one of its 

equity partners amended and restated existing operating 

agreements governing six separate joint ventures that 

hold real estate-related investments located in the U.K. 

and Ireland. Kennedy Wilson has an approximate 50% 

ownership interest in these investments. 

On June 30, 2014, Kennedy Wilson and one of its equity 

partners amended and restated the existing operating 

agreement of KW Residential (“KWR”) which governs 

50 multifamily properties in and around Tokyo, Japan 

comprising approximately 2,400 units. Kennedy Wilson has 

an approximate 41% ownership interest in these investments. 

In December 2014, Kennedy Wilson increased its ownership 

in a previously unconsolidated investment in a 750-unit Western 

U.S. multifamily property from 42% to 87% and amended the 

existing operating agreement to gain control of the property

Loans converted to real estate—During 2015, KWE foreclosed 

on three office buildings in Ireland that were held in two 

different loans and took control of a multifamily building 

outside of London. 

During 2014, Kennedy Wilson foreclosed on a 133,000 

square foot retail center and an adjacent 2.4-acre vacant lot 

in Van Nuys, CA and the Shelbourne Hotel in Dublin, Ireland. 

As a result of the foreclosures and taking title to the 

properties, the assets and liabilities of the retail center and 

hotel were consolidated in KW Group’s financial statements 

at fair value under ASC Topic 805 - Business Combinations 

and the vacant lot was consolidated in KW Group’s financial 

statements at fair market value. As the fair value of the assets 

was in excess of the basis in the previously held mortgage 

notes, KW Group recognized a $15.9 million gain on the 

three office buildings in Ireland and the multifamily building 

outside of London during 2015 and $3.7 million acquisition-

related gain on the retail center and vacant land and a $28.6 

million acquisition-related gain on the hotel during 2014. 

KWE acquired subordinated notes on a portfolio of 

commercial properties in the United Kingdom during 2014 

and later used its position as a debt holder to purchase the 

underlying real estate at a discount. KWE recognized an 

acquisition-related gain of $15.6 million (the Company’s share 

was $2.1 million) on the transaction due to its ability to acquire 

the underlying real estate at a discount to its fair value.

Gains on real estate—During the year ended December 31, 2016, 

KW Group recognized the following gains on sale of real estate.

(dollars in millions) Gain on sale of real estate

Description Consolidated(1) NCI Net of NCI

KW One commercial property in each Japan, United Kingdom and Ireland,  
 one commercial property, one development project, one condo unit,  
 a vacant lot and a parcel of land in the Western U.S. $   47.9 $ 11.9 $ 36.0

KWE 42 commercial properties across the United Kingdom and Ireland 90.0 70.7 19.3

KW Group $ 137.9 $ 82.6 $ 55.3

(1)  Includes both the sale of real estate as a business, which is recognized through gain on sale of real estate, and the sale of real estate as assets, 
which is the net of sale of real estate and cost of real estate sold
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During the year ended December 31, 2015, KW Group recognized the following gains on sale of real estate:

(dollars in millions) Gain on sale of real estate

Description Consolidated (1) NCI Net of NCI
KW Japanese multifamily portfolio, one retail pad and one condo unit  

 in the Western U.S.
$ 36.0 $ 12.0 $ 24.0

KWE Commercial properties across the United Kingdom 37.5 31.0 6.5

KW Group $ 73.5 $ 43.0 $ 30.5

(1) Includes both the sale of real estate as a business, which is recognized through gain on sale of real estate, and the sale of real estate as assets, 
which is the net of sale of real estate and cost of real estate sold

During the year ended December 31, 2014, KW Group recognized the following gains on sale of real estate:

(dollars in millions) Gain on sale of real estate

Description Consolidated(1) NCI Net of NCI

KW One parcel of land and eleven condo units in the Western U.S. $ 7.1 $ 3.7 $ 3.4

KWE Commercial property in the United Kingdom 0.6 0.5 0.1

KW Group $ 7.7 $ 4.2 $ 3.5

(1)  Includes both the sale of real estate as a business, which is recognized through gain on sale of real estate, and the sale of real estate as assets, 
which is the net of sale of real estate and cost of real estate sold

Guarantees—Kennedy Wilson has certain guarantees 

associated with loans secured by consolidated assets. As 

of December 31, 2016, the maximum potential amount of 

future payments (undiscounted) Kennedy Wilson could be 

required to make under the guarantees was approximately 

$62.7 million which is approximately 1% of investment 

level debt of Kennedy Wilson and its equity partners. The 

guarantees expire through 2026, and Kennedy Wilson’s 

performance under the guarantees would be required to 

the extent there is a shortfall upon liquidation between 

the principal amount of the loan and the net sale proceeds 

from the property. Based on the Company’s evaluation of 

guarantees under FASB ASC Subtopic 460-10 Estimated Fair 

Value of Guarantees, the estimated fair value of guarantees 

made as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 were 

immaterial.

Pro forma results of operations—The results of operations of 

the assets acquired have been included in our consolidated 

financial statements since the date of the acquisitions. 

The Company’s unaudited pro forma results have been 

prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport 

to be indicative of the results of operations that would have 

occurred had these acquisition been consummated at the 

beginning of the periods presented.

The unaudited pro forma data presented below assumes 

that the acquisitions during the year ended December 31, 

2016 occurred as of January 1, 2015. 

Unaudited

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions, except for per share data) 2016 2015

Pro forma revenues $ 730.3 $ 652.5

Pro forma income from unconsolidated subsidiaries 126.5 98.2

Pro forma net (loss) income(1) 78.8 91.3

Pro forma net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders (1) 1.5 93.4

Pro forma net (loss) income per share:

 Basic $   0.01 $   0.90

 Diluted $   0.01 $   0.85

(1) Excludes nonrecurring gains of $16.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Note 5—Unconsolidated Investments

Kennedy Wilson has a number of joint venture interests, 

generally ranging from 5% to 50%, that were formed to 

acquire, manage, develop, service and/or sell real estate and 

invest in loan pools and discounted loan portfolios. Kennedy 

Wilson has significant influence over these entities, but not 

control, and accordingly, these investments are accounted 

for under the equity method. 

Joint Venture Holdings—The following table details KW Group’s investments in joint ventures by investment type and 

geographic location as of December 31, 2016:

(dollars in millions) Multifamily Commercial
Loans Secured by 

Real Estate
Residential and 

Other Total

Western U.S. $ 193.9 $ 66.8 $     — $ 263.7 $ 524.4

United Kingdom — 13.8 — — 13.8

Spain — — — 15.9 15.9

Japan 6.1 — — — 6.1

Total $ 200.0 $ 80.6 $     — $ 279.6 $ 560.2

The following table details our investments in joint ventures by investment type and geographic location as of December 

31, 2015:

(dollars in millions) Multifamily Commercial
Loans Secured by 

Real Estate
Residential and 

Other Total

Western U.S. $ 144.8 $ 51.4 $ 12.2 $ 193.3 $ 401.7

United Kingdom — 23.3 — — 23.3

Spain — — — 12.8 12.8

Japan 5.8 — — — 5.8

Total $ 150.6 $ 74.7 $ 12.2 $ 206.1 $ 443.6

During the year ended December 31, 2016, multifamily 

investments increased due to Company and Fund investments 

in four new multifamily properties, which was offset by the 

sale of five properties. Commercial investments increased 

due to Company and Fund investments in three new 

commercial properties, which was offset by the sale of two 

properties, consolidation of one property to real estate, and 

foreign currency fluctuations in the United Kingdom. Joint 

venture investments in loan portfolios decreased due to loan 

resolutions during the year. Residential and Other investments 

increased due to a development project in Kona, Hawaii.

Vintage Housing Holdings (“VHH”)—During the second 

quarter of 2015, the Company purchased a noncontrolling 

interest for $78.7 million in VHH, an existing venture that holds 

controlling interests in 30 syndicated limited partnerships 

(“LPs”) that own multifamily properties via a traditional 

low-income housing tax credit (“LIHTC”) structure in the 

Western United States. The remaining interest is held by 

one non-affiliated entity who is appointed as the manager. 

Neither party controls VHH, and, accordingly, the Company 

accounts for its investment under the equity method. As of 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying value in VHH was 

$84.2 million and $84.3 million, respectively.

The LPs generate cash flow through their controlling interests 

in entities owning multifamily housing that is predominantly 

structured with LIHTCs. The Company has elected the fair 

value option on its unconsolidated investment in VHH. During 

the year, the Company recognized a total of $24.3 million 

fair value gains through equity income. The fair value gains 

were primarily generated from resyndications in which VHH 

dissolves an existing partnership and recapitalizes into a new 

partnership with tax-exempt bonds and tax credits which are 

sold to a new tax credit LP partner and, in many cases, yields 

cash back to VHH. Upon resyndication, VHH retains a GP 

interest in the partnership and receives various future streams 

of cashflows including; development fees, asset management 

fees, other GP management fees and distributions from 

operations. Since the investment is accounted for under the 

fair value option, operating distributions are recorded as equity 

income. See Note 6 for additional details. The Company has 

recognized $6.1 million in equity income related to operating 

distributions during the year.

Income from Unconsolidated Investments—The following 

table presents income from unconsolidated investments 

recognized by Kennedy Wilson during the years ended 

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Equity in joint venture income $ 70.5 $ 58.2 $ 45.4

Equity in joint venture income (loss) - fair value 56.6 34.9 (0.7)

Interest income (loss) recognized(1) (0.5 ) 4.3 9.5

$ 126.6 $ 97.4 $ 54.2

(1) Related to loan pools, all of which were fully resolved as of December 31, 2016.
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The Company recognized realized gains on sales of joint 

venture investments mainly on multifamily properties 

located in the Western United States during the year. The 

Company sold five multifamily properties during 2016, 

resulting in a gain of $59.0 million. In addition to the sales, 

the Company recognized fair value gains during the year 

relating to resyndications in VHH, sales in a condo project, 

and improved property performance by investments held 

within our Funds totaling $56.6 million. 

The increase in equity in joint venture income during 2015 

compared to 2014 relates to realized gains on sales of joint 

venture investments mainly multifamily properties located 

in the Western United States during the year. In addition to 

the sales, equity in joint venture income during 2015 relates 

primarily to fair value gains during the year relating to 

resyndications in VHH, entitlements achieved on development 

projects, and commencing the sales process on a for sale 

condo project as well as improved property performance 

by investments held within our Funds totaling $34.9 million. 

Equity in joint venture income during 2014 relates to the sale 

of the Company’s 25% interest in a portfolio of commercial 

investments in Dublin, Ireland to KWE that resulted in a 

gain of $26.6 million on the Company’s investment. This 

transaction was unanimously approved by the independent 

shareholders of KWE. There were no new European joint 

venture investments during 2014 so acquisition-related 

expenses were minimal compared to the prior period. 

Consolidation Considerations—The Company determines 

the appropriate accounting method with respect to all 

investments that are not VIEs based on the control-based 

framework (controlled entities are consolidated) provided 

by the consolidations guidance in FASB ASC Topic 810. The 

Company accounts for joint ventures where it is deemed 

that the Company does not have control through the equity 

method of accounting while entities the Company controls 

are consolidated in KW Group’s financial statements.

Changes in Control—During 2016, Kennedy Wilson bought 

out equity interests from equity partners in two joint ventures 

which consisted of a 216,000 square foot retail building in 

Orem, Utah and a development project in Kona, Hawaii. 

Subsequently, Kennedy Wilson sold a 50% equity interest 

in the development project in Kona, Hawaii, resulting in 

shared control, and, accordingly, the Company accounts for 

its investment under the equity method.

During 2015, Kennedy Wilson bought out equity interests 

from equity partners in a number of joint ventures based in 

Western United States which consisted of 1,468 units across 

multiple multifamily properties and 490,000 square feet 

across multiple commercial properties. 

On June 30, 2014, Kennedy Wilson and one of its equity 

partners amended existing operating agreements governing 

KWR which was previously accounted for using the equity 

method and is now consolidated. On March 31, 2014, 

Kennedy Wilson and one of its equity partners amended 

existing operating agreements governing investments for 

six investments in Europe which were accounted for using 

the equity method and are now consolidated. 

See Note 4 for more discussion on the impact of consolidation. 

All of the above investments were accounted for and are 

presented as unconsolidated investments in the prior periods.

Contributions to Unconsolidated Investments—During the 

years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, Kennedy 

Wilson made $124.9 million, $184.3 million, and $142.6 

million, respectively, in contributions to new and existing 

joint venture investments.

See the table below for a breakdown of contributions to 

new joint venture investments for the years ended December 

31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Investment Type Region
No. of 

Properties
Initial 

Contribution
No. of 

Properties
Initial 

Contribution
No. of 

Properties
Initial 

Contribution

Commercial Western U.S. 1 $ 13.4 1 $   9.1 — $    —

Commercial United Kingdom — — — — 14 57.2

Multifamily Western U.S. 1 19.9 31 80.5 2 4.7

Residential Western U.S. 1 1.0 4 1.4 3 18.3

Residential Japan — — 50 6.2 — —

Other Western U.S. 1 2.1 1 2.0 — —

Total 4 $ 36.4 87 $ 99.2 19 $ 80.2

In addition to the capital contributions above to new joint 

venture investments, the Company contributed $88.5 million, 

$85.1 million and $62.4 million to existing joint ventures to pay 

off external debt, fund our share of a development project and 

for working capital needs, during the years ended December 

31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

Distributions from Joint Ventures and Loan Pool Participations

The following table details cash distributions by investment type and geographic location for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Multifamily Commercial Loan Pools
Residential  
and Other Total

(dollars in millions) Operating Investing Operating Investing Operating Investing Operating Investing Operating Investing

Western U.S. $ 49.9 $ 52.1 $ 8.2 $ 14.1 $ — $   — $ 4.5 $ 22.7 $ 62.6 $ 88.9

Japan 0.1 — — — — — — — 0.1 —

United Kingdom — — — — — 0.7 — — — 0.7

Total $ 50.0 $ 52.1 $ 8.2 $ 14.1 $ — $ 0.7 $ 4.5 $ 22.7 $ 62.7 $ 89.6

Investing distributions resulted from the sale of multifamily 

properties in the Western United States, commercial 

properties in the Western United States, and homes in 

residential development projects in the Western United 

States, the refinancing of property level debt, and loan 

resolutions. Operating distributions resulted from operating 

cash flow generated by the joint venture investments.

Variable Interest Entities—The Company determines the 

appropriate accounting method with respect to all investments 

that are not VIEs based on the control-based framework 

(controlled entities are consolidated) provided by the 

consolidations guidance in ASC Topic 810. The Company’s 

determination considers specific factors cited under ASC 810-20 

“Control of Partnerships and Similar Entities” which presumes 

that control is held by the general partner (and managing 

member equivalents in limited liability companies). Limited 

partners’ substantive participation rights may overcome this 

presumption of control. The Company accounts for joint 

ventures it is deemed not to control using the equity method 

of accounting while controlled entities are consolidated.

Capital Commitments—As of December 31, 2016, the 

Company has unfulfilled capital commitments totaling $24.7 

million to four of its joint ventures under the respective 

operating agreements. The Company may be called upon to 

contribute additional capital to joint ventures in satisfaction 

of the Company’s capital commitment obligations.

Note 6—Fair Value Measurements and the Fair Value 

Option

The following table presents fair value measurements 

(including items that are required to be measured at fair 

value and items for which the fair value option has been 

elected) as of December 31, 2016:

(dollars in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Unconsolidated  
 investments

$ — $ — $ 333.9 $ 333.9

Marketable securities 7.5 — — 7.5

Currency derivative  
 contracts

— (47.2) — (47.2)

$ 7.5 $ (47.2) $ 333.9 $ 294.2

The following table presents fair value measurements 

(including items that are required to be measured at fair 

value and items for which the fair value option has been 

elected) as of December 31, 2015:

(dollars in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Unconsolidated  
 investments

$ — $ — $ 223.8 $ 223.8

Marketable securities 5.3 — — 5.3

Currency derivative  
 contracts

— 11.7 — 11.7

$ 5.3 $ 11.7 $ 223.8 $ 240.8

Unconsolidated Investments—Kennedy Wilson elected 

to use the fair value option (“FV Option”) for thirteen 

unconsolidated investments to more accurately reflect 

the timing of the value in the underlying investments and 

report those results in current operations. Kennedy Wilson’s 

investment balance in the FV Option investments was 

$282.4 million and $193.2 million at December 31, 2016 and 

2015, respectively, which are included in unconsolidated 

investments in the accompanying balance sheets. 

Additionally, Kennedy Wilson records its investments 

in KW Property Fund III, L.P., Kennedy Wilson Real Estate 

Fund IV, and Kennedy Wilson Real Estate Fund V, LP (the 

“Funds”) based upon the net assets that would be allocated 

to its interests in the Funds assuming the Funds were to 

liquidate their investments at fair value as of the reporting 

date. The Company’s investment balance in the Funds was 

$51.5 million and $30.6 million at December 31, 2016 and 

2015, respectively, which is included in unconsolidated 

investments in the accompanying consolidated balance 

sheets. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had 

unfunded capital commitments to the Funds in the amount 

of $22.6 million under the respective operating agreements.

In estimating fair value of real estate held by the Funds and 

the thirteen FV Option investments, the Company considers 

significant unobservable inputs such as capitalization and 

discount rates. 
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The following table summarizes the Company’s investments 

in unconsolidated investments held at fair value by type:

(dollars in millions)
December 31,  

2016
December 31, 

2015
FV Option $ 282.4 $ 193.2

Funds 51.5 30.6

Total $ 333.9 $ 223.8

The following table presents changes in Level 3 

investments, investments in investment companies and 

investments in joint ventures that elected the fair value 

option, for the years ended December 31:

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Beginning balance $ 223.8 $ 95.2 $ 88.4

 Unrealized and realized gains 65.7 42.3 1.8

 Unrealized and realized losses — (0.1 ) (2.5 )

 Contributions 76.3 128.5 22.0

 Distributions (75.3 ) (41.0 ) (10.5 )

 Other 43.4 (1.1 ) (4.0 )

Ending Balance $ 333.9 $ 223.8 $ 95.2

The change in unrealized and realized gains and losses 

are included in income from unconsolidated investments in 

the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

The change in unrealized gains and losses on level 3 

investments during 2016 and 2015 for investments still 

held as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were gains of $49.5 

million and $32.0 million, respectively.

In estimating fair value of real estate held by the Funds, 

thirteen unconsolidated investments that elected the fair 

value option investments and the value of the real estate 

consolidated (as further described in Note 4), the Company 

considers significant inputs such as capitalization and 

discount rates. The table below describes the range of 

inputs used as of December 31, 2016 for real estate assets: 

Estimated rates used for

Capitalization rates Discount Rates

Office 4.50%—7.25% 5.50%—9.50%

Retail 5.50%—9.00% 7.50%—11.50%

Multifamily 4.75%—7.75% 8.00%—9.75%

Land and 
 condominium units n/a 5.00%—15.00%

In valuing indebtedness, Kennedy Wilson considers 

significant inputs such as the term of the debt, value of 

collateral, market loan-to-value ratios, market interest rates 

and spreads, and credit quality of investment entities. The 

credit spreads used by Kennedy Wilson for these types of 

investments range from 1.27% to 4.54%. 

The accuracy of estimating fair value for investments 

utilizing unobservable inputs cannot be determined with 

precision, cannot be substantiated by comparison to 

quoted prices in active markets, and may not be realized 

in a current sale or immediate settlement of the asset or 

liability. Additionally, there are inherent uncertainties in 

any fair value measurement technique, and changes in the 

underlying assumptions used, including cap rates, discount 

rates, liquidity risks, and estimates of future cash flows, could 

significantly affect the fair value measurement amounts.

Marketable Securities—Marketable securities include 

Kennedy Wilson’s investment in publicly traded equity 

securities and fixed income investments. The fixed income 

portfolio consists mainly of U.S. government and investment 

grade corporate bonds. The carrying value of marketable 

securities is a level 1 valuation as the fair value is based 

off of unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for 

identical securities.

The amount above excludes Kennedy Wilson’s 29.8 million 

shares in KWE as the investment is eliminated due to the 

consolidation of KWE’s results in KW Group’s consolidated 

financial statements. Kennedy Wilson’s investment in KWE had 

a market value of approximately $352.3 million based on a per 

share price of $11.83 at December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 

2016, the Company had hedged 95% of the foreign currency rate 

risk of its net investment in KWE through using currency forward 

contracts and options, with a notional amount of £295.2 million.

Currency derivative contracts—KW Group uses foreign 

currency derivative contracts such as forward contracts 

and options to manage its foreign currency risk exposure 

against the effects of a portion of its certain non-U.S. dollar 

denominated currency net investments. Foreign currency 

options are valued using a variant of the Black-Scholes model 

tailored for currency derivatives and the foreign currency 

forward contracts are valued based on the difference 

between the contract rate and the forward rate at maturity of 

the underlying currency applied to the notional value in the 

underlying currency discounted at a market rate for similar 

risks. Although the Company has determined that the 

majority of the inputs used to value its currency derivative 

contracts fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the 

counterparty risk adjustments associated with the currency 

derivative contracts utilize Level 3 inputs. However, as of 

December 31, 2016, KW Group assessed the significance 

of the impact of the counterparty valuation adjustments 

on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and 

determined that the counterparty valuation adjustments are 

not significant to the overall valuation of its derivative. As a 

result, we have determined that our derivative valuation in 

its entirety be classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive 

income in the accompanying consolidated statements of 

comprehensive income (loss) as the portion of the currency 

forward and option contracts used to hedge currency exposure 

of its certain consolidated subsidiaries qualifies as a net 

investment hedge under FASB ASC Topic 815. The fair value 

of the derivative instruments held as of December 31, 2016 

are reported in other assets for hedge assets and included in 

accrued expenses and other liabilities for hedge liabilities on 

the balance sheet. See Note 12 for a complete discussion on 

other comprehensive income including currency forward and 

option contracts and foreign currency translations. 

The table below details the currency forward contracts and currency option contracts KW Group had as of December 

31, 2016:

(dollars in millions) December 31, 2016 Year Ended December 31, 2016

Currency Hedged
Underlying 

Currency Notional Hedge Asset Hedge Liability

Change in 
Unrealized 

Gains (Losses)
Realized Gains 

(Losses)

Cash 
Received 

(Paid)

Outstanding

EUR USD € 130.0 $   4.0 $   (0.3 ) $     4.2 $  — $      —

EUR(1) GBP € 360.0 — (67.0 ) (82.4) — —

EUR(1)(2) GBP — — (49.5) — —

GBP USD £ 295.2 16.0 — 16.0 — (8.1)

Yen USD ¥ 757.0 — — 0.1 — —

Total Outstanding 20.0 (67.3 ) (111.6) — (8.1)

Settled

EUR(3) USD — — (0.7) 0.7 —

GBP USD — — 15.2 7.1 38.6

Total Settled — — 14.5 7.8 38.6

Total 20.0 (67.3 ) (97.1) 7.8 30.5

Noncontrolling interests — 51.2 105.6 — —

Total - Kennedy Wilson share $ 20.0 $ (16.1 ) $     8.5 $ 7.8 $  30.5

(1) Hedge is held by KWE on its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
(2) Relates to KWE’s Euro Medium Term Note. See discussion in Note 8.
(3)  Underlying investment was sold by KW Group. Historical amounts within other comprehensive income were reclassified to the statement of opera-

tions at time of sale.

The gains recognized through other comprehensive 

income will remain in accumulated other comprehensive 

income until the underlying investments they were hedging 

are substantially liquidated by KW Group.

Fair value of financial instruments—The carrying amounts 

of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable including 

related party receivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses 

and other liabilities, accrued salaries and benefits, and 

deferred and accrued income taxes approximate fair value 

due to their short-term maturities. The carrying value of loans 

(excluding related party loans as they are presumed not to be 

an arm’s length transaction) approximates fair value as the 

terms are similar to loans with similar characteristics available 

in the market.

Debt liabilities are accounted for at face value plus net 

unamortized debt premiums and any fair value adjustments 

as part of business combinations. The fair value as of 

December 31, 2016 and 2015 for the senior notes payable and 

investment debt were estimated to be approximately $5.0 

billion and $4.3 billion, respectively, based on a comparison 

of the yield that would be required in a current transaction, 

taking into consideration the risk of the underlying collateral 

and the Company’s credit risk to the current yield of a similar 

security, compared to their carrying value of $4.9 billion and 

$4.4 billion as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

The inputs used to value the Company’s senior notes payable 

and investment debt are based on observable inputs for 

similar assets and quoted prices in markets that are not active 

and are therefore determined to be level 2 inputs.
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Note 7—Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following:

December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015

Above-market leases, net of accumulated  
 amortization of $28.1 million and $19.6  
 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015 $   72.4 $ 103.3

Other, net of accumulated amortization of $5.4  
 million and $3.1 million at December 31,  
 2016 and 2015, respectively 27.1 21.8

Deferred tax asset, net 28.4 22.2

Office furniture and equipment net of  
 accumulated depreciation of $24.4 million  
 and $14.0 million at December 31, 2016 and  
 December 31, 2015, respectively 25.4 27.9

Goodwill 23.9 23.9

VAT Receivable 23.2 18.6

Hedge Assets 20.2 30.9

Prepaid Expenses 10.2 10.1

Marketable securities(1) 7.5 4.3

Deposits 1.8 4.2

$ 240.1 $ 267.2

(1)  The amount above excludes Kennedy Wilson’s 29.8 million shares in 
KWE as the investment is eliminated due to the consolidation of KWE’s 
results. Based on the closing price of KWE shares on December 31, 2016, 
the fair value of Kennedy Wilson’s investment in KWE is $352.3 million.

Depreciation and amortization expense related to the 

above depreciable assets were $16.6 million, $9.0 million, 

and $4.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 

2015 and 2014, respectively.

Note 8—Investment Debt

Mortgage loans at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of 

the following:

(dollars in millions)

Carrying amount of 
investment debt as 

of December 31,(1)

Investment Debt by 
Product Type Region 2016 2015

Mortgage Debt

Multifamily(1) Western U.S. $ 1,180.8 $  835.2

Commercial(1)(2) United Kingdom 616.9 976.2

Commercial(1)(2) Ireland 331.5 380.3

Commercial Western U.S. 290.2 286.4

Multifamily(1)(2) Ireland 131.3 187.1

Commercial(2) Spain 84.4 —

Hotel Ireland 75.7 78.2

Hotel Western U.S. 49.8 39.4

Residential and Other(1)(2) Ireland 28.0 7.3

Commercial Japan — 2.0

Residential and Other(1)(2) Spain — 3.4

 Secured investment  
  debt $ 2,788.6 $ 2,795.5

(dollars in millions)

Carrying amount of 
investment debt as 

of December 31,(1)

Investment Debt by 
Product Type Region 2016 2015

 Unsecured investment  
  debt(1)(2) United Kingdom 1,192.4 862.7

 Investment debt  
  (excluding loan fees) $ 3,981.0 $ 3,658.2

 Unamortized loan fees (24.9) (30.7)

Total Investment debt $ 3,956.1 $ 3,627.5

(1)  The mortgage loan payable balances include unamortized debt pre-
miums (discounts). Debt premiums (discounts) represent the differ-
ence between the fair value of debt over the principal value of debt 
assumed in various acquisitions and consolidations and are amor-
tized into interest expense over the remaining term of the related 
debt in a manner that approximates the effective interest method. 
The unamortized loan premium (discount) as of December 31, 2016 
and 2015 was $0.9 million and $(5.4) million.

(2)  Kennedy Wilson owned approximately 23.6% and 18.2% of the total 
issued share capital of KWE as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respec-
tively. See the table below for detailed breakout.

KWE’s mortgage loans, which are included as part of 

the mortgage table above, at December 31, 2016 and 2015 

consist of the following:

(dollars in millions)

Carrying amount of 
investment debt as of 

December 31, (1)

Investment Debt by 
 Product Type (KWE) Region 2016 2015

Commercial(1) Ireland $   254.7 $   286.7

Multifamily(1) Ireland — 51.5

Residential and Other(1) Spain — 3.4

Commercial(1) Spain 84.4 —

Commercial(1) United Kingdom 551.4 897.9

 Investment Debt $   890.5 $1,239.5

Unsecured(1)(2) United Kingdom 1,192.4 862.7

 Investment debt  
  (excluding loan fees) $2,082.9 $2,102.2

 Unamortized loan fees (13.3) (19.4)

Total Investment debt $2,069.6 $2,082.8

(1)  Kennedy Wilson owns approximately 23.6% and 18.2% of the total is-
sued share capital of KWE as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

(2)   The mortgage loan payable balances include unamortized debt pre-
miums (discounts). Debt premiums (discounts) represent the differ-
ence between the fair value of debt over the principal value of debt 
assumed in various acquisitions and are amortized into interest ex-
pense over the remaining term of the related debt in a manner that 
approximates the effective interest method. The unamortized loan 
discount as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $4.1 million and $13.6 
million, respectively.

The investment debt had a weighted average interest 

rate of 3.33% and 3.19% per annum at December 31, 2016 

and 2015. As of December 31, 2016, 75% of KW Group’s 

property level debt was fixed rate, 15% was floating rate 

with interest caps and 10% was floating rate without interest 

caps, compared to 67% fixed rate, 17% floating rate with 

interest caps and 16% floating rate without interest caps, as 

of December 31, 2015.

KWE Unsecured Debt—During the second quarter of 2015, 

KWE completed its inaugural bond offering (“KWE Bonds”) 

of approximately $370.2 million (based on December 

31, 2016 rates) (£300 million) in 3.95% fixed-rate senior 

unsecured bonds due 2022. KWE effectively reduced the 

interest rate to 3.35% as a result of it entering into swap 

arrangements to convert 50% of the proceeds into Euros.

 During the third quarter of 2016, KWE completed an 

additional offering of approximately $246.8 million (based 

on December 31, 2016 rates) (£200 million) in 3.95% fixed-

rate senior unsecured bonds due 2022. 

In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2015, KWE 

established a £2.0 billion (approximately $2.5 billion based on 

December 31, 2016 rates) Euro Medium Term Note (“EMTN”) 

Programme. Under the EMTN Programme, KWE may issue, 

from time to time, up to £2.0 billion of various types of debt 

securities in certain markets and currencies. During the 

fourth quarter of 2015 and second quarter of 2016, KWE 

drew down under its EMTN Programme, with the issuances 

of senior unsecured notes for an aggregate principal amount 

of approximately $578.4 million (based on December 31, 2016 

rates) (€550 million) (the “KWE Notes”). The KWE Notes were 

issued at a discount and have a carrying value of $575.5 million 

with an annual fixed coupon of 3.25%, and mature in 2025. 

As KWE invests proceeds from the KWE Notes to fund equity 

investments in new euro denominated assets, KWE designates 

the KWE Notes as net investment hedges under FASB ASC 

Topic 815. Subsequent fluctuations in foreign currency rates 

that impact the carrying value of the KWE Notes are recorded 

to accumulated other comprehensive income. During the 

year ended December 31, 2016, KW Group recognized a loss 

of $49.5 million in accumulated other comprehensive income 

due to the strengthening of the euro against the GBP during 

the period. The KWE Notes rank pari passu with the KWE 

Bonds, and are subject to the same restrictive covenants.

The trust deed that governs the bonds contain various 

restrictive covenants for KWE, including, among others, 

limitations on KWE’s and its material subsidiaries’ ability 

to provide certain negative pledges. The trust deed limits 

the ability of KWE and its subsidiaries to incur additional 

indebtedness if, on the date of such incurrence and after 

giving effect to the incurrence of the new indebtedness, 

(1) KWE’s consolidated net indebtedness (as defined in 

the trust deed) would exceed 60% of KWE’s total assets 

(as calculated pursuant to the terms of the trust deed); and 

(2) KWE’s consolidated secured indebtedness (as defined 

in the trust deed) would exceed 50% of KWE’s total assets 

(as calculated pursuant to the terms of the trust deed). The 

trust deed also requires KWE, as of each reporting date, to 

maintain an interest coverage ratio (as defined in the trust 

deed) of at least 1.50 to 1.00 and have unencumbered assets 

of no less than 125% of its unsecured indebtedness (as 

defined in the trust deed). As of December 31, 2016, KWE 

was in compliance with these covenants.

In August 2014, KWE entered into a three-year unsecured 

floating rate revolving debt facility (“KWE Facility”) with Bank of 

America Merrill Lynch, Deutsche Bank, and J.P. Morgan Chase 

of approximately $277.7 million (based on December 31, 2016 

rates) (£225 million). As of December 31, 2016, the unsecured 

credit facility was undrawn, with $277.7 million (£225 million) 

still available based on rates as of December 31, 2016.

Mortgage Loan Transactions and Maturities—During the 

year ended December 31, 2016, one mortgage loan was 

consolidated, eight acquisitions were partially financed 

with mortgages, four existing mortgages were refinanced, 

four properties acquired supplemental financing, and 

two existing investments that closed all equity were 

subsequently partially financed with mortgages. See Note 4 

for more detail on the acquisitions and the investment debt 

associated with them.

The aggregate maturities of mortgage loans and notes 

payable subsequent to December 31, 2016 are as follows: 

(dollars in millions)

2017 $       82.8

2018 172.0

2019 582.2

2020 235.9

2021 102.8

Thereafter 2,804.4

3,980.1

Debt premium 0.9

Unamortized loan fees (24.9)

$  3,956.1

Note 9—Borrowings Under Lines of Credit

On December 10, 2015, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. (the “Borrower”), 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, 

Inc. (the “Company”) entered into a $475 million unsecured 

revolving credit facility (the “KW Revolving Facility”) with a 

syndicate of lenders including JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., 

Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, U.S. Bank N.A., East West 

Bank, Fifth Third Bank, The Governor and Company of the 

Bank of Ireland, Compass Bank, City National Bank, and Bank 

of America, N.A., as administrative agent and letter of credit 

issuer. Loans under the KW Revolving Facility bear interest at 

a rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.50% or 3.00%, depending on the 
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consolidated leverage ratio as of the applicable measurement 

date, and have a maturity date of December 10, 2018. Subject 

to certain conditions precedent and at the Borrower’s option, 

the maturity date of the KW Revolving Facility may be 

extended by one year.

The KW Revolving Facility has certain covenants that, 

among other things, limit the Company and certain of 

its subsidiaries’ ability to incur additional indebtedness, 

repurchase capital stock or debt, sell assets or subsidiary 

stock, create or permit liens on assets, engage in transactions 

with affiliates, enter into sale/leaseback transactions, issue 

subsidiary equity and enter into consolidations or mergers. 

The credit agreement that governs the KW Revolving 

Facility requires the Company to maintain (i) a maximum 

consolidated leverage ratio (as defined in the credit 

agreement) of not greater than 65%, measured as of the 

last day of each fiscal quarter, (ii) a minimum fixed charge 

coverage ratio (as defined in the credit agreement) of not 

less than 1.60 to 1.00, measured as of the last day of each 

fiscal quarter for the period of four full fiscal quarters then 

ended, (iii) a minimum consolidated tangible net worth equal 

to or greater than the sum of $920,660,504.65 plus an amount 

equal to fifty percent (50%) of net equity proceeds received by 

the Company after the date of September 30, 2015 financial 

statements, measured as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, 

(iv) a maximum recourse leverage ratio (as defined in the 

credit agreement) of not greater than an amount equal to 

consolidated tangible net worth as of the measurement 

date multiplied by 1.5, measured as of the last day of each 

fiscal quarter, (v) a maximum secured recourse leverage 

ratio (as defined in the credit agreement) of not greater than 

an amount equal to 3.5% of consolidated total asset value 

(as defined in the credit agreement) and $138,187,197, (vi) 

a maximum adjusted secured leverage ratio (as defined in 

the credit agreement) of not greater than 55%, measured as 

of the last day of each fiscal quarter, and (vii) liquidity (as 

defined in the credit agreement) of at least $250 million.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s consolidated 

leverage ratio was 61.1%, its fixed charge coverage ratio 

was 2.7 to 1.00, its consolidated tangible net worth was 

$1,226.5 million, its adjusted secured leverage ratio was 

43.3%, its secured recourse leverage ratio was 1.4%, its 

recourse leverage ratio was 0.83, and liquidity was $681.8 

million. The obligations of the Borrower pursuant to the 

Credit Agreement are guaranteed by the Company and 

certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Borrower 

drew $125.0 million and repaid $125.0 million on the KW 

Revolving Facility to fund acquisitions. The maximum 

amount drawn on the KW Revolving Facility at any one 

point during the year ended December 31, 2016 was $125.0 

million. As of December 31, 2016, the KW Revolving Facility 

was undrawn, with $475.0 million still available.

 The average outstanding borrowings under the Pre-

Existing KWH facility was $35.4 million during the year ended 

December 31, 2015. Additionally, during the year ended 

December 31, 2015, the Borrower made no draws on the KW 

Revolving Facility. As of December 31, 2015, the KW Revolving 

Facility was undrawn, with $475.0 million still available.

Kennedy Wilson had an unsecured revolving credit 

facility (“Pre-Existing KWH Facility”) with U.S. Bank and 

East-West Bank and Bank of Ireland that bears interest at 

a rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.75% and had a maturity date 

of October 1, 2016. In July 2014 Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. 

increased its unsecured corporate line of credit facility from 

$140.0 million to $300.0 million. The increase was driven 

by the admission of Bank of America, N.A., Deutsche Bank 

AG New York Branch and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. to 

the existing lender syndicate and an increased commitment 

from The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland.

In December 2015, Kennedy Wilson extinguished the Pre-

Existing KWH Facility, which resulted in a $1.0 million loss 

on early extinguishment of corporate debt.

Note 10—Senior Notes

(dollars in millions) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Unamortized Unamortized
Interest 

Rate
Maturity 

Date Face Value
Net Premium/

(Discount)
Carrying 

Value Face Value
Net Premium/

(Discount)
Carrying 

Value

2042 Notes 7.75% 12/1/2042 $   55.0 $    — $   55.0 $   55.0 $    — $   55.0

2024 Notes 5.88% 4/1/2024 900.0 (2.2) 897.8 650.0 (2.4) 647.6

Senior Notes $ 955.0 $ (2.2) $ 952.8 $ 705.0 $ (2.4) $ 702.6

Unamortized loan fees (16.2) (13.8)

Total Senior Notes $ 936.6 $ 688.8

In August 2016, Kennedy Wilson, Inc., (the “Issuer”) 

completed an additional public offering of $250.0 million 

aggregate principal amount of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2024 

(the “Notes”). The Notes were issued as additional notes 

under the indenture pursuant to which the Issuer previously 

issued $650 million aggregate principal amount of its 5.875% 

Senior Notes due 2024 (the 2024 Notes (as defined below). 

The Notes have substantially identical terms as the 2024 

Notes and will be treated as a single series with the 2024 

Notes under the indenture. The Notes were issued and sold 

at a public offering price of 100.0% of their principal amount, 

plus accrued interest from, and including, April 1, 2016.

In March 2014, Kennedy Wilson completed a public offering 

of $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.875% Senior 

Notes, due April 1, 2024 (the “2024 Notes”). The 2024 Notes 

were issued and sold at a public offering price of 99.068% of 

their principal amount by Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. (the “Issuer”), 

a wholly owned subsidiary of Kennedy Wilson. 

In November 2014, the Company completed an additional 

public offering of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount 

of 5.875% Senior Notes, due 2024. The additional 2024 

Notes have substantially identical terms as the 2024 Notes 

mentioned above, and are treated as a single series with 

the 2024 Notes under the 2024 Indenture. The additional 

2024 Notes were issued and sold at a public offering price of 

100.0% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest from, 

and including, October 1, 2014 by the Issuer. The amount of 

the 2024 Notes included in the accompanying consolidated 

balance sheets was $897.8 million at December 31, 2016.

In December 2012, the Issuer, in a private placement, issued 

$100.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8.750% Senior 

Notes due April 1, 2019 (the “2019 Notes”) for approximately 

$105.3 million, net of premium. The 2019 Notes were issued 

as additional notes under an indenture dated as of April 5, 

2011, among the Issuer; Kennedy Wilson, as parent guarantor; 

certain subsidiaries of the Issuer, as subsidiary guarantors; 

and Wilmington Trust, National Association (as successor by 

merger to Wilmington Trust FSB), as trustee, as thereafter 

supplemented and amended. During 2011, the Issuer issued 

$200.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 2019 Notes 

on April 5, 2011 for approximately $198.6 million, net of 

discount, and an additional $50.0 million aggregate principal 

amount of such notes on April 12, 2011 for approximately 

$50.8 million, net of premium. The additional notes had 

substantially identical terms as the initial 2019 Notes and were 

treated as a single series under the indenture. In November 

2014, Kennedy Wilson used the proceeds from the November 

2014 issuance of the 2024 Notes together with cash on hand, 

to extinguish its 2019 Notes with an aggregate face value of 

$350.0 million (and an aggregate carrying value of $353.5 

million) for $380.1 million which resulted in a $25.8 million 

loss on early extinguishment of corporate debt. 

In December 2012, Kennedy Wilson completed a public 

offering of $55.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.75% 

Senior Notes due 2042 (“2042 Notes”). The 2042 Notes were 

issued and sold at a public offering price of 100% of their 

principal amount by Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. (the “Issuer”), a 

wholly owned subsidiary of Kennedy Wilson. The amount of 

the 2042 Notes included in the accompanying consolidated 

balance sheets was $55.0 million at December 31, 2016 and 

2015, respectively.

The indentures governing the 2024 Notes and the 2042 

Notes contain various restrictive covenants, including, 

among others, limitations on our ability and the ability of 

certain of the Company’s subsidiaries to incur or guarantee 

additional indebtedness, make restricted payments, pay 

dividends or make any other distributions from restricted 

subsidiaries, redeem or repurchase capital stock, sell assets 

or subsidiary stocks, engage in transactions with affiliates, 

create or permit liens on assets, enter into sale/leaseback 

transactions, and enter into consolidations or mergers. 

The indentures governing the 2024 Notes and the 2042 

Notes limits the ability of Kennedy Wilson and certain of 

its subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness if, on the 

date of such incurrence and after giving effect to the new 

indebtedness, Kennedy Wilson’s maximum balance sheet 

leverage ratio (as defined in the indenture) is greater than 

1.50 to 1.00. This ratio is measured at the time of incurrence 

of additional indebtedness. As of December 31, 2016, the 

balance sheet leverage ratio was 0.92 to 1.00. See Note 19 

for the guarantor and non-guarantor financial statements.

Note 11—Junior Subordinated Debentures

In September 2014, Kennedy Wilson extinguished its junior 

subordinated debt with a face value of $40.0 million for 

$41.5 million which resulted in a $1.5 million loss on early 

extinguishment of corporate debt.

Note 12—Related Party Transactions

Related party revenue is fees and other income received from 

investments in which we have an ownership interest, excluding 

amounts eliminated in consolidation discussed below. KW 

Group earned related party fees of $28.9 million, $37.8 million 

and $57.4 million for the periods ended December 31, 2016, 

2015 and 2014, respectively. Included in these related party 

fees are promote fees on investments the Company also has 

an ownership interest in. See performance fee discussion in 

revenue recognition section of note 2 for more detail.

The Company provides management and property services 

on properties in which it also has an ownership interest. 

Fees earned on consolidated properties are eliminated in 

consolidation and fees on unconsolidated investments 

are eliminated for the portion that relate to the Company’s 

ownership interest. During the years ended December 31, 

2016, 2015 and 2014 fees of $36.9 million, $75.0 million and 

$21.6 million were eliminated in consolidation. 

The Company has bought out equity partners and 

consolidated investments that were previously accounted 

for under the equity method that have resulted in acquisition-

related gains. Please refer to note 4 for details of certain 

transactions with existing partners.
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Note 13—Income Taxes

The table below represents a geographical breakdown of 

book income (loss) before the provision for income taxes:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

 Domestic $ 33.9 $ 61.2 $ 60.2

 Foreign 56.6 51.2 62.3

Total $ 90.5 $ 112.4 $ 122.5

The U.S. and foreign components of provision for (benefit 

from) income taxes consisted of the following components. 

However, it is not reflective of the cash tax results of the Company.

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Federal

 Current $ (0.8) $   0.2 $    —

 Deferred 17.0 13.2 31.0

16.2 13.4 31.0

State

 Current 0.1 — 0.1

 Deferred 2.8 0.3 5.2

2.9 0.3 5.3

Foreign

 Current 5.8 31.9 4.1

 Deferred (10.9) 7.8 (8.0 )

(5.1) 39.7 (3.9 )

Total $ 14.0 $ 53.4 $ 32.4

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate of 

35% with Kennedy Wilson’s effective income tax rate is as 

follows:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Tax computed at the statutory rate $ 31.7 $ 39.3 $ 41.8

Foreign permanent differences, 
 primarily non-deductible  
 depreciation, amortization and  
 acquisition-related expenses in  
 the United Kingdom 6.5 13.7 0.3

Sale of KWR, investment basis  
 difference — 10.6 —

Effect of foreign tax operations,  
 net of foreign tax credits 1.1 (3.8 ) 3.4

Noncontrolling interests (25.8 ) (2.8 ) (22.7)

Adjustment to investment basis — 1.4 2.0

Non-vested stock expense — 1.0 —

State income taxes, net of  
 federal benefit

2.8 (1.5 ) 2.7

Other (2.3 ) (4.5 ) 4.9

Provision for (benefit from)  
 income taxes $ 14.0 $ 53.4 $ 32.4

Cumulative tax effects of temporary differences are shown 

below at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015

Deferred tax assets:

 Foreign currency translation $ 131.9 $ 113.6

 Net operating loss carryforward 
  and credits

85.2 87.5

 Stock option expense 19.5 8.0

 Marketable securities 0.4 0.4

 Accrued reserves 0.1 0.3

Total deferred tax assets 237.1 209.8

Valuation allowance (29.9 ) (37.7)

Net deferred tax assets 207.2 172.1

Deferred tax liabilities:

 Investment basis, depreciation,  
  amortization and reserve 
  differences

157.6 125.6

 Hedging transactions 5.0 15.5

 Prepaid expenses and other 13.9 6.5

 Capitalized interest 2.3 2.3

Total deferred tax liabilities 178.8 149.9

Deferred tax asset (liability), net $  28.4 $   22.2

As of December 31, 2016, Kennedy Wilson had federal net 

operating losses of $109.4 million. These net operating losses 

begin to expire in the year 2030. As of December 31, 2016, 

there were also California net operating loss carryforwards 

of approximately $104.2 million. The California net operating 

losses begin to expire in the year 2028. In addition, Kennedy 

Wilson has $4.2 million of other state net operating losses. 

As of December 31, 2016, Kennedy Wilson had $173.5 

million of foreign net operating losses carryforwards which 

have no expiration date. We also have foreign tax credit of 

$12.1 million, which begins to expire in the year 2017.

Our valuation allowance on deferred tax assets decreased 

by $7.8 million in 2016 and increased by $34.3 million in 

2015. The decrease in 2016 principally relates to translation 

adjustments and a released valuation allowance as new 

evidence indicated that it is now more-likely-than-not 

that certain net operating losses in the United Kingdom 

will be realized. The increase in 2015 principally relates to 

operating loss carryovers in Scotland and Spain where we 

have concluded that such loss carryovers are not more-

likely-than-not to be realized. 

Presently a deferred tax liability for undistributed earnings 

of subsidiaries located outside the United States has not 

been recorded. These earnings may become taxable upon a 

payment of a dividend or as a result of a sale or liquidation 

of the subsidiaries. At this time, the Company does not have 

plans to repatriate income from its foreign subsidiaries. 

However, to the extent that the Company is able to repatriate 

such earnings in a tax-free manner, or in the event of a change 

in the capital situation or investment strategy, it is possible 

that the foreign subsidiaries may pay a dividend which 

would impact our effective tax rate. Unremitted earnings 

of foreign subsidiaries, which have been, or are intended 

to be permanently invested, aggregated approximately to 

$6.0 million as of December 31, 2016. If these subsidiaries’ 

earnings were repatriated to the United States, additional 

U.S. income taxes of $1.4 million would be incurred.

There were no gross unrecognized tax benefits at 

December 31, 2016 and 2015. Management has considered 

the likelihood and significance of possible penalties 

associated with Kennedy Wilson’s current and intended filing 

positions and has determined, based on its assessment, that 

such penalties, if any, would not be significant. 

Kennedy Wilson’s federal and state income tax returns 

remain open to examination for the years 2013 through 2015 

and 2012 through 2015, respectively. However, due to prior year 

loss carryovers, the IRS may examine any tax years for which 

the carryovers are used to offset future taxable income. Our 

foreign subsidiaries’ tax returns remain open to examination 

for the years 2012 through 2015. The Spanish loss carryovers 

may be subject to tax examination for a period of 10 years from 

the tax year of generation.

Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies

Future minimum lease payments under scheduled operating 

leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in 

excess of one year are as follows:

(dollars in millions)

Year ending December 31,

2017 $  2.8
2018 1.8
2019 1.7
2020 1.6
2021 1.3
Thereafter 2.5
Total minimum payments $11.7

Rental expense was $4.4 million, $4.4 million, and $4.3 

million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, 

and 2014, respectively, and is included in general and 

administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated 

statements of operations.

Guarantees—Kennedy Wilson has provided guarantees 

associated with loans secured by consolidated assets. The 

maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) 

Kennedy Wilson could be required to make under the guarantees 

was approximately $62.7 million at December 31, 2016. 

The guarantees expire through 2026 and Kennedy Wilson’s 

performance under the guarantees would be required to the 

extent there is a shortfall in liquidation between the principal 

amount of the loan and the net sale proceeds of the property.

Capital Commitments—As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the 

Company has unfunded capital commitments of $24.7 million 

and $39.8 million to its joint ventures under the respective 

operating agreements. The Company may be called upon to 

contribute additional capital to joint ventures in satisfaction of 

the Company’s capital commitment obligations.

Employment Agreements—Kennedy Wilson has entered 

into employment agreements with its Chief Executive Officer 

(“CEO”), its President and Chief Executive Officer of its 

European operations (“CEO - Europe”), its Chief Financial 

Officer (“CFO”), its Executive Vice President (“EVP”), and its 

Executive Vice President and General Counsel (“EVP, GC”). The 

CEO and CEO - Europe have base salaries of $1.5 million and 

$1.0 million, respectively through August 6, 2021. The CFO, 

EVP, and EVP, GC have base salaries of $0.6 million, $0.6 million 

and $0.8 million, respectively through December 29, 2019. 

Additionally, the employment agreements provide for the 

payment of an annual discretionary bonus and participation 

in equity awards approved in an amount determined in 

the sole and absolute discretion of the Compensation 

Committee of the board of directors.

Litigation—Kennedy Wilson is currently a defendant in 

certain routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of 

business. It is the opinion of management and legal counsel 

that the outcome of these actions will not have a material 

effect on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Note 15—Stock Compensation Plans

In November 2009, Kennedy Wilson adopted the 2009 Equity 

Participation Plan (“the Equity Plan”) that allowed for the 

grant of up to approximately 2.5 million shares of common 

stock. As of December 31, 2016 all the restricted share 

awards were granted to employees, which vest ratably over 

a five-year period. Vesting of the restricted share awards was 

contingent upon the expected achievement of a performance 

target as of the initial vesting date of November 13, 2010 

and each of the next four years thereafter. The performance 

targets were achieved for 2011 through 2016. From inception 

of the plan through December 31, 2016, 2,601,919 shares have 

vested and 60,125 shares have been forfeited. The Company 

re-granted the forfeited shares in 2013 to certain employees. 

The restricted share awards are recognized as expense on 

a tranche by tranche basis over the five-year performance 

period. At December 31, 2016, all shares were fully vested. 

In June 2012, Kennedy Wilson adopted and its shareholders 

approved the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Participation 

Plan (the “Amended and Restated Plan”) under which an 

additional 3.2 million shares of common stock have been 

reserved for restricted stock grants to officers, employees, 

non-employee directors and consultants. The terms of the 

awards granted under the 2009 Amended and Restated Equity 

Participation Plan were set by the Company’s compensation 
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committee at its discretion. During the year ended December 

31, 2012, 3.2 million shares of restricted common stock 

were granted under the Amended and Restated Plan along 

with 5,000 shares which remained under the original plan. 

The shares that were granted vest over five years with 40% 

vesting ratably in the first four years of the award period 

and the remaining 60% in the fifth year of the award period. 

Vesting of the restricted share awards is contingent upon the 

expected achievement of a performance target in each year 

of the award period with the initial vesting of the first 10% 

in January 2013. The performance targets were achieved for 

2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016. From inception of the plan 

through December 31, 2016, 1,222,008 shares have vested and 

131,248 shares have been forfeited. The Company re-granted 

the forfeited shares to certain employees. 

In July 2014, Kennedy Wilson adopted and its shareholders 

approved the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Participation 

Plan under which an additional 6.0 million shares of common 

stock have been reserved for restricted stock grants to 

officers, employees, non-employee directors and consultants. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, 

1.0 million, 1.7 million and 3.3 million shares, respectively, 

of restricted common stock were granted under the 2009 

Amended and Restated Equity Participation Plan. The terms 

of the awards granted under the Amended and Restated 

Plan were set by the Company’s compensation committee 

at its discretion. The shares will vest ratably over a three, 

four or five-year year period based on the achievement of 

certain performance targets. The performance periods will be 

measured for the awards will be the Company’s fiscal years 

ending from December 31, 2014 through December 31, 2020. 

The shares which were granted with a three-year vesting 

period have a three-year sale restriction period upon vesting. 

Due to the lack of marketability of these shares with the three 

year sale restriction period upon vesting, a 15% discount was 

applied to the grant price these shares when computing stock 

compensation expense. From inception of the plan through 

December 31, 2016, 1,905,479 shares have vested and 70,300 

have been forfeited. As of December 31, 2016, there was $69.2 

million of unrecognized compensation cost for the Equity Plan 

related to unvested restricted shares which will vest over the 

next four years.

Upon vesting, the restricted stock granted to employees 

discussed directly above is net share-settled to cover the 

withholding tax. Shares that vested during the years ended 

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were net-share settled 

such that the Company withheld shares with value equivalent 

to the employees’ minimum statutory obligation for the 

applicable income and other employment taxes, and remitted 

the cash to the appropriate taxing authorities. The total shares 

withheld during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 

and 2014 were 693,942 shares, 435,415 shares and 319,582 

shares respectively, and were based on the value of the 

restricted stock on the respective vesting dates as determined 

by the Company’s closing stock price. During the years ended 

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, total payments for the 

employees’ tax obligations to the taxing authorities were 

$14.7 million, $11.4 million and $8.1 million, respectively. 

These figures are reflected as a financing activity within KW 

Group’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 

 During the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, 

Kennedy Wilson recognized $65.1 million, $30.8 million and 

$15.8 million of compensation expense related to the vesting 

of restricted common stock and is included in compensation 

and related expense in the accompanying consolidated 

statements of operations. The increase in stock compensation 

in 2016 is mainly due to $26.5 million or 60% of the expense 

of the restricted stock that was granted in 2012 under our 

Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Participation Plan being 

incurred during April 2016 to March 2017 due to performance 

criteria being met for this period. A portion of the increase was 

also attributed to the restricted stock that was granted during 

the fourth quarter of 2015 and during 2016.

The following table sets forth activity under the Equity 

Plan and Amended and Restated Plan:

Shares
Nonvested at December 31, 2014 5,646,733
Granted 1,754,750
Vested (1,069,990)
Forfeited (57,148)
Nonvested at December 31, 2015 6,274,345
Granted 1,006,750

Vested (1,526,731)

Forfeited (31,900)

Nonvested at December 31, 2016 5,722,464

Employee Benefit Arrangements—Kennedy Wilson has 

a qualified plan under the provisions of Section 401(k) of 

the Internal Revenue Code. Under this plan, participants 

are able to make salary deferral contributions of up to 75% 

of their total compensation, up to a specified maximum. 

The 401(k) plan also includes provisions which authorize 

Kennedy Wilson to make discretionary contributions. 

During the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, 

Kennedy Wilson made matching contributions of $0.3 

million, $0.3 million, and $0.2 million, respectively to this 

plan and they are included in compensation and related 

expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of 

operations.

Note 16—Equity

Common Stock—During the year ended December 31, 2015, 

Kennedy Wilson had completed an offering of 8.6 million 

shares of its common stock, which raised $215.3 million of 

net proceeds, excluding issuance costs of $0.3 million.

In January 2014, Kennedy Wilson completed an offering 

of 9.2 million shares of its common stock, which raised 

$190.6 million of net proceeds. 

Common Stock Repurchase Program—On February 

25, 2016, Kennedy Wilson announced the authorization 

of a stock repurchase program for up to $100 million. 

Repurchases under the program may be made in the open 

market, in privately negotiated transactions or otherwise, 

with the amount and timing of repurchases depending on 

market conditions and subject to the Company’s discretion. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, Kennedy Wilson 

repurchased and retired 2,440,556 shares for $50.1 million 

under the stock repurchase program.

Preferred Stock—During 2010, Kennedy Wilson issued two 

series of Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock (together 

“the Preferred Stock”) at 1,000 per share, Series A (100,000 

shares) and Series B (32,550 shares), for total proceeds less 

issuance costs of $99.8 million and $32.5 million. 

The Series A Preferred Stock converted into 8,554,948 

common shares on May 19, 2015 at a price of $11.69 per 

share. The Series B Preferred Stock converted into 3,366,973 

common shares on December 28, 2016 at a price of $9.67 per 

share at the option of the holder. The Series B Preferred Stock 

was convertible into common stock at any time at the option of 

the holder on or after May 3, 2017 (“the Optional Conversion 

Date”) and prior to November 3, 2018 and would have been 

mandatorily convertible into common stock on November 3, 

2018. Due to the early conversion, Kennedy Wilson agreed to 

pay the holders an aggregate of $0.7 million, which represents 

dividends that would have accrued on all outstanding Series B 

preferred stock through the Optional Conversion Date.

The certificate of designations of the Preferred Stock 

contain provisions that require Kennedy Wilson to 

commence an offer to purchase all shares of the Preferred 

Stock at a purchase price in cash per share of Preferred 

Stock equal to $1,150 plus all accumulated and accrued 

dividends upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, 

defined as a change of control. The parties have agreed that 

a change of control is deemed to occur when any person or 

group other than the purchaser of the Preferred Stock and 

its affiliates, or any officer or director of Kennedy Wilson as 

of the issue date of the Preferred Stock, acquires directly 

or indirectly voting control or direction over more than 

35% of the voting control of Kennedy Wilson for a period 

of seven consecutive days following the earlier of the date 

the Company becomes aware of such acquisition and the 

date such person or group files a Schedule 13D. This change 

of control provision is within Kennedy Wilson’s control as 

the Board of Directors, at its discretion, would be able to 

issue blank check Preferred Stock at any time for any reason 

which could dilute the person or group to below the 35% 

of the voting control threshold. As such, Kennedy Wilson 

has concluded that the change of control is within the 

control of Kennedy Wilson and therefore has classified the 

Preferred Stock as permanent equity in the accompanying 

consolidated balance sheets.

In connection with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, 

Kennedy Wilson entered into registration rights agreements 

that allow for the holders of the Preferred Stock, with at 

least a 51% vote, to demand registration of the Preferred 

Stock (or converted common stock) on or after November 

13, 2010. If Kennedy Wilson does not satisfy the demand for 

registration, the holders of the Preferred Stock (or converted 

common stock) would be entitled to receive a payment in 

an amount equal to 1.50% per annum of the liquidation 

preference of $1,000 per share. There are sufficient shares 

of unregistered common stock authorized and unissued to 

accommodate the conversion feature.

Dividend Distributions—Kennedy Wilson declared and paid 

the following cash dividends on its common and preferred 

stock:

(dollars in millions)

Year Ended  
December 31, 2016

Year Ended  
December 31, 2015

Declared Paid Declared Paid

Preferred Stock
Series A(1) $    — $   — $   1.5 $   1.5

Series B(2) 2.8 2.8 2.1 2.1

Total Preferred Stock 2.8 2.8 3.6 3.6

Common Stock 63.9 62.0 53.3 48.2

Total(3) $66.7 $64.8 $56.9 $51.8

(1)  The decrease in Series A dividends during the current year is due to the 
conversion into common shares during the second quarter 2015. See 
discussion above.

(2)  The increase in Series B dividends during the current year is due to 
the early conversion of the Series B preferred stock during the fourth 
quarter of 2016. See discussion above.

(3)  The difference between declared and paid is the amount accrued on the 
consolidated balance sheets.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income—The following table summarizes the changes in each component of accumulated 

other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI”), net of taxes:

(dollars in millions)

Foreign Currency 
Translation

Foreign Currency 
Derivative 
Contracts

Marketable 
Securities

Total Accumulated  
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Balance at December 31, 2015 $   (69.9 ) $   22.4 $   (0.2 ) $   (47.7 )
 Unrealized (losses) gains, arising during the period (184.9) (96.4) 0.1 (281.2)
 Amounts reclassified out of AOCI during the period 3.8 (0.4) — 3.4
 Taxes on unrealized (losses) gains, arising during the  
  period 20.8 (3.7) — 17.1

 Noncontrolling interest 131.6 105.6 — 237.2

Balance (of Kennedy Wilson's share) at December 31, 2016 $   (98.6) $   27.5 $   (0.1) $   (71.2)

The local currencies for our interests in foreign operations 

include the euro, the British pound sterling, and to a lesser 

extent, the Japanese yen. The related amounts on our balance 

sheets are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates 

at the respective financial statement date, while amounts on 

our statements of operations are translated at the average 

exchange rates during the respective period. The increase 

in the unrealized losses on foreign currency translation is 

a result of the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the 

Japanese yen, euro and British pound sterling during the 

year ended December 31, 2016.

In order to manage currency fluctuations, KW Group 

entered into currency derivative contracts to manage its 

exposure to currency fluctuations between its functional 

currency (U.S. dollar) and the functional currency (Euro, GBP 

and Yen) of certain of its wholly-owned and consolidated 

subsidiaries. See note 6 for a more detailed discussion of 

KW Group’s currency derivative contracts.

As discussed throughout this report, we are required 

under U.S. GAAP to consolidate certain non-wholly 

owned subsidiaries or investments that we control. As 

such, our financial statements reflect currency translation 

adjustments and related hedging activities on a gross basis. 

In many instances, these fluctuations are not reflective of 

the actual foreign currency exposure of the underlying 

consolidated subsidiary. For example, we are required to 

translate the activities of KWE into US dollars even though 

KWE does not invest in US dollar denominated assets. 

Therefore, it is important to look at the provided currency 

translation and currency derivative adjustment information 

net of noncontrolling interests to get a more accurate 

understanding of the actual currency exposure for the 

Company.

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests consist 

of the ownership interests of noncontrolling shareholders 

in consolidated subsidiaries,and are presented separately 

on KW Group’s balance sheet. As of December 31, 2016 

and 2015 the Company has noncontrolling interest of 

$1.3 billion and $1.7 billion, respectively. The decrease in 

noncontrolling interests during 2016 is primarily due to 

the Company’s distributions to noncontrolling interests of 

$116.6 million. The Company also allocated $70.9 million of 

income, $237.2 million of other comprehensive losses and 

received contributions of $42.1 million to noncontrolling 

interest holders.

Note 17—Earnings Per Share

Under FASB ASC Topic 260-10-45 Earnings Per Share, 

the Company uses the two-class method to calculate 

earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated 

based on dividends declared (“distributed earnings”) and 

the rights of common shares and participating securities 

in any undistributed earnings, which represents net 

income remaining after deduction of dividends declared 

during the period. Participating securities, which include 

unvested restricted stock, are included in the computation 

of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. 

The undistributed earnings are allocated to all outstanding 

common shares and participating securities based on the 

relative percentage of each security to the total number of 

outstanding securities. Basic earnings per common share 

and participating securities represent the summation of the 

distributed and undistributed earnings per common share 

and participating security divided by the total weighted 

average number of common shares outstanding and the 

total weighted average number of participating securities 

outstanding during the respective periods. We only 

present the earnings per share attributable to the common 

shareholders.

Net losses, after deducting the dividends to participating 

securities, are allocated in full to the common shares since 

the participating security holders do not have an obligation 

to share in the losses, based on the contractual rights and 

obligations of the participating securities. The following 

is a summary of the elements used in calculating basic 

and diluted income (loss) per share for the years ended 

December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014:

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions, except share amounts and per share data) 2016 2015 2014

Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.  
 common shareholders $               2.8 $            71.1 $            13.8

Net income and dividends allocated to participating securities (1.7) (2.9) (1.4)

Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.  
 common shareholders, net of allocation to participating securities 1.1 68.2 12.4

Dividends declared on common shares (62.3) (51.1) (32.3)

Undistributed (losses) earnings attributable to  
 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $            (61.2 ) $            17.1 $           (19.9)

Distributed earnings per share $             0.56 $            0.48 $            0.36

Undistributed (losses) earnings per share (0.55) 0.18 (0.22)

Income (loss) per basic 0.01 0.66 0.14

Income (loss) per diluted $             0.01 $            0.66 $            0.14

Weighted-average shares outstanding for basic 109,094,530 103,261,513 89,200,855

Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted 109,094,530 109,553,728 91,555,214

Dividends declared per common share $             0.56 $            0.48 $            0.36

There was a total of 3,259,345 potentially dilutive securities 

during the year ended December 31, 2016 that have not 

been included in the diluted weighted average shares as 

they are anti-dilutive. During December 31, 2015 6,292,215 

potentially dilutive securities were all dilutive to earnings 

per share. The dilutive shares from convertible securities 

have not been included in the diluted weighted average 

shares for the year ended December 31, 2014, as they are 

anti-dilutive. There was a total of 11,100,074 potentially 

dilutive securities as of December 31, 2014 not included as 

part of the calculation above as they were anti-dilutive.

Note 18—Segment Information

Kennedy Wilson is a global real estate investment company. 

The Company owns, operates, and invests in real estate 

both on its own and through our investment management 

platform. To complement its investment business, the 

Company also provides real estate services primarily to 

financial services clients.

Kennedy Wilson’s segment disclosure with respect to the 

determination of segment profit or loss and segment assets is 

based on these two core segments: KW Investments and KW 

Investment Management and Real Estate Services (IMRES). KW 

Investments invests in multifamily, residential and commercial 

properties as well as loans secured by real estate. IMRES 

provides a full array of real estate-related services to investors 

and lenders, with a strong focus on financial institution-based 

clients. Kennedy Wilson’s segment disclosure with respect 

to the determination of segment profit or loss and segment 

assets is based on these services and investments.

Substantially All of the Revenue—related party was 

generated via inter-segment activity for the years ended 

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. Generally, this revenue 

consists of fees earned on investments in which Kennedy 

Wilson also has an ownership interest. The amounts 

representing investments with related parties and non-

affiliates are included in the investment segment. The 

fees earned from related parties are included in the IMRES 

segment.

KW Investments—We invest our capital in real estate assets 

and loans secured by real estate either on our own or 

through our investment management platform. When we 

have partners, we are typically the general partner in the 

arrangement with a promoted interest in the profits of our 

investments beyond our ownership percentage. The Company 

has an average ownership interest across all investments 

of approximately 42% as of December 31, 2016. Our equity 

partners include public shareholders, financial institutions, 

foundations, endowments, high net worth individuals and 

other institutional investors. See the “Business Segments” 

section in Item 1 for a more detailed discussion of the different 

components of the KW Investments segment. 

KW Investment Management and Real Estate Services 

(IMRES)—IMRES encompasses the Company fee generating 

businesses which includes both the Company’s investment 

management platform as well as the Company’s third 

party services business. The Company’s clients include 

shareholders of KWE, financial institutions, institutional 

investors, insurance companies, developers, builders and 

government agencies. IMRES has five main lines of business: 

investment management, property services, research, 

brokerage, and auction and conventional sales. These five 

business lines generate revenue for us through fees and 

commissions. See the “Business Segments” section in Item 

1 for a more detailed discussion of the different components 

of the IMRES segment.
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The Company manages approximately 59 million square 

feet of properties for the Company and its investment partners 

(including KWE) in the United States, Europe, and Asia, which 

includes assets we have ownership interests in and third party 

owned assets. With 25 offices throughout the United States, the 

United Kingdom, Ireland, Jersey, Spain, Italy and Japan, we have 

the capabilities and resources to provide property services to real 

estate owners as well as the experience, as a real estate investor, 

to understand client concerns. The managers of IMRES have an 

extensive track record in their respective lines of business and 

in the real estate community as a whole. Their knowledge and 

relationships are an excellent driver of businesses through the 

services business as well as on the investment front.

Additionally, IMRES plays a critical role in supporting 

our investment strategy by providing local market 

intelligence and real-time data for evaluating investments, 

generating proprietary transaction flow and creating value 

through efficient implementation of asset management or 

repositioning strategies.

No single third party client accounted for 10% or more of 

Kennedy Wilson’s revenue during any period presented in 

these financial statements.

The following tables summarize the income and expense 

activity by segment for the years ended December 31, 2016, 

2015 and 2014 and total assets as of December 31, 2016, 

2015 and 2014.

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Investments

Rental $  485.9 $  404.8 $  206.9

Hotel 116.2 106.4 63.3

Sale of real estate 29.3 3.7 28.4

Loans and other income 12.6 19.5 17.4

   Total revenue 644.0 534.4 316.0

Depreciation and amortization (198.2) (166.3) (104.5)

Operating Expenses (345.2) (283.3) (201.6)

Income from unconsolidated investments 122.8 93.6 48.3

 Operating Income 223.4 178.4 58.2

Gain on sale of real estate 130.7 72.4 —

Acquisition-related gains 16.2 108.1 218.1

Acquisition-related expenses (9.5) (37.3) (19.7)

Interest expense-investment (137.4) (108.8) (46.3)

Other (1.2) (2.5) 5.1

 Income before benefit from income taxes 222.2 210.3 215.4

 (Provision for) benefit from income taxes 5.0 (23.4) —

Net income 227.2 186.9 215.4

Net (income) loss attributable to the non-controlling interests (70.9) 15.3 (73.6)

 Net income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $  156.3 $  202.2 $  141.8

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Investment Management and Real Estate Services

Investment management, property services, and research fees (includes $28.9, $37.8,  
 and $57.4 million of related party fees, respectively) $    59.4 $    69.3 $     82.6

   Total revenue 59.4 69.3 82.6

Operating expenses (54.9) (69.7 ) (61.1)

Income from unconsolidated investments 3.8 3.8 5.9

 Net Income 8.3 3.4 27.4

Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interests — 0.4 5.4

 Net income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $      8.3 $      3.8 $     32.8

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Corporate

Operating expenses $   (93.6) $   (53.4) $   (35.8)

   Operating loss (93.6) (53.4) (35.8)

Interest expense - corporate (54.2) (46.9) (57.1)

Other 7.8 — —

Loss on extinguishment of corporate debt — (1.0) (27.3)

Loss before (provision for) income taxes (140.0) (101.3) (120.2)

 (Provision for) benefit from income taxes (19.0) (30.0) (32.4)

Net loss (159.0) (131.3) (152.6)

 Preferred dividends and accretion of preferred stock issuance costs (2.8) (3.6) (8.1)

Net loss attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $ (161.8) $ (134.9) $ (160.7)

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Consolidated

Rental $  485.9 $   404.8 $   206.9

Hotel 116.2 106.4 63.3

Sale of real estate 29.3 3.7 28.4

Investment management, property services, and research fees (includes $28.9, $37.8, and $57.4 million  
 of related party fees, respectively) 59.4 69.3 82.6

Loans purchases, loan originations, and other 12.6 19.5 17.4

   Total revenue 703.4 603.7 398.6

Operating expenses 493.7 406.4 298.6

Depreciation and amortization 198.2 166.3 104.5

   Total operating expenses 691.9 572.7 403.1

Income from unconsolidated investments 126.6 97.4 54.2

   Operating income 138.1 128.4 49.7

Gain on sale of real estate 130.7 72.4 —

Acquisition-related gains 16.2 108.1 218.1

Acquisition-related expenses (9.5) (37.3) (19.7)

Interest expense - investment (137.4) (108.8) (46.3)

Interest expense - corporate (54.2) (46.9) (57.1)

Loss on extinguishment of corporate debt — (1.0) (27.3)

Other 6.6 (2.5) 5.1

 Income before benefit from income taxes 90.5 112.4 122.5

Provision for income taxes (14.0) (53.4) (32.4)

 Net income 76.5 59.0 90.1

Net (income) loss attributable to the noncontrolling interests (70.9) 15.7 (68.2)

Preferred dividends and accretion of preferred stock issuance costs (2.8) (3.6) (8.1)

 Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $      2.8 $    71.1 $    13.8

December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015

Assets

Investments $ 7,375.5 $  7,404.8

Services 78.1 58.1

Corporate 205.5 132.7

Total assets $ 7,659.1 $  7,595.6

December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Expenditures for long lived assets

Investments $ (949.6) $(1,927.6 ) $(1,962.2)
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Geographic Information:

The revenue shown in the table below is allocated based upon the country in which services are performed. 

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2016 2015 2014

United States $ 304.1 $ 229.3 $ 174.9
Europe 397.2 361.1 209.2
Japan 2.1 13.3 14.5

Total revenue $ 703.4 $ 603.7 $ 398.6

Note 19—Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financial 

Statements

The following consolidating financial information and 

condensed consolidating financial information includes:

(1) Condensed consolidating balance sheets as of December 

31, 2016 and 2015, respectively; consolidating statements of 

operations and comprehensive (loss) income for the years 

ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively; and 

condensed consolidating statements of cash flows for the 

years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively, 

of (a) Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. on an unconsolidated 

basis as the parent (and guarantor), (b) Kennedy-Wilson, 

Inc., as the subsidiary issuer, (c) the guarantor subsidiaries, 

(d) the non-guarantor subsidiaries and (e) Kennedy-Wilson 

Holdings, Inc. on a consolidated basis; and

(2) Elimination entries necessary to consolidate Kennedy-

Wilson Holdings, Inc., as the parent guarantor, with Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc. and its guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet 
as of December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents $        — $   106.0 $     45.4 $   108.8 $           — $    260.2

 Cash held by consolidated investments — — — 625.5 — 625.5

 Accounts receivable — — 37.5 33.8 — 71.3

 Loan purchases and originations — 0.3 12.1 75.3 — 87.7

 Real estate and acquired in place lease values, net of  
  accumulated depreciation and amortization — — 1,482.5 4,331.7 — 5,814.2

 Unconsolidated investments — 18.8 380.0 161.3 — 560.1

 Investments in and advances to consolidated  
  subsidiaries 1,063.8 2,073.2 1,171.6 — (4,308.6) —

 Other assets — 2.6 39.7 197.8 — 240.1

Total assets $1,063.8 $2,200.9 $3,168.8 $5,534.2 $ (4,308.6) $ 7,659.1

Liabilities

 Accounts Payable — 0.5 1.6 9.1 — 11.2

 Accrued expenses and other liabilities 15.8 200.0 157.2 39.1 — 412.1

 Senior notes payable — 936.6 — — — 936.6

 Investment debt — — 936.8 3,019.3 — 3,956.1

 Total liabilities 15.8 1,137.1 1,095.6 3,067.5 — 5,316.0

Equity

 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders’ equity 1,048.0 1,063.8 2,073.2 1,171.6 (4,308.6) 1,048.0

 Noncontrolling interests — — — 1,295.1 — 1,295.1

Total equity 1,048.0 1,063.8 2,073.2 2,466.7 (4,308.6) 2,343.1

Total liabilities and equity $1,063.8 $2,200.9 $3,168.8 $5,534.2 $ (4,308.6) $ 7,659.1
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet 
as of December 31, 2015

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents $        — $      80.2 $      37.0 $      65.4 $           — $    182.6

 Cash held by consolidated investments — — — 549.0 — 549.0

 Accounts receivable — — 30.2 24.5 — 54.7

 Loan purchases and originations — 79.4 12.2 245.9 (37.8) 299.7

 Real estate and acquired in place lease values, net  
  of accumulated depreciation and amortization — — 1,017.5 4,780.0 — 5,797.5

 Unconsolidated investments — 14.6 292.6 137.7 — 444.9

 Investments in and advances to consolidated  
  subsidiaries 1,148.0 1,898.9 1,185.4 0.2 (4,232.5) —

 Other assets — 3.9 30.2 233.1 — 267.2

Total assets $1,148.0 $ 2,077.0 $ 2,605.1 $ 6,035.8 $ (4,270.3) $ 7,595.6

Liabilities

 Accounts Payable $        — $0.5 $        2.5 $      19.2 $           — $22.2

 Accrued expenses and other liabilities 14.0 239.7 118.8 19.5 — 392.0

 Senior notes payable — 688.8 — — — 688.8

 Investment debt — — 584.9 3,080.4 (37.8) 3,627.5

 Line of credit — — — — — —

Total liabilities 14.0 929.0 706.2 3,119.1 (37.8) 4,730.5

Equity

 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders’ equity 1,134.0 1,148.0 1,898.9 1,185.4 (4,232.5) 1,133.8

 Noncontrolling interests — — — 1,731.3 — 1,731.3

Total equity 1,134.0 1,148.0 1,898.9 2,916.7 (4,232.5) 2,865.1

Total liabilities and equity $1,148.0 $ 2,077.0 $ 2,605.1 $ 6,035.8 $ (4,270.3) $ 7,595.6

Consolidating Statement of Operations  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total
Revenue

 Rental $    — $       — $ 114.0 $ 371.9 $        — $ 485.9

 Hotel — — — 116.2 — 116.2

 Sale of real estate — — 12.2 17.1 — 29.3
 Investment management, property  
  services, and research fees

— — 53.7 5.7 — 59.4

 Loan purchases, loan originations, 
   and other

— 0.1 1.1 11.4 — 12.6

Total revenue — 0.1 181.0 522.3 — 703.4

Operating expenses

 Rental operating — — 48.7 86.7 — 135.4

 Hotel operating — — — 96.3 — 96.3

 Cost of real estate sold — — 9.6 12.5 — 22.1

 Commission and marketing — — 7.3 0.7 — 8.0

 Compensation and related 65.1 66.4 47.5 7.5 — 186.5

 General and administrative — 15.9 16.3 13.2 — 45.4

 Depreciation and amortization — 1.3 39.5 157.4 — 198.2

Total operating expenses 65.1 83.6 168.9 374.3 — 691.9
 Income from unconsolidated  
  investments

— 5.6 64.0 57.0 — 126.6

 Income (loss) from consolidated  
  subsidiaries 141.6 285.1 204.9 — (631.6 ) —
  Operating income (loss) 76.5 207.2 281.0 205.0 (631.6 ) 138.1

Non-operating income (expense)

 Acquisition-related gains — — 7.6 8.6 — 16.2

 Acquisition-related expenses — — (2.3 ) (7.2 ) — (9.5 )

 Interest expense - corporate — (54.2 ) — — — (54.2 )

 Interest expense - investment — — (25.4 ) (112.0 ) — (137.4 )
 Loss on early extinguishment of  
  corporate debt

— — — — — —

 Gain on sale of real estate — — 19.6 111.1 — 130.7

 Other (expense) income — 7.7 (2.7 ) 1.6 — 6.6
  Income (loss) before provision from  
   income taxes

76.5 160.7 277.8 207.1 (631.6 ) 90.5

 Provision for income taxes — (19.1 ) 7.3 (2.2 ) — (14.0 )

  Net income (loss) 76.5 141.6 285.1 204.9 (631.6 ) 76.5
 Net loss attributable to the  
  noncontrolling interests

— — — (70.9 ) — (70.9 )

  Net income (loss) attributable to  
   Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

76.5 141.6 285.1 134.0 (631.6 ) 5.6

 Preferred dividends and accretion of  
  preferred stock issuance costs

(2.8 ) — — — — (2.8 )

  Net income (loss) attributable to 
   Kennedy-Wilson Holdings,  
   Inc. common shareholders $ 73.7 $ 141.6 $ 285.1 $ 134.0 $ (631.6 ) $     2.8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 



110 Kennedy Wilson Annual Report 2016  Kennedy Wilson Annual Report 2016 111

Consolidating Statement of Operations  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Revenue

 Rental $     — $       — $   65.4 $ 339.4 $       — $ 404.8

 Hotel — — — 106.4 — 106.4

 Sale of real estate — — — 3.7 — 3.7

 Investment management, property 
  services, and research fees — — 66.1 3.2 — 69.3

 Loan purchases, loan originations,  
  and other — 0.1 1.2 18.2 — 19.5

Total revenue — 0.1 132.7 470.9 — 603.7

Operating expenses

 Rental operating — — 25.3 82.7 — 108.0

 Hotel operating — — — 89.9 — 89.9

 Cost of real estate sold — — — 2.6 — 2.6

 Commission and marketing — 1.6 4.6 1.1 — 7.3

 Compensation and related 30.8 50.1 65.4 8.5 — 154.8

 General and administrative — 15.0 16.7 12.1 — 43.8

 Depreciation and amortization — 0.8 20.8 144.7 — 166.3

Total operating expenses 30.8 67.5 132.8 341.6 — 572.7

 Income from unconsolidated 
   investments — 0.4 79.3 17.7 — 97.4

 Income (loss) from consolidated 
  subsidiaries 89.8 220.1 95.9 — (405.8) —

  Operating income (loss) 59.0 153.1 175.1 147.0 (405.8) 128.4

Non-operating income (expense)

 Gain on sale of real estate — — 0.1 72.3 — 72.4

 Acquisition-related gains — — 70.0 38.1 — 108.1

 Acquisition-related expenses — (0.8) (0.7) (35.8) — (37.3)

 Interest expense - corporate — (46.9) — — — (46.9)

 Interest expense - investment — — (15.8) (93.0) — (108.8)

 Loss on early extinguishment of  
  corporate debt — (1.0) — — — (1.0)

 Other (expense) income — 1.0 (1.7) (1.8) — (2.5)

  Income (loss) before benefit from  
   income taxes 59.0 105.4 227.0 126.8 (405.8) 112.4

 Provision for income taxes — (15.6) (6.9) (30.9) — (53.4)

  Net income (loss) 59.0 89.8 220.1 95.9 (405.8) 59.0

 Net income attributable to the 
   noncontrolling interests — — — 15.7 — 15.7

  Net income (loss) attributable to  
   Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. 59.0 89.8 220.1 111.6 (405.8) 74.7

 Preferred dividends and accretion of  
  preferred stock issuance costs (3.6) — — — — (3.6)

 Net income (loss) attributable to  
  Kennedy-Wilson Holdings,  
  Inc. common shareholders $ 55.4 $   89.8 $ 220.1 $ 111.6 $ (405.8) $   71.1

Consolidating Statement of Operations  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries (1)
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Revenue

 Rental — — 20.4 186.5 — 206.9

 Hotel — — — 63.3 — 63.3

 Sale of real estate — — 0.7 27.7 — 28.4

 Investment management, property services,  
  and research fees — — 78.9 3.7 — 82.6

 Loan purchases, loan originations, and other — 0.1 2.0 15.3 — 17.4

Total revenue — 0.1 102.0 296.5 — 398.6

Operating expenses

 Rental operating — — — 59.3 — 59.3

 Hotel operating — — — 57.1 — 57.1

 Cost of real estate sold — — 0.7 20.0 — 20.7

 Commission and marketing — — 4.4 1.2 — 5.6

 Compensation and related 15.9 52.8 38.1 7.0 — 113.8

 General and administrative — 12.4 15.8 13.9 — 42.1

 Depreciation and amortization — 0.9 12.2 91.4 — 104.5

Total operating expenses 15.9 66.1 71.2 249.9 — 403.1

 Income (loss) from unconsolidated  
  investments — 3.4 39.0 11.8 — 54.2

 Income (loss) from consolidated subsidiaries 106.0 278.4 215.5 — (599.9) —

  Operating income 90.1 215.8 285.3 58.4 (599.9) 49.7

Non-operating income (expense)

 Acquisition-related gains — (7.0) 3.7 221.4 — 218.1

 Acquisition-related expenses — — (2.3) (17.4) — (19.7)

 Interest expense - corporate — (56.3) — (0.8) — (57.1)

 Loss on early extinguishment of  
  corporate debt — (27.3) — — — (27.3)

 Interest expense - investment — — (6.8) (39.5) — (46.3)

 Other income (expense) — 0.2 1.5 3.4 — 5.1

  Income before (provision for) benefit from  
   income taxes 90.1 125.4 281.4 225.5 (599.9) 122.5

 (Provision for) benefit from income taxes — (19.4) (3.0) (10.0) — (32.4)

  Net income (loss) 90.1 106.0 278.4 215.5 (599.9) 90.1

 Net income attributable to the noncontrolling  
  interests — — — (68.2) — (68.2)

  Net income (loss) attributable to  
  Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. 90.1 106.0 278.4 147.3 (599.9) 21.9

 Preferred dividends and accretion of  
  preferred stock issuance costs (8.1) — — — — (8.1)

  Net income (loss) attributable to  
   Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.  
   common shareholders $82.0 $106.0 $278.4 $147.3 $(599.9) $13.8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy- 

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor  

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Net income (loss) $    76.5 $  141.6 $  285.1 $  204.9 $  (631.6 ) $    76.5

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
 Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities 0.1 0.1 — — (0.1) 0.1
 Unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss) (164.1) (164.1) (23.1) (161.9) 349.1 (164.1)
 Amounts reclassified from accumulated other  
  comprehensive income 3.4 3.4 — 3.4 (6.8) 3.4
 Unrealized forward contract forward currency gain  
  (loss) (100.1) (100.1) 21.3 (121.4) 200.2 (100.1)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the period $ (260.7) $ (260.7) $     (1.8) $ (279.9) $   542.4 $ (260.7)

Comprehensive income (loss) (184.2) (119.1) 283.3 (75.0) (89.2) (184.2)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling  
 interests — — — 166.3 — 166.3
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to  
 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. $ (184.2) $ (119.1) $   283.3 $    91.3 $   (89.2) $   (17.9)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy- 

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor  

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Net income (loss) $  59.0 $    89.8 $ 220.1 $    95.9 $ (405.8 ) $    59.0

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

 Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities 0.1 0.1 — — (0.1) 0.1

 Unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss) (138.3) (138.3) (13.6) (29.6) 181.5 (138.3)

 Amounts reclassified from accumulated other  
  comprehensive income 9.7 9.7 (0.6) 10.3 (19.4) 9.7

 Unrealized forward contract forward currency gain  
  (loss) 6.3 6.3 11.5 (5.2) (12.6) 6.3

Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the period (122.2) (122.2) (2.7) (24.5) 149.4 (122.2)

Comprehensive income (loss) $   (63.2) $   (32.4) $ 217.4 $    71.4 $ (256.4) $   (63.2)

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling  
 interests — — — 118.4 — 118.4

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to  
 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. $   (63.2) $   (32.4) $ 217.4 $  189.8 $ (256.4) $    55.2

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy- 

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor  

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries Elimination
Consolidated 

Total

Net income (loss) $90.1 $106.0 $278.4 $215.5 $(599.9 ) $90.1

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

 Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities (0.2) (0.2) — — 0.2 (0.2)

 Unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss) (46.4) (46.4) 1.9 (41.0) 85.5 (46.4)

 Amounts reclassified from accumulated other  
  comprehensive income (7.1) (7.1) 1.2 (8.3) 14.2 (7.1)

 Unrealized forward contract forward currency  
  gain (loss) 16.3 16.3 4.9 15.2 (36.4) 16.3

Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the period (37.4) (37.4) 8.0 (34.1) 63.5 (37.4)

Comprehensive income (loss) $52.7 $  68.6 $286.4 $181.4 $(536.4) $52.7

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling  
 interests — — — (15.6) — (15.6)

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to  
 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. $52.7 $  68.6 $286.4 $165.8 $(536.4) $37.1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Consolidated 

Total

Net cash provided by operating activities $   (0.2) $ (207.9) $ 102.2 $ 208.8 $ 102.9

Cash flows from investing activities:

 Additions to loans — (11.6) (4.5) — (16.1)

 Collections of loans — 6.6 4.9 135.4 146.9

 Nonrefundable escrow deposits — — — — —

 Net proceeds from sale of real estate — — 109.2 430.9 540.1

 Purchases of and additions to real estate — — (404.2) (545.4) (949.6)

 Investment in marketable securities — — (3.2) — (3.2)

 Proceeds from sale of marketable securities — — — — —

 Investing distributions from unconsolidated investments — 54.5 35.1 89.6

 Contributions to unconsolidated investments — (1.0) (104.4) (19.5) (124.9)

 Proceeds from settlement of foreign currency derivative contracts — 38.6 — — 38.6

 Purchases of foreign currency derivative contracts — (8.1) — — (8.1)

 (Investments in) distributions from consolidated subsidiaries, net 129.8 (36.9) (95.4) 2.5 —

  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 129.8 (12.4) (443.1) 39.0 (286.7)

Cash flow from financing activities:

 Borrowings under senior notes payable — 250.0 — — 250.0

 Borrowings under lines of credit — 125.0 — — 125.0

 Repayment of lines of credit — (125.0) — — (125.0)

 Borrowings under investment debt — — 530.9 658.8 1,189.7

 Repayment of investment debt — — (179.5) (428.6) (608.1)

 Debt issue costs — (3.9) (2.1) (4.8) (10.8)

 Issuance of common stock — — — — —

 Repurchase of common stock (64.8) — — — (64.8)

 Dividends paid (64.8) — — — (64.8)

 Acquisitions of noncontrolling interests — — — (196.9) (196.9)

 Contributions from noncontrolling interests — — — 42.1 42.1

 Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — (116.6) (116.6)

  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (129.6) 246.1 349.3 (46.0) 419.8

   Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash  
    equivalents — — — (81.9) (81.9)

  Net change in cash and cash equivalents — 25.8 8.4 119.9 154.1

   Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year — 80.2 37.0 614.4 731.6

  Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $      — $  106.0 $   45.4 $ 734.3 $ 885.7

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Consolidated 

Total

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities: $   5.3 $   67.4 $  105.4 $       0.1 $   178.2

Cash flows from investing activities:

 Additions to loans — (41.0) — (194.8) (235.8)

 Collections of loans — — 8.8 19.0 27.8

 Net proceeds from sale of real estate — — — 622.6 622.6

 Purchases of and additions to real estate — — (220.3) (1,707.3) (1,927.6)

 Nonrefundable escrow deposits — — — (3.8) (3.8)

 Investment in marketable securities — — (5.0) — (5.0)

 Proceeds from sale of marketable securities — — 6.2 — 6.2

 Investing distributions from unconsolidated investments — 83.1 96.9 180.0

 Contributions to unconsolidated investments — (2.9) (81.5) (99.9) (184.3)

 Proceeds from settlement of foreign currency derivative contracts — 23.4 — 18.1 41.5

 Purchases of foreign currency derivative contracts — (3.6) — (1.6) (5.2)

 (Investments in) distributions from consolidated subsidiaries, net (157.1) 128.4 (40.0) 68.7 —

  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (157.1) 104.3 (248.7) (1,182.1) (1,483.6)

Cash flow from financing activities:

 Borrowings under senior notes payable — — — — —

 Repayment of senior notes payable — — — — —

 Repayments of junior subordinated debt — — — — —

 Borrowings under lines of credit — 95.0 — — 95.0

 Repayment of lines of credit — (220.0) — — (220.0)

 Borrowings under investment debt — — 168.1 1,919.8 2,087.9

 Repayment of investment debt — — (7.4) (673.7) (681.1)

 Debt issue costs — (4.7) (1.4) (15.6) (21.7)

 Issuance of common stock 215.0 — — — 215.0

 Repurchase of common stock (11.4) — — — (11.4)

 Proceeds from issuance of KWE shares, net — — — — —

 Dividends paid (51.8) — — — (51.8)

 Acquisitions of noncontrolling interests — — — (68.4) (68.4)

 Contributions from noncontrolling interests — — — 14.5 14.5

 Distributions from noncontrolling interests — — — (239.2) (239.2)

  Net cash provided by financing activities 151.8 (129.7) 159.3 937.4 1,118.8

   Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash  
    equivalents — — — (19.5) (19.5)

  Net change in cash and cash equivalents — 42.0 16.0 (264.1) (206.1)

   Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year — 38.2 21.0 878.5 937.7

  Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $    — $   80.2 $    37.0 $   614.4 $   731.6

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Note 20—Unaudited Quarterly Information

Year ended December 31, 2016

(dollars in millions, except earnings per share amounts)
Fourth 

Quarter
Third 

Quarter
Second 
Quarter

First 
Quarter

Revenues $ 180.4 $ 174.3 $ 176.5 $ 172.2

Operating expenses 194.3 166.1 168.6 162.9

Income from unconsolidated investments 67.3 31.7 8.4 19.2

Operating income 53.4 39.9 16.3 28.5

Non-operating (expenses) income 3.7 (21.3) (22.4) (7.6)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 57.1 18.6 (6.1) 20.9

(Provision for) benefit from income taxes (11.9) (5.5) 3.9 (0.5)

Net income (loss) 45.2 13.1 (2.2) 20.4

Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (29.6) (15.1) 1.1 (27.3)

Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs (1.2) (0.5) (0.5) (0.6)
Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson 
 Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $   14.4 $    (2.5) $    (1.6) $    (7.5)

Basic (loss) earnings per share $   0.13 $  (0.03) $  (0.02) $ (0.07)
Diluted (loss) earnings per share $   0.13 $  (0.03) $  (0.02) $ (0.07 )

Year ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in millions, except earnings per share amounts)
Fourth 

Quarter
Third 

Quarter
Second 
Quarter

First 
Quarter

Revenues $ 166.3 $ 159.2 $ 140.5 $ 137.7

Operating expenses 164.9 144.5 141.9 121.4

Income from unconsolidated investments 53.3 15.9 17.0 11.2

Operating income (loss) 54.7 30.6 15.6 27.5

Non-operating (expenses) income (5.5) (21.0) 50.4 (39.9)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 49.2 9.6 66.0 (12.4)

(Provision for) benefit from income taxes (20.9) (4.5) (36.1) 8.1

Net income (loss) 28.3 5.1 29.9 (4.3)

Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 0.7 10.3 1.9 2.8

Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs (0.5) (0.5) (0.6) (2.0)

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson 
 Holdings, Inc. common shareholders $   28.5 $   14.9 $   31.2 $    (3.5)

Basic (loss) earnings per share $   0.25 $   0.13 $   0.29 $  (0.05)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share $   0.25 $   0.13 $   0.27 $  (0.05)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows  
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(dollars in millions) Parent
Kennedy-

Wilson, Inc.
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non-guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Consolidated 

Total

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: $    (1.0) $(203.8) $ 125.1 $   177.8 $     98.1

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Additions to loans — — (10.7) (526.1) (536.8)

 Settlements of loans — — 15.1 80.8 95.9

 Net proceeds from sale of real estate — — — 24.7 24.7

 Purchases of and additions to real estate — (0.6) (141.5) (1,820.1) (1,962.2)

 Nonrefundable escrow deposits — — — (47.7) (47.7)

 Investment in marketable securities — — (11.5) — (11.5)

 Proceeds from sale of marketable securities — — 8.6 — 8.6

 Distributions from unconsolidated investments — 0.3 52.1 59.4 111.8

 Contributions to unconsolidated investments — (2.0) (70.8) (94.9) (167.7)
 Proceeds from settlement of foreign currency derivative  
  contracts — — — 14.4 14.4
 Purchases of foreign currency derivative contracts — — — (2.7) (2.7)
 (Investments in) distributions from consolidated  
  subsidiaries, net (142.5) (172.8) (89.7) 405.0 —

  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (142.5) (175.1) (248.4) (1,907.2) (2,473.2)

Cash flow from financing activities:

 Borrowings under notes payable — 647.2 — — 647.2

 Repayment of notes payable — (350.0) — — (350.0)

 Repayments of junior subordinated debt — (40.0) — — (40.0)

 Borrowings under lines of credit — 215.0 — — 215.0

 Repayment of lines of credit — (90.0) — — (90.0)

 Borrowings under investment debt — — 68.8 1,215.0 1,283.8

 Repayment of investment debt — — (0.7) (345.1) (345.8)

 Debt issuance costs — (13.3) (1.0) (24.4) (38.7)

 Issuance of common stock 190.6 — — — 190.6

 Repurchase of common stock (8.2) — — — (8.2)

 Proceeds from issuance of KWE Shares, net — — — 1,827.2 1,827.2

 Dividends paid (38.9) — — — (38.9)

 Acquisitions of noncontrolling interests — — — (51.0) (51.0)

 Contributions from noncontrolling interests — — — 19.9 19.9

 Distributions from noncontrolling interests — — — (57.7) (57.7)

  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 143.5 368.9 67.1 2,583.9 3,163.4
   Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash  
    equivalents — — — (28.8) (28.8)

  Net change in cash and cash equivalents — (10.0) (56.2) 825.7 759.5

   Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year — 48.2 77.2 52.8 178.2

  Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $       — $   38.2 $   21.0 $   878.5 $    937.7
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Performance Graph

Note 21—Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events through the date these financial statements were issued. The Company concluded 

that no subsequent events have occurred that would require disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

The graph below compares the cumulative total return of our common stock from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 

2016, with the comparable cumulative return of companies comprising the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Financials index. 

The graph plots the growth in value of an initial investment of $100 in each of our common stock, the S&P 500 Index, and the 

S&P 500 Financials index for the five-year period ended December 31, 2016, and assumes reinvestment of all dividends, if any, 

paid on the securities. The stock price performance shown on the graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.

Kennedy Wilson uses the S&P 500 Financials index, which is a subsector of the S&P 500 index and includes real estate 

companies and other diversified financial services companies as a comparable measure. The information under this caption, 

“Performance Graph,” is deemed not to be incorporated by reference into any filings under the Securities Act of 1933, 

as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that such filing specifically states 

otherwise.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Company and Affiliated Purchasers in the Fourth Quarter of 2016

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Months
Total Number of  

Shares Purchased
Average Price Paid 

per Share

Total Number of Shares 
Purchased as Part of 

Publicly Announced(1)

Maximum Amount that 
May Yet be Purchased 

Under the Plan(1)

January 1 - January 31, 2016 — $      — — $   100,000,000

February 1 - February 29, 2016 — — — 100,000,000

March 1 - March 31, 2016 240,000 20.74 240,000 95,007,587

April 1 - April 30, 2016 — — 240,000 95,007,587

May 1 - May 31, 2016 676,073 20.22 916,073 81,315,671

June 1 - June 30, 2016 505,179 18.53 1,421,252 71,935,877

July 1 - July 31, 2016 32,585 17.99 1,453,837 71,348,194

August 1 - August 31, 2016 — — 1,453,837 71,348,194

September 1 - September 30, 2016 — — 1,453,837 71,348,194

October 1 - October 31, 2016 — — 1,453,837 71,348,194

November 1 - November 30, 2016 545,768 22.24 1,999,605 59,189,449

December 1 - December 31, 2016 440,951 21.06 2,440,556 49,885,068

Total 2,440,556 $ 20.49 2,440,556 $     49,885,068

(1)  On February 25, 2016, our board of directors authorized us to repurchase up to $100 million of its common shares, from time to time, subject to 
market conditions. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 
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Forward-Looking Statements
Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters 
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Stock Price Information

Our common stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol 

“KW.” The following table sets forth, for the calendar 

quarter indicated, the high and low sales prices per share 

of common stock as reported on the NYSE. The quotations 

listed below reflect inter dealer prices, without retail 

markup, markdown or commission and may not necessarily 

represent actual transactions.

Common Stock

High Low
Fiscal year 2016
Quarter ended March 31, 2016 $ 24.26 $ 15.74
Quarter ended June 30, 2016 22.64 17.29
Quarter ended September 30, 2016 23.77 17.93
Quarter ended December 31, 2016 23.00 20.00
Fiscal year 2015
Quarter ended March 31, 2015 28.33 24.59
Quarter ended June 30, 2015 26.98 23.82
Quarter ended September 30, 2015 26.41 21.88
Quarter ended December 31, 2015 26.44 21.96

Holders

As of February 27, 2017, we had approximately 162 holders 

of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We declared and paid quarterly dividends of $0.14 per share 

and $0.12 per share in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cumulative dividends on our Series A and Series B 

Preferred Stock accrue at an annual rate of 6.00% and 

6.452%, respectively, of the liquidation preference, subject 

to adjustment under certain circumstances. The Series A 

were mandatorily converted into 8,554,948 shares on May 

19, 2015. On December 28, 2016, the Company issued 

an aggregate of 3,366,973 shares of Common Stock in 

settlement of the conversion of all outstanding shares of 

Series B Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2016 there was 

no Preferred Stock outstanding. The Company paid $0.7 

million of dividends at conversion for dividends that would 

have been accrued up to the mandatory conversion date.

The declaration and payment of any future dividends is 

at the sole discretion of our board of directors and will 

depend on, among other things, our operating results, 

overall financial condition, capital requirements and 

general business conditions.

amounts shown in millions

Aggregate dividends declared since inception Preferred Common Total

2009 $   3.2 $       — $     3.2
2010 4.5 — 4.5
2011 8.7 5.7 14.4
2012 8.1 11.7 19.8
2013 8.1 21.8 29.9
2014 8.1 33.7 41.8
2015 3.6 53.3 56.9
2016 2.8 63.9 66.7
Total $ 47.1 $ 190.1 $ 237.2

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None

Equity Compensation Plan Information

See Item 12—“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 

Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

Statements made by us in this report and in other reports 

and statements released by us that are not historical facts 

constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning 

of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

(the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). 

These forward-looking statements are necessarily estimates 

reflecting the judgment of our senior management based 

on our current estimates, expectations, forecasts and 

projections and include comments that express our current 

opinions about trends and factors that may impact future 

operating results. Disclosures that use words such as 

“believe,” “may,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” 

“could,” “plan,” “expect,” “project” or the negative of 

these, as well as similar expressions, are intended to identify 

forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future 

performance, rely on a number of assumptions concerning 

future events, many of which are outside of our control, and 

involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that 

could cause our actual results, performance or achievement, 

or industry results, to differ materially from any future results, 

performance or achievements, expressed or implied by such 

forward-looking statements. Although we believe that our 

plans, intentions, expectations, strategies and prospects as 

reflected in or suggested by those forward-looking statements 

are reasonable, we do not guarantee that the transactions 

and events described will happen as described (or that they 

will happen at all). For a further discussion of these and other 

factors that could impact our future results, performance or 

transactions, please carefully read “Risk Factors” in Part I, 

Item 1A below in addition to the following factors:

• disruptions in general economic and business 

conditions, particularly in geographies where our 

business may be concentrated; 

• volatility and disruption of the capital and credit markets, 

higher interest rates, higher loan costs, less desirable 

loan terms and a reduction in the availability of mortgage 

loans, all of which could increase costs and could limit 

our ability to acquire additional real estate assets; 

• continued high levels of, or increases in, unemployment 

and general slowdowns in commercial activity; 

• our leverage and ability to refinance existing 

indebtedness or incur additional indebtedness; 

• an increase in our debt service obligations; 

• our ability to generate a sufficient amount of cash to 

satisfy working capital requirements and to service our 

existing and future indebtedness; 

• our ability to achieve improvements in operating 

efficiency; 

• foreign currency fluctuations; 

• performance of our foreign currency hedge instruments;

• adverse changes in the securities markets; 

• our ability to retain our senior management and attract 

and retain qualified and experienced employees; 

• our ability to retain major clients and renew related 

contracts; 

• trends in use of large, full-service commercial real 

estate providers; 

• changes in tax laws in the United States, Ireland, United 

Kingdom, Spain, Italy or Japan that reduce or eliminate 

deductions or other tax benefits we receive;

• our ability to repatriate investment funds in a tax-

efficient manner; 

• future acquisitions may not be available at favorable 

prices or upon advantageous terms and conditions; and 

• costs relating to the acquisition of assets we may 

acquire could be higher than anticipated.

Any such forward-looking statements, whether made in 

this report or elsewhere, should be considered in the context 

of the various disclosures made by us about our businesses 

including, without limitation, the risk factors discussed in this 

Annual Report. Except as required under the federal securities 

laws and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities 

and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), we do not have 

any intention or obligation to update publicly any forward-

looking statements, whether as a result of new information, 

future events, changes in assumptions, or otherwise. Please 

refer to “Non-GAAP Measures and Certain Definitions” for 

definitions of certain terms used throughout this report.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Certain of the matters discussed herein are discussed more fully in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our Annual Report 
on Form 10-K. We filed our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, with the SEC on February 27, 2017, which, in the section 
titled “Risk Factors,” contains a detailed discussion of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to differ materially from any 
forward-looking statements contained herein.

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 D

es
ig

n
 b

y 
B

ig
 P

iv
o

t 
P

ar
tn

er
s 

/ w
w

w
.b

ig
p

iv
o

t.
n

et

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
151 South El Camino Drive 
Beverly Hills, CA 90212 
(310) 887-6400

ANNUAL MEETING
Beverly Wilshire 
9500 Wilshire Blvd. 
Beverly Hills, CA 90212 
9 a.m., Thursday, June 15, 2017

STOCK LISTING
New York Stock Exchange 
Symbol “KW”

TRANSFER AGENT
Continental Stock Transfer 
17 Battery Pl., 8th Floor 
New York, NY 10004 
(212) 509-4000

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG LLP

LEGAL COUNSEL
Latham & Watkins LLP

INVESTOR INFORMATION
A copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K,  
as filed with the SEC, will be furnished to 
shareholders and interested investors free  
of charge upon written request to us at  
151 South El Camino Drive, Beverly Hills, CA  
90212, Attention: Daven Bhavsar, CFA / Director  
of Investor Relations

FOR MORE INFORMATION
For more information on Kennedy Wilson, please  
visit our website at www.kennedywilson.com
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Austin 
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Austin, TX 78759
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3055 112th Ave. NE, Suite 125 
Bellevue, WA 98004
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(U.S. Corporate Headquarters) 
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Chicago 
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1850 Gateway Blvd., Suite 130 
Concord, CA 94520
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Denver 
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Honolulu 
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Houston, TX 77056
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Las Vegas 
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(Europe Corporate Headquarters) 
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315 West 36th Street 
New York, NY 10018
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3200 Bristol Street, Suite 640 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626
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Three Logan Square 
1717 Arch St., Suite 700 
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Phoenix 
6835 E. Camelback Road,  
Suite B15 
Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Phoenix 
7375 E. 6th Ave., Suite 6 
Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Sacramento 
1860 Howe Ave., Suite 445  
Sacramento, CA 95825

San Antonio 
40 NE Loop 410, Suite 607 
San Antonio,TX 78216

San Diego 
420 Stevens Avenue, Suite 120 
Solana Beach,CA 92075

San Francisco 
300 California St., 2nd Floor  
San Francisco, CA 94104
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Channel Islands 
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Kennedy Wilson 
Investment Company, Ltd.  
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14th Floor 
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